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A P P E A R A N C E S 

 

 

 

Board Members Present:       

 

 Jim Nadeau, Chairman (Carson City) 

 Raymond Flynn, Acting Chairman (Las Vegas) 

 Tammy Nixon (Las Vegas) 

 Robert Gronauer (Las Vegas) 

 

  Also: Kevin Ingram (Las Vegas) 

 Executive Director 

 

 Rosalie Bordelove (Las Vegas) 

 Deputy Attorney General 

 Board Counsel 

 Prosecuting Counsel 

 

 Michael Detmer (Las Vegas) 

 Deputy Attorney General 

 Board Counsel 

 

 Lori Irizarry (Las Vegas) 

 Chief of Operations 

 

 Gisela Corral (Las Vegas) 

 Licensing Specialist 

 

 Vincent Saladino (Las Vegas) 

 Supervisory Investigator 

 

 Shelly Donald (Las Vegas) 

 Investigator 

 

 Paul Maxwell (Las Vegas) 

 Investigator 

 

 Zachary Swarthout (Las Vegas) 

 Investigator 

 

 Mary Klemme (Carson City) 

 Office Manager 
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Other Participants: 

 

 Anthony J. Brown (Las Vegas) 

 Robert L. Cox (Las Vegas) 

 Lee M. Andrews (Las Vegas) 

 Kurt Strakaluse (Las Vegas) 

 Tony Guimond (Las Vegas) 

 Carlo Rigillo (Las Vegas) 

 Robert D. Molnar (Las Vegas) 

 Joseph G. Dickey (Las Vegas) 

 Lyndon C. Brentnall (Las Vegas) 

 Alfred Lozano (Las Vegas) 

 James T. Born (Las Vegas) 

 Maybeth G. Andrade (Las Vegas) 

 William D. Worrell (Las Vegas) 

 Robert L. Gower (Carson City) 

 Derwin D. Holt (Las Vegas) 

 Daniel L. Swindall (Las Vegas) 

 Timothy Wells (Las Vegas) 

 Frederick Hutchison (Las Vegas) 

 Brian P. Koehn (Las Vegas) 

 Michael Reece (Las Vegas) 

 Lisa W. Logan-Hawkins (Las Vegas) 

 John Soto (Las Vegas) 

 Gary E. Arrant (Las Vegas) 

 William D. Hooker (Las Vegas) 

 Richard Black (Carson City) 

 Dewayne Darby (Las Vegas) 

 Michael Pullos (Carson City) 

 Emmanuel Foster (Las Vegas) 

 Joe Henry (Las Vegas) 

 Oveon Toney (Las Vegas) 

 Frank Troiano (Las Vegas) 

 Tomas Baltazar (Las Vegas) 

 Rouyona Maxey (Las Vegas) 

 Mark White (Las Vegas) 

 Kenneth Brown (Las Vegas) 

 Dorien Butler (Las Vegas) 

 Eva Camarillo (Las Vegas) 

 Ronald Collins (Las Vegas) 

 Tommy Garner (Las Vegas) 

 Anthony Lujan (Las Vegas) 

 Jeremy Shechtman (Las Vegas) 

 Adam Plant (Las Vegas) 

 Stephen Reid, Esq. (Las Vegas) 
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I N D E X 

 

ITEM             PAGE 

 

1. Roll Call of Board Members      18 

 

2. Public Comment         18 

 

3. Board/Executive Director Announcements,  

 Reports and Updates         19 

 

4. Review and approve transcripts from 

 March 13, 2019 Board meetings  

 "for possible action"       26 

 

5. All applicants and witnesses to be sworn in  27 

            117 

 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

6. American Protection Group, Inc. (APG), license  

 number 2075 is seeking Corporate Officer  

 status approval for Anthony J. Brown.  This is  

 subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    32 

 

7. Rancho Security Services, LLC, license number  

 875 is seeking Member approval for Zlata Zujic  

 and Nenad Stojanovic.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory  requirements.     28 

 "for possible action"       45 

 

CHANGE OF LICENSING STATUS - CORPORATE NAME CHANGE 

QUALIFYING AGENT TRANSFER 

 

8. E-Backgroundchecks.com, Inc., license number  

 1574 is requesting a Corporate Name Change to  

 Backgroundchecks.com, LLC.  Craig Kessler will  

 remain the qualifying agent.  This is subject  

 to all statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       28 

 

9. Zugress Security Services, Inc., license number  

 2126 is requesting a Corporate Name Change to  

 NY SEB Inc.  Perry J. Bonarrigo will remain the  

 qualifying agent.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       28 
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10. Specialized Protection & Security, LLC, dba,  

 RMS Protective Services, license number 2294  

 is requesting a Corporate Name Change to RMS  

 Protective Services, LLC.  Steven Rachminov  

 will remain the qualifying agent.  This is   

 subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    28 

 

CHANGE OF LICENSING STATUS - QUALIFYING AGENT, NEW CORP 

 

11. Certified Talent, LLC is applying for a new  

 Private Investigator license.  If approved,  

 Brian F. McElwee, license number 2277 is  

 requesting that his individual license be kept  

 in abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       28 

 

12. Teflon Security, LLC is applying for a new  

 Private Patrolman license.  If approved,  

 James M. Harden, license number 2016 is  

 requesting that his individual license be  

 placed in abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  Member to be approved is  

 Andre L. Bailey.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       28 

 

13. Event Staffing Professionals, Inc. is applying  

 for a new Private Patrolman license.  If  

 approved, Vincenzo Esposito is requesting that  

 his individual license be kept in abeyance so  

 that he may become the qualifying agent.   

 Corporate Officer to be approved is Glen  

 Ratcliff.  This is subject to all statutory  

 and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       28 

 

14. Andrews Global Security, Inc. is applying for a  

 new Private Patrolman license.  If approved,  

 Robert L. Cox is requesting to transfer his  

 qualifying agent status from Hi-Tech Security,  

 Inc., license number 1811.  Corporate Officer  

 to be approved is Lee M. Andrews.  This is  

 subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    48 

 

 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

15. Envista Forensics, LLC is applying for a new  

 Private Investigator license.  If approved,  

 David A. Dionisi is requesting to transfer his  

 qualifying agent status from PT&C Forensic  

 Consulting Services PA, dba, Envista Forensics,  

 license number 1375.  Member to be approved is  

 Michael J. Driscoll.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       25 

 

16. 3 Sixty Secure Corp is applying for a new  

 Private Patrolman license.  If approved, Kurt  

 Strakaluse is requesting to transfer his  

 qualifying agent status from 30MinuteSecurity.com,  

 LLC, license number 1662.  Corporate Officers  

 to be approved are Thomas W. Gerstenecker and  

 Carlo Rigillo.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.     28 

 "for possible action"       59 

 

17. Executive Security & Protection, Inc., license  

 number 2237 is applying for a new Canine  

 Handler license.  If approved, Gregory B.  

 Conner is requesting to transfer his  

 qualifying agent status from High Powered  

 Protection Dogs, LLC, license number 1723.   

 This is subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    28 

 

18. Topgun Security Solutions, LLC is applying for  

 a new Private Investigator and Private  

 Patrolman license.  If approved, Daniel E.  

 Holley is requesting that his individual  

 licenses, license number 2611 be kept in  

 abeyance so that he may become the qualifying  

 agent.  Member to be approved is Ellen R.  

 Holley.  This is subject to all statutory and  

 regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       28 

 

CHANGE OF LICENSING STATUS - QUALIFYING AGENT, EXISTING 

CORP 

 

19. Alfredo Francisco is requesting a change in  

 licensing status.  Mr. Francisco is requesting  

 that his individual license, license number 1308  

 be kept in abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent for Thomas Protective Service,  

 Inc., license number 1309.  This is subject to  
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 all statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       25 

 

PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR 

 

20. Lemieux & Associates, LLC is applying for a  

 new corporate Private Investigator License.   

 Robert D. Molnar is applying for an individual  

 Private Investigator license.  If approved, he  

 is requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  Members to be approved are  

 Robert D. Molnar and George A. Lemieux II.   

 This is subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    65 

 

21. JD Consulting & Investigation, LLC is applying  

 for a new Corporate Private Investigator  

 license.  Joseph G. Dickey is applying for an  

 individual Private Investigator license.  If  

 approved, he is requesting that his individual  

 license be placed into abeyance so that he may  

 become the qualifying agent.  This is subject  

 to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

 "for possible action"       67 

 

22. RMS Protective Services, LLC is applying for a  

 new Corporate Private Investigator license.   

 Lyndon C. Brentnall is applying for an  

 individual Private Investigator license.  If  

 approved, he is requesting that his individual  

 license be placed into abeyance so that he may  

 become the qualifying agent.  This is subject  

 to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

 "for possible action"       70 

 

23. Alfred Lozano is applying for an individual  

 Private Investigator license.  If approved, he  

 is requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent for CoventBridge (USA), Inc.,  

 license number 1187.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.  

 "for possible action"       72 

 

24. James T. Born is applying for an individual  

 Private Investigator license.  This is subject  

 to all statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       74 
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25. Maybeth G. Andrade is applying for an  

 individual Private Investigator license.  This  

 is subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    78 

 

PRIVATE PATROLMAN 

 

26. ECAMSECURE is applying for a new corporate  

 Private Patrolman license.  William D. Worrell  

 is applying for an individual Private Patrolman  

 license.  If approved, he is requesting that  

 his individual license be placed into abeyance  

 so that he may become the qualifying agent.   

 Member to be approved is Christopher L. Coffee.   

 This is subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    80 

 

27. Ball & Chain Security Services is applying for 

 a new corporate Private Patrolman license.   

 Robert L. Gower is applying for an individual  

 Private Patrolman license.  If approved, he is  

 requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       83 

 

28. Eye Witness Security, LLC is applying for a new  

 corporate Private Patrolman license.  Derwin D.  

 Holt is applying for an individual Private  

 Patrolman license.  If approved, he is  

 requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  Member to be approved is  

 Derwin D. Holt.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       85 

 

29. Blackstone Security Services, Inc. is applying  

 for a new corporate Private Patrolman license.   

 Daniel L. Swindall is applying for an  

 individual Private Patrolman license.  If  

 approved, he is requesting that his individual  

 license be placed into abeyance so that he may  

 become the qualifying agent.  Corporate Officer  

 to be approved is Daniel L. Swindall.  This is  

 subject to all statutory and regulatory  

 requirements.  "for possible action"    88 
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30. Timothy Wells is applying for an individual  

 Private Patrolman license.  If approved, he is  

 requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent for Bedrock Protection Agency,  

 LLC, license number 2183.  This is subject to  

 all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

 "for possible action"       91 

 

31. Frederick Hutchison is applying for an  

 individual Private Patrolman license. If  

 approved, he is requesting that his individual  

 license be placed into abeyance so that he may  

 become the qualifying agent for SecureCar, LLC,  

 license number 2118.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"       94 

 

32. Brian P. Koehn is applying for an individual  

 Private Patrolman license.  If approved, he is  

 requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent for CoreCivic, Inc., dba,  

 Nevada Southern Detection Center, license  

 number 2135.  This is subject to all statutory  

 and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"       97 

 

33. Michael Reece is applying for an individual  

 Private Patrolman license.  This is subject to  

 all statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 "for possible action"      100 

 

PROCESS SERVER 

 

34. Lisa W. Logan-Hawkins is applying for an  

 individual Process Server license. If approved,  

 she is requesting that her individual license  

 be placed into abeyance so that she may become  

 the qualifying agent for ABI Document Support  

 Services, LLC, license number 1579.  Members to  

 be approved are Clare Y. Arguedas, Wesley J.  

 Campbell and Jose M. Fernandez de Castro.  This  

 is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

 requirements.  "for possible action"   106 
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CANINE HANDLER 

 

35. Protective Force International, LLC, license  

 number 2687 is applying for a new Canine Handler  

 license.  Gary E. Arrant is applying for an  

 individual Canine Handler license.  If approved,  

 he is requesting that his individual license be  

 placed into abeyance so that he may become the  

 qualifying agent.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"      109 

 

PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR AND PROCESS SERVER 

 

36. Lawrence E. Sanchez is applying for an  

 individual Private Investigator and Process  

 Server license.  This is subject to all   113 

 statutory and regulatory requirements.    116 

 "for possible action"      220 

 

PRIVATE PATROLMAN AND CANINE HANDLER 

 

37. Global K9 Protection Group, LLC is applying for  

 a new Private Patrolman and Canine Handler  

 license.  William D. Hooker is applying for an  

 individual Private Patrolman and Canine Handler  

 license.  If approved, he is requesting that  

 his individual license be placed into abeyance  

 so that he may become the qualifying agent.   

 Members to be approved are Donald J. Clarkson  

 and Eric S. Hare.  This is subject to all  

 statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 "for possible action"      113 

 

REGISTRATION APPEALS 

 

38. Richard Black applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Black is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      116 

 

39. Lee Roy Calloway applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Calloway is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  124 

 "for possible action"      222 
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40. Dewayne Darby applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Darby s appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      124 

 

41. Sade Easley applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Ms. Easley is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.     141 

 "for possible action"      222 

 

42. Emmanuel Foster applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Foster is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      141 

  

43. Sidney Harvey applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Harvey is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.    147 

 "for possible action"      222 

 

44. Joe Henry applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Henry is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      147 

 

45. Oveon Toney applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Toney is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      155 

 

46. Frank Troiano applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Troiano is appealing the 

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      158 

 

47. Tomas Baltazar applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Baltazar is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      167 

 

48. Jason Boerdam applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Boerdam is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.     168 

 "for possible action"      223 

 

49. Trenses Love applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Love is appealing the decision to  

 the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"       25 
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50. Rouyona Maxey applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Ms. Maxey is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      170 

 

51. Mark White applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. White is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      177 

 

52. Jaques Bassey applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Bassey is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.     181 

 "for possible action"      223 

 

53. Kenneth Brown applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Brown is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      181 

 

54. Dorien Butler applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Butler is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.  

 "for possible action"      188 

 

55. Eva Camarillo applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Ms. Camarillo is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      190 

 

56. Ronald Collins applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Collins is appealing the 

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      193 

 

57. Breiana English applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Ms. English is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   200 

 "for possible action"      224 

 

58. Tommy Garner applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Garner is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      200 

 

59. Anthony Lujan applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Lujan is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      209 
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60. Scott Macrina applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Macrina is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"       26 

 

61. Vincent Miozza applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Miozza is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   214 

 "for possible action"      224 

 

62. Michael Pullos applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Pullos is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      132 

 

63. Jeremy Shechtman applied for registration and  

 was denied.  Mr. Shechtman is appealing the  

 decision to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.   

 "for possible action"      214 

 

64. Bryson Blue applied for registration and was  

 denied.  Mr. Blue is appealing the decision  

 to the Board pursuant to NRS 648.     220 

 "for possible action"      224 

 

DISCIPLINARY HEARING 

 

65. Disciplinary hearing for Adam Plant, R-085960, 

 pursuant to NRS 648.156.   

 "for possible action" 

 (See hearing indexes, pages 15-17.)   225 

 

CITATION APPEALS 

 

66. Torrey Mitchell is appealing the issuance of  

 Citation 1-0007-19 to the Board pursuant to  

 NRS 648.165.  "for possible action"    26 

 

67. Dominique Fuiava is appealing the issuance of  

 Citation 1-0020-19 to the Board pursuant to  

 NRS 468.165.  "for possible action"    26 

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

68. Review and discussion on the PILB transitioning  

 from under the Office of the Attorney General.  

 "for possible action"      --- 
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69. Review and discussion on AB184 as proposed  

 during the 2019 Legislative Session and how  

 to  move forward with required training.   

 "for possible action"      --- 

 

70. Board Comment and future agenda items 

 "for possible action"      --- 

 

71. Public Comment        336 

 

72. Adjournment "for possible action"    344 
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INDEX FOR AGENDA ITEM 65 

DISCIPLINARY HEARING 

REGARDING 

    ADAM PLANT, R-085960 

 

 

WITNESSES 

 

Witness:             Page 

 

Lori Irizarry: 

 

   Direct Examination by Ms. Bordelove    236 

   Cross-Examination by Mr. Reid     241 

 

Zachary Swarthout: 

 

   Direct Examination by Ms. Bordelove    246 

   Cross-Examination by Mr. Reid     262 

   Redirect Examination by Ms. Bordelove   281 

   Recross-Examination by Mr. Reid     283 

   Further Redirect Examination by Ms. Bordelove  283 

   Further Examination by Mr. Reid     287 

 

Adam Plant: 

 

   Direct Examination by Mr. Reid     289 

   Cross-Examination by Ms. Bordelove    302 

   Redirect Examination by Mr. Reid     308 

   Recross-Examination by Ms. Bordelove    309 

 

Kevin Ingram: 

 

   Direct Examination on Rebuttal by Ms. Bordelove 324 

   Cross-Examination on Rebuttal by Mr. Reid   326 

 

 

 

PETITIONER'S EXHIBITS 

 

Exhibit Description             Mkd  Adm 

 

1 Complaint and Notice of Hearing 

 Bates Nos. 000001-000009    230 230 

 

2 Answer to Complaint 

 Bates Nos. 000010-000014    230 230 
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Exhibit Description             Mkd  Adm 

 

3 Work card application, 1/26/2016 
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CARSON CITY, NEVADA, THURSDAY, JUNE 20, 2019,  

9:01 A.M. 

-oOo- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Let's call the June 20, 

2019 Private Investigators Licensing Board to order.  

 The first item of business, roll call of Board 

members.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

 Chair Nadeau?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here.  

 MR. INGRAM:  We do have a quorum.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 All right.  Let's open it up for public 

comment.  Do we have any public, anyone from the public 

that wishes to speak from the south? 

 Public comment can be comment on matters 

appears on the agenda and/or other matters not appearing 

on the agenda that the public would like to bring to the 

attention of the Board.  The Board may not discuss the 
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matters not appearing on the agenda, and may not act on 

matters not on the agenda and will not be scheduled on a 

future agenda.  Public comments, then, are limited to 

five minutes per person at the discretion of the Chair 

and will not be restricted according to viewpoint.  

 Do we have anyone in the south that they have 

public comment, anyone?  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No. 

  MR. INGRAM:  I see none. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So I went through all 

that for nothing?  

  All right.  So the Board, the Executive 

Director announcements, reports and updates.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.   

  There's two items here that I'd like to cover.  

First of all, I provided the financial report to the 

Board.  If you have any questions, I'd be happy to 

answer those.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any questions of any of 

the --   

  MR. INGRAM:  We're on track to carry -- I'm 

sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any questions of the 

Board members regarding the financial report?  

  Seeing none. 
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None down here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  We are on track to have the amount 

carried over required by statute to establish our budget 

starting July 1.  The budget will be completed next week 

once the new fringe assessments are sent to us from the 

Budget Division.  And so we'll have a new budget for you 

at the next Board meeting.  

 The second item, I'd like Chief of Operations 

Lori Irizarry to go over our recent statistics for this 

last quarter.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Good morning.  So I'm going to 

go over the handout statistics that were on the table.   

  Starting on page 1, statistic overview, I tried 

to put a legend next to it, so --  

  (The Reporter indicated that it's difficult to 

hear Las Vegas.)  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Okay.  So I'm going to start on 

page 1 of the statistics.  On the licensing application, 

for the second quarter, there were 31 total applicants.  

In private patrol category, only one person did not meet 

the minimum requirements, so they are not here for the 

Board.  Everyone else in all other categories were -- 

met the requirements.  

 Moving down to work cards, there were 3,454 

work cards processed in the last quarter.  That's an 
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increase of over 1,700 from the first quarter.  Usually 

our second quarter of every year is this time of year.  

That's because we have the Electric Daily Carnival, 

which brought in a little over a thousand more 

applications that we processed in the three months.  The 

JCK Jewelry Show.  The Las Vegas Ballpark opened up, 

which brought in a lot of applicants to get registered 

work cards.  And that's what came through.  So for the 

first quarter, we had a little, little less than 1,700.  

We almost doubled that for the second quarter, of 3,400 

work cards.  

 Right now, we have 108 pending work cards; 61 

of those are because people are still missing 

information.  So it's not a complete application for us 

to give them a work card.  It's a fingerprint, a photo 

ID is missing, or something's still pending on their 

background.  So, essentially, there are 47 of those 

still pending that we are working at the moment.  We 

have a one-week turnaround time.  So that would be those 

things that we're still working on. 

 Page 2, on the back, last quarter we had about 

10 complaints come through our office.  Those complaints 

varied either from licensing to the general public, work 

card applicants.   

 One complaint was in regards to a work card 
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applicant.  It was displaying disorderly conduct 

reported by a licensee.  We reported no findings.  That 

was something that we do not regulate in our statutes.  

We refer them over to the Labor Board in order for them 

to file criminal or, yeah, criminal charges against that 

person.  Three of those complaints we referred over to 

the Labor Board.  One was for a licensee not paying 

their staff.  And two for a licensee took money out of 

individual's paychecks for uniforms.  That's a labor 

dispute, not with us.   

 Two unlicensed activities.  One is -- they're 

both still pending.  One is a possible private 

investigator.  We're waiting on the complainant to 

provide us more paperwork before we either close it or 

issue a citation.  And the other one is for a possible 

private patrolman company.  The suspect that we're 

looking at has left the country.  So that one is still 

pending at the moment until we get further information. 

 There was one revocation of a work card. 

 And three were against a licensee.  Three 

against licensees all have been closed, because with no 

findings.  One was an intimidation case where the 

general public claimed that a licensee was intimidating 

them.  We referred it over to Las Vegas Metro.  One 

claimed the licensee was not properly licensed.  They 
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were.  And a disgruntled ex-employee, but that did not 

fall under our statute 648.  So all those were closed or 

referred over to another agency.  

 The last statistic here is our unlicensed 

activity.  We are very happy to announce that we are 

pursuing unlicensed activity more actively now.  That's 

something we are also putting on our stats.  Because 

this past quarter, there was a total of 23 unlicensed 

activity situations.  16 of those are still pending, 

which totals about $55,000 in citations.  12 of those 

are bodyguards or executive protection persons that were 

reported to us by our relationships with Las Vegas 

Metro, the nightclub industry, or we found on our own.  

Four of those were security companies reported by other 

complaints.  So one complaint turned into four others.  

So it kind of bloomed into 16 of them are still pending.   

 Four unlicensed activities have been withdrawn.  

Two were issued cease and desists.  And two were 

withdrawn, because after further review of their 

information we found that they were not, they were not 

violating our statute, 648.  And three of those 

unlicensed activities have been paid.  Two were 

bodyguards.  From those two that were paid, unlicensed 

activities, one is getting licensed.  You'll probably 

see them at a future Board hearing.  And another one is 
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a security company.  They paid their citation.  They are 

no longer pursuing to get licensed, and they partnered 

with another licensee to make them compliant in our 

state.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Very good.  Thank you, 

Lori.  

 Does the Board have any questions regarding 

that report?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I don't have -- Mr. Chair, 

it's Ray Flynn.  I don't have any questions, but I just 

want to commend.  There is something that we asked for.  

And I love the reporting out.  It gives us a good feel 

of what's going on when we're not around.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  I agree.  Thank you.  

 Okay.  Director Ingram, anything additional 

that you have?  

  MR. INGRAM:  No, that's all I have at this 

time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Would you mind 

introducing staff that are present at the meeting, 

please.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, absolutely.  So on the far 

left, I don't know if you could see her up there, we 

have Gisela Corral.  Gisela's our Licensing Specialist.  

Next to her, we have Paul Maxwell; he's one of our 
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investigators here in the south.  Shelly Donald, an 

investigator in the south.  Zachary Swarthout, an 

investigator in the south.  Lori Irizarry is my Chief of 

Operations.  And Vincent Saladino, he's our Supervisory 

Investigator.  And then to my left, we have Board 

Counsel Rosalie Bordelove. 

  In the north, there to your right is Mary 

Klemme; she's my northern Office Manager and 

jack-of-all-trades.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Very good.  Thank you.  

Thanks, Kevin.  Okay.  Any other announcements or 

reports or anything of that nature, Kevin?  Nothing?  

  MR. INGRAM:  No.  But if you'd like me to go 

through now, I can tell you there's some items on the 

agenda that have either been postponed or withdrawn.  

Would you like me to do that now?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please proceed.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So item number 15 on the 

agenda, Envista Forensics, LLC, was unable to attend 

today.  They've requested to be postponed to the 

September Board meeting.   

  Item number 19, Alfredo Francisco has withdrawn 

his application.   

  Item numbers 49 and -- well, item number 49, 

Trenses Love has requested to postpone his work card 
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denial until September.   

  Item number 60, Scott Macrina has requested 

that his hearing be postponed until September as well.  

 The last one was 60.  

 Item number 66 on the agenda, Torrey Mitchell, 

appealing the unlicensed activity citation, has been 

postponed until the September Board meeting.   

 And item number 67, Dominique Fuiava, has been 

postponed for the September meeting as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Very good.  And we've 

been -- we will not be having any meeting tomorrow.  Is 

that correct?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That's correct.  The meeting for 

tomorrow has been cancelled.  So we'll be finishing up 

everything on the agenda today.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Very good.  

Thank you, Kevin.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Reviewing and approving 

the transcripts.  Any adjustments or corrections to the 

transcripts?   

  If not, I'd accept a motion to approve the 

transcripts.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  Make the 

motion to accept.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion and a second for approval of the transcripts.  

Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in all in favor, signify by 

saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 Passes unanimously.  

 One, before, before we do the swearing, I would 

like to make an announcement that I have to leave at 

12:00 noon.  And Board Member Flynn will be taking over 

the mantle of chairing the meeting.  So.  

 Okay.  It's now time to swear in all applicants 

and witnesses.  If you plan on testifying, please stand 

and be sworn in.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Will you please raise your 

right hand.  Do you swear that the testimony you give 

today will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing 

but the truth?  

 (All applicants and potential witnesses present 

in Las Vegas and Carson City were sworn in.)  

 MS. BORDELOVE:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  At this point, I 

would accept a motion for a block vote.  Do we have any, 
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do we have a motion for a block vote?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Mr. Chairman, I move to 

have a block vote approved.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And which items?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Items number 7, 8, 19, 11, 

12, 13.  And did we remove 16, Mr. Ingram? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  We removed 15.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Wait.  16 and then 18. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Can you repeat that again, 

please?  Yeah.  Yeah, you jumped around.  That's why.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  That's 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 

12, 13, 16 and 18.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  And so if I'm 

understanding you correctly, it did not include 6, 14 

and 17; is that correct?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, would you like me to 

read those into the record?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, I want to add 17.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, you want to add something? 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  17, yes. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Mr. Chairman, can I change 
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that?  I wanted to add 17.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Add 17.  Okay.  

 Kevin, please read them into the record.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So item number 7, Rancho 

Security's Services, LLC, license number 875, seeking 

member approval for Zlata Zujic and Nenad Stojanovic. 

  Item number 8, E-Backgroundchecks.com, Inc., 

license number 1574, requesting a corporate name change 

to Backgroundchecks.com, LLC.  Craig Kessler will remain 

the qualifying agent.   

  Item number 9, Zugress Security Services, Inc., 

license number 2126, is requesting a corporate name 

change to NY SEB Inc.  Perry J. Bonarrigo will remain 

the qualifying agent. 

  Item number 10, Specialized Protection & 

Security, LLC, dba RMS Protective Services, license 

number 2294, requesting a corporate name change to RMS 

Protective Services, LLC.  Steven Rachminov will remain 

the qualifying agent.   

  Item number 11, Certified Talent, LLC is 

applying for a new private investigator license.  If 

approved, Brian F. McElwee, license number 2277, is 

requesting that his individual license be kept in 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

  Item number 12, Teflon Security, LLC is 
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applying for a new private patrolman license.  If 

approved, James M. Harden, license number 2016 is 

requesting that his individual license be placed in 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

Member to be approved is Andre L. Bailey.   

  Item number 13, Event Staffing Professionals, 

Inc., applying for a new private patrolman license.  If 

approved, Vincenzo Esposito is requesting that his 

individual license be kept in abeyance so that he may 

become the qualifying agent.  Corporate officer to be 

approved is Glen Ratcliff. 

  Item number 16, 3 Sixty Secure Corp is applying 

for a new private patrolman license.  If approved, Kurt 

Strakaluse is requesting to transfer his qualifying 

agent status from 30MinuteSecurity.com, LLC, license 

number 1662.  Corporate officers to be approved are 

Thomas W. Gerstenecker and Carlo Rigillo. 

  Item number 17, Executive Security & 

Protection, Inc., license number 2237, is applying for a 

new canine handler license.  If approved, Gregory B. 

Conner is requesting to transfer his qualifying agent 

status from High Powered Protection Dogs, LLC, license 

number 1723.   

  Item number 18, Topgun Security Solutions, LLC 

is applying for a new private investigator and private 
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patrolman license.  If approved, Daniel E. Holley is 

requesting that his individual licenses, license number 

2611 be kept in abeyance so that he may become the 

qualifying agent.  Member to be approved is Ellen R. 

Holley.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

for a block vote on those.  Do we have a second on the 

motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn seconds.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'd like some 

discussion on it. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll hold.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yeah, do we -- so we 

have a motion and a second.  Do we have discussion?   

  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  Gronauer.  Yeah, 

I would like to, I'd like to have number 7 and 16 heard 

here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Number 7 and number 16?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, please. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Ms. Nixon, do you want to 

modify your motion to remove the two he requested?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, I would like to 

modify it.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  And, Flynn, would you modify 
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the second? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, I'll modify my second 

to remove those two, 7 and 16. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Is there any 

additional discussion on the motion?  

  Is there any public comment on it, is there any 

public comment?  

  MR. INGRAM:  None in the south.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  So we have 

a motion.  We have a second.  All in favor of the 

motion, signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed? 

  The motion passes unanimously. 

  Anyone that may be in the audience, associated 

with those items that were just included in the block 

vote, there is -- unless you would like to watch the 

entertainment, you're welcome to be released.  

 All right.  We'll then move on to item 

number 6, American Protection Group, Incorporated.  

 (There was a brief discussion in Carson City 

off the record regarding the Reporter's concern about 

not being able to hear some of the people in Las Vegas.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

Member Gronauer? 
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We're going to have to 

ask you to speak up, because we're having a hard time 

hearing you when you do talk. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn, for the record.   

I have never heard that before in my life.  

  (There was laughter.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  In over 30 years of 

knowing him.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I want a copy of that 

transcript, please.  

  (There was laughter.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Very good.  

Number 6, American Protection Group, Incorporated.  

Please identify yourself, and let us know what your 

plans are, please.  

  MR. BROWN:  Anthony Brown for American 

Protection Group.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And it's my -- you're 

just adding a corporate officer to the license?  

  MR. BROWN:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Did any members 

have any questions of Mr. Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Mr. Brown, this is 

Commissioner Nixon.  I had some questions about your 
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financials, the status.  Could you explain a little bit 

more about the situation with that.  

  MR. BROWN:  Absolutely.  We have, or I have 

acquired a service called Rush Task to mitigate the 

situation with the IRS and as well as the California 

State Franchise Tax Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Could you explain that a 

little bit more about how the situation started.  

Because it sounds like it has something to do with a 

government shutdown, but it wasn't -- I wasn't quite 

clear on how the situation started.  

  MR. BROWN:  Understood.  We've submitted 

paperwork that both agencies have required.  The federal 

government shutdown didn't help the process of getting 

this information out to them in a timely fashion.  So 

that information was submitted.  And we are still 

mitigating the situation.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So at this point, you 

think you owe approximately $7,000 to IRS?   

  MR. BROWN:  Um. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Oh, to be paid, $7,000.  

  MR. BROWN:  The total fees for owed, back-owed 

taxes have been satisfied.  We are negotiating within, 

regarding returns for taxes, penalties, assessments, and 

back fines that weren't assessed at the time.  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So at this time, 

then, you don't know how much you owe?  

  MR. BROWN:  No.  The attorneys are working on 

that.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Those are my questions.  

Thank you.  

  MR. BROWN:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I 

have a question for you, Mr. Brown. 

  MR. BROWN:  Absolutely.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The investigator has 

asked for your records at least two times.  And they 

have not received them, from what I understand.  Could 

you tell us what -- do you have any paperwork with you 

telling us what you're telling us?  

  MR. BROWN:  Oh, I have submitted plenty of 

paperwork to the investigator.  Unfortunately, some of 

the questioning in regards to what is outstanding is 

what is in question, because there has been 

modifications done during the process.  So those actual 

totals have changed.  And that is the reason why I 

cannot provide accurate numbers at the very moment.  But 

this has been and I have provided the investigator with 

the documentation of the firm that is handling the taxes 

and any other correspondence.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  That firm addressed 

that to the Private Investigators Licensing Board, or 

did you --   

  MR. BROWN:  No, no.  To the investigator.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Because I'm 

not a fan of things that are pending, whether criminal 

or civil.  

  MR. BROWN:  Understood.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And so I have, I just 

have some problem with that.  Because the way I 

understood it when I read the report, you were asked, 

you were asked more than once for the total.  And I 

understand your situation, also, at the same time, but.  

  MR. BROWN:  It makes it really difficult, while 

information that was submitted and then a government 

shutdown did occur, sir.  So, unfortunately, things 

didn't transpire as quickly as we were hoping to have 

this done.  And I did ask if we should postpone this so 

we should, we'd have, be able to have a little bit more 

ample time to get the answers that are needed for the 

Board.  I was told that it would be okay to go ahead and 

proceed.   

  I have shown evidence that the back taxes have 

been paid.  I have submitted evidence in regards to the 

documentations, the tax filings.  So those 
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documentations have been submitted for the record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Investigator Donald?  

  MS. DONALD:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Do you want to weigh in 

on this?  

  MS. DONALD:  Sure.  I've been working with 

Mr. Brown for several months.  Every time I've emailed 

him, he's provided me information I need.  We do have 

proof that he has paid his back taxes.  I just was never 

able to get a definite amount owed from him because, 

like he said, with the government shutdown and then the 

situation changing, he wasn't sure of the total amount. 

  But he has been making an effort, and he has 

provided me everything that I've asked for that he's 

been able to acquire.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where did those 

documents you provided, where did they come from; did 

they come from this Rush place, or did they --   

  MS. DONALD:  Some of them did.  But some of -- 

some of them are proof of payment that he paid the IRS.  

I have receipts and statements of payment made to the 

IRS.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I believe, the original 

question was -- sorry.  I don't want to put words in 

your mouth.  But, I believe, it was how did this all 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

38 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

come about, not the government shutdown.  Is this prior 

to the government shutdown when you had this problem?  

  MR. BROWN:  Absolutely, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That's what I'm  

trying to figure out.  How did it come about? 

  MR. BROWN:  Negligence on my part, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  No 

further questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 

questions from the Board members?   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, this is Ray Flynn.  

  Mr. Brown, why don't you explain to me.  So 

what type of business or security work does this firm do 

in the state of Nevada?  

  MR. BROWN:  We provide security services, both 

patrol as well as tending cars.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Where?  

  MR. BROWN:  Throughout the greater Las Vegas 

metropolitan area.  Sometimes in Henderson.  Sometimes, 

you know, just --  

  (Interruption by cell phone ringing.)  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You're doing it like at 

stores, casinos, high-security government sites?  

  MR. BROWN:  No, mostly commercial, residential, 

apartment complexes, shopping centers. 
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And so why don't you 

explain to me about the back wages that was all owed, 

complaint on you.  

  MR. BROWN:  That's easily explainable. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I hope so.  

  MR. BROWN:  Because we are based in the state 

of California -- labor laws are quite different in the 

state of California than it is here in Nevada -- there 

was a misinterpretation during the semimonthly payroll 

versus a semimonthly payroll in a federal statute.  So 

those were not understood correctly.  So that's where we 

have found ourselves in a bind.  So we did correct that.  

And to this very moment, we are very compliant in 

regards to that.  We've actually changed from a 

semimonthly to a biweekly payroll, to avoid any 

misunderstanding.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Any 

additional questions?  

 Sir, I do, I have a question.  What is your 

role in the corporation?  

  MR. BROWN:  I am now the president and CEO.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 All right.  And no additional questions.  Is 

there any public comment?  
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 Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion for 

denial at this time.  I don't have enough information.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion from Member Gronauer.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I don't know if this is 

resolved or not.  That's my biggest concern.  And I 

understand there was a government shutdown, but that was 

a long time ago.  I'd be more comfortable if I knew that 

this was all resolved.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. BROWN:  If I may?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, you may not.  

  MR. BROWN:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Member 

Nixon, do you have any comments or any discussion?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I feel the same way.  

Sorry.  Yes, thank you.  I feel the same way.  I want to 

understand how much is -- he ends up owing and a payment 

or some other plan before we move forward.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Member Gronauer?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir, I'm fine right 

now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  We 

have a motion.  We have a second.  

 Mr. Brown, you wanted to add a comment.  I'll 

let you add a comment only because I wanted to see where 

you were going.  

  MR. BROWN:  Understood.  I just wanted to let  

the Board know we are trying to mitigate this situation 

through the proper channels, through an attorney that is 

very knowledgeable with the tax codes.  I am not.  And 

we are progressing as information is given to us.  So 

I'm not trying to walk away from the situation.  I have 

done everything I can --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right. 

  MR. BROWN:  -- in my power to be sure -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you, Mr. Brown.  

  Yeah, this is for counsel or for Kevin.  If he 

is denied, how soon can he reapply if he gets everything 

sorted out accordingly?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  So I don't think on licenses 

there's any requirements regarding when to reapply.  But 

you could also at this point, if it's more information 

you wanted, see if he'd rather postpone it, so he 

doesn't have to go through the whole licensing 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

42 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

application again, postpone it pending more information, 

either if he could agree to it, you could make a motion 

to table this.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Brown, do you 

understand what we're talking about?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So, I think, I'm going 

to -- I think, I'm going to vote against the motion.  I 

think, we're looking for information.  I don't know that 

suitability or anything of that nature has been 

established at this point, pending getting that 

information.  I'd be much more comfortable with a 

postponement or to table it for additional information.  

I think, that's my position.  

 So we'll take a vote on the motion.  All in 

favor of the motion to deny Mr. Brown the corporate 

officer status --   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair?  Mr. Chair? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. chair, it's Ray Flynn.  

Correct me if I'm wrong.  I understand where you're 

going.  And in the past, I recall, we've asked the 

applicant if they wanted to, before we voted, so we 
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could change the motion.  I'd like to proceed that route 

instead of taking the vote right now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  You're the maker 

of the motion, if I remember correctly.  So I need --  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Is the maker of the 

motion willing to withdraw the motion?  I guess, that's 

the question.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer, the 

maker of the motion, is willing to withdraw the motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  And is the 

second willing to withdraw their second?   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, I'm willing to 

withdraw my second.  And I would like to address the 

applicant.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please, go right ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Brown, if we 

were to do a vote, and if the vote was to pass in the 

prior motion, you would have to wait a year before 

coming before us.  

  MR. BROWN:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  What we're offering you is 

if you voluntarily, that if you want to postpone it on 

your own, you could come before us at the next meeting.  

  MR. BROWN:  Okay.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And, hopefully, between 

the attorneys --   

  MR. BROWN:  I see.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- and whatever work 

you're doing, you'll be able to supply information to 

the investigator that this is closed, everything's 

up-to-date, everything's fine.  So the ball is in your 

court.  

  MR. BROWN:  Understood.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So what would you like to 

do?  

  MR. BROWN:  It would like to table this. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You'd like to postpone 

it --  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- to the next meeting? 

  MR. BROWN:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  With that said --  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, did you hear 

that?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes.  And with that 

said, I'd accept a motion for the postponement.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion for postponement, postponement to --   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  To the next meeting.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- the next meeting. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a 

motion, and we have a second.  Discussion on the motion?  

  Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Mr. Brown, 

please try to work on getting that information together, 

please.  All right. 

  MR. BROWN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Get with your attorney.  

Get with your attorney.  

  MR. BROWN:  Understood.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Good luck to 

you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Moving 

right along, I see number 7, Rancho Security Services, 

LLC.  Are they here?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is there anyone here 

from -- anyone here?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Rancho Security 

Services?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Zlata Zujic or Nenad Stojanovic? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I pulled this because 
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they didn't show for the last meeting.  And there was 

some questions on here I had about the DUI that's 

pending on one of them.  There is some financial things 

besides the bankruptcy that I want to know about.   

  With that, if they don't want to show, I just 

have a -- my opinion is that I have a problem with them 

not showing up for two meetings in a row.  They've been 

on the agenda.  They've been notified.  So I hate to 

just say, you know, let's deny it.  But, again, they 

have had two opportunities to be here.  And that just 

gives me a little bit of angst.  And if you care about 

your business, you care what you're doing, I think, you 

should show up and answer some questions.  There's a lot 

of people in this audience right now and, also, in the 

north, I'm sure, that are there because they want to 

represent their companies and say what's going on. 

  With that, I have to make a motion right now 

that the way I feel is for denial of number 7, Rancho 

Security Services, license number 875, seeking a member 

approval for -- I might hurt these names -- Zlata Zujic 

and Nenad Stojanovic.  This is subject to.  And that's 

my motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

by Member Gronauer for denial.  Do we have a second on 

the motion?   
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Member Nixon.  I 

second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Discussion on 

the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, Ray Flynn.  I'd 

like to ask the investigator a couple questions just to 

get it on the record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Go right ahead.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell, this is 

yours.  Have you had any communication with the 

applicants?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  I spoke to them --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We can't -- I'm sorry.  

We can't hear.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You might want to move up. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, you might have to 

sit there. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Ready? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  I did notify them when I spoke to 

them in reference to the DUI, which they provided the 

court documents on.  Mr. Stojanovic did complete the 

program that he was meant to complete.  And he is on 

probation until May of 2020 for DUI.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Did you tell them that the 
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Board wanted to see them?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  I told them that the meeting was 

on the 20th and to be here at 9:00 o'clock, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So you did tell them the 

Board wanted to see them?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Then, 

the other thing, I'd just confirm, both these applicants 

live in Las Vegas.  It's not like we're dealing with 

someone that has to fly in from the East Coast.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  To my knowledge, they do live in 

Las Vegas, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm good, 

Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So we have a 

motion, and we have a second.  Is there any public 

discussion, any public comment?   

  Seeing none --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  -- all in favor of the 

motion, signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  Nay. 

 So the motion passes three to one.  

  All right.  We'll move on to number item 14, 
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Andrews Global Security, Incorporated.  

  MR. INGRAM:  They're present in the south.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning, 

gentlemen.  

  MR. COX:  Good morning.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourselves and explain what you're embarking on.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah, I'm Lee Andrews, the CEO of 

Andrews Global Security.  And we're looking for our 

license out here in Nevada.  

  MR. COX:  Robert Cox.  I'm applying for 

qualifying agent for Andrews Global once they're 

approved.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Questions from 

the Board.  Board Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  For Mr. Andrews, you -- 

there was some unlicensed activity in Las Vegas in the 

bidding.  Could you explain that a little, little bit 

further. 

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah, we acquired a company in 

California, doing business under the name JRM.  And we 

do a lot of work with Dick Clark Productions in 
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California.  And they do a couple events out here in 

Nevada.  We thought we were compliant, being a corporate 

officer of the company there and doing work as just 

consulting for them.  And we partnered with Bob's 

company, Hi-Tech Security, when it was licensed and out 

here.  A few of the corporate officers didn't have their 

guard cards out here.  And they thought they were okay.  

Once we found out, we had them licensed through Bob's 

company.  And, I believe, we were compliant after that. 

  Is that right?  

  MR. COX:  Correct.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  And then we were happy to pay the 

fee once we found out.  And, you know, it won't happen 

again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Any, any more 

questions?  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You first.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sorry.  The last question 

I had was the outstanding case, a trademark 

infringement, because I know your name is Andrews, but.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yes.  Yeah, absolutely.  I had an 

ammunition company called Andrews Ammo.  And when I 

started the security company, I -- I used my last name, 

Andrews Global Security.  And my father also had a 

security company, Andrews International.  But when it 
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was acquired by another company, they dissolved that.  

And I -- it didn't even occur to me that it would be an 

issue.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  MR. ANDREWS:  So they did file a case against 

us when we started winning contracts.  And we -- we've 

done a lot.  Honestly, they don't really have a case.  

But we filed a dba in California.  All our licenses 

changed.  All the brand names changed.  We're very 

compliant with everything.  And then we're happy to do 

that here, if needed.  But our lawyers assure us that 

there is no case.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  I have a question 

for the counsel lady.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  (The Reporter indicated we could not hear 

Las Vegas.) 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I think, her question may have 

been off the record.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It was a sidebar.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Let's take a 

two-minute break.  

  (There was a period off the record, 9:44 to 

9:46 a.m.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We're back on 
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the record.   

  Member Nixon, did you have any questions, any 

additional questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  We're back.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 

questions, Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'd like to ask, if 

possible, because I may need to recuse myself.  Who 

acquired your company?  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Sorry?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Who acquired the company, 

Andrews, and filed a case against you?  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Andrews International was 

acquired by a company called U.S. Security seven years 

ago.  And then U.S. Security was just purchased by 

Allied Universal.  So we're very far removed from the 

original.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Right.  Okay.  So, then, I 

have to recuse myself from any decision being made today 

on behalf of this situation.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  So just to clarify the 

disclosure, the disclosure is due to your employment 
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relationship with Allied?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Allied Universal, yes.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sorry.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Oh.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Board Member 

Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  And let me 

tell you, you have the name now. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And, sir, Mr. Andrews? 

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You know, just going 

through, it was 4-19 was supplied to me.  You explained 

that.  I'm okay with that.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And then 3-19, the 

month before, was this lawsuit, correct, or 

infringement? 

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And you said something, 

they don't really have a case, which means there's a 

case pending.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  We're in the -- what do you mean 

by that?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, you explain it to 

me.  You're the one that said they don't really have a 

case.  It sounds to me, okay, that it was inferred, by 

your statement, that you said they don't have a case.  

And prior to that, you said something about how it's 

gone about.  So is there a lawsuit or not a lawsuit, is 

it pending or not pending?  

  MR. ANDREWS:  There is a pending lawsuit that's 

being dealt with.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Is there a concern with that 

specifically?  I know you don't like pending lawsuits.  

But we can provide information that may be helpful.  Are 

you worried about that? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, who's the 

investigator on this one?  

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Investigator Swarthout. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Can I ask you a 

question, please? 

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Did you get 

into, delve into this a little deeper and drill down 

into it and see what's going on with this case?   

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  I talked with Mr. Cox.  He, 

essentially, said the same thing that Lee Andrews did.  
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He had already had a conversation with him.  We do have 

another reference from court through pay serve now on it 

that discussed where it's at.  It hasn't moved any 

forward.  All it shows on paper is that they were 

served.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, you said -- and I 

said earlier, and you were listening.  Okay.  And I'm 

sorry, but I have a problem, when we have cases pending, 

that we don't know what that has to do with you in the 

future. 

  MR. ANDREWS:  Are you worried about insolvency 

of the company, or what is the main fear there?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The company being -- 

having to feel that we have, for you, yourself, have had 

a lawsuit.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  We have -- we have plenty of 

financial backing.  And I'm happy to provide statements.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You did -- again, I'll 

just again to the investigator.  You did drill down.  

Did you feel comfortable with it, with the information 

you know now?  You're a little closer than I am.  

  MR. INGRAM:  For the record, Kevin Ingram.  I 

think --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's probably am unfair 

question. 
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  MR. INGRAM:  I think, that's kind of a --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's an unfair question 

put to you.  I'm sorry about that.  I'm good where we're 

at.  Thank you.  Thank you, Kevin.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Ray Flynn.  

Have you got any other?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I'm good.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  Explain this 

trademark infringement.  I'm missing something 

somewhere.  And --   

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah, absolutely.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I understand you.  Okay.  

I don't understand what you're trying to communicate.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  In terms of what the case is, or?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  So I named my company Andrews 

Global Security.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Right.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  And my father 30 years ago had a 

company called Andrews International.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Right.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  That was sold a couple times.  

And throughout that time, that company was dissolved.  

But what they're claiming is that because my -- I've 

been using the name Andrews, that I've been winning 
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clients and contracts using my name.  Which I'm allowed 

to use my name.  So that's why I said they don't have a 

case.  But that was not a legal representation or 

anything.  That was my opinion.   

  So, in California, we've gone by AGS, just the 

initials, and we filed a dba with that.  And we're happy 

to do that here.  It's really -- I feel it won't be 

necessary.  But that's where we're at right now.   

  Does that make sense?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, it's a lot clearer 

now. 

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah, absolutely.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 

questions from members?  

 Any public comment?   

 Seeing no public comment, I would entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask 

Mr. Cox if he's got anything to add.  

  MR. COX:  Other than I've worked with both 

Andrews and helping engaging us through the 

investigators, I've been -- I was the qualifying agent 

for Andrews 13 years ago, before I started my own 

business, Hi-Tech Security, six years ago.  And should 

the Board approve AGS today, Andrews Global Security 
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today, then I'm folding up Hi-Tech Security to become 

their qualifying agent.  So I could vouch for 

Mr. Andrews and what he states for today.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm good.  Thank 

you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Is anyone -- I'm 

prepared to accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  This is Ray Flynn.  Just 

to get this moving, I will make a motion to approve.  

And I'm satisfied with the answers to the questions.  

And the little bit I know about trademark infringement, 

in terms of what's going on with the last name being 

used, I don't think this has anything to do with the 

quality or the integrity of their security services.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Yeah.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So we have a motion to 

approve by Member Flynn.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a second.  

Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  
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 The motion carries unanimously on a three-zero 

vote, with Member Nixon recusing herself. 

 Okay.  Congratulations, gentlemen.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Thank you guys.  

  MR. COX:  Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Thank 

you, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 15 was 

postponed.   

  Item number 16, 3 Sixty Secure Corp.  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Good morning. 

  MR. RIGILLO:  Good morning, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning, 

gentlemen.  Please introduce yourselves and sort 

through, let us know what you're -- how you want to 

proceed.  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Sure.  Kurt Strakaluse, 

qualifying agent, 30MinuteSecurity, license number 1662.  

  MR. ANDREWS:  Tony Guimond, director of guard 

services, 3 Sixty. 

  MR. RIGILLO:  And Carlo Rigillo, chief 

financial officer of 3 Sixty Secure Corp.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  And you're 

requesting a new private patrol license and then the 

corporate officer approvals and that.   

  Member Gronauer, I think, you had some 
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questions, I believe?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, I did.   

  You guys are from Canada?  

 MR. RIGILLO:  We are, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Because I'm 

unfamiliar with the military stuff in Canada, just so 

you know.  All right?  So there's some questions I have.  

  Mr. Ger --  

  MR. RIGILLO:  Gerstenecker.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  

Gerstenecker.  Because on that application is military 

and military type of discharge, and it said other.  I 

don't know what other means, out of all the ones that 

were on there.  From honorable, dishonorable, all kinds 

of stuff, you just put other.  Then you put retired in 

sub 5 over here.  So I don't know what that means.  

  MR. RIGILLO:  Right.  He left the military in 

2001 of his own accord to joint the United Nations, in 

the security apparatus with the United Nations.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It means he just walked 

away from the military?  I don't know.  

  MR. GUIMOND:  You can -- depending how many 

years you served, you have to, you apply for -- 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  He answered for you, 

so. 
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  MR. GUIMOND:  No, I'm not Mr. Gerstenecker.  My 

name's Tony Guimond.  Mr. Gerstenecker's not here, 

unable to travel.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That is 

something different.  

  MR. GUIMOND:  Mr. Gerstenecker was in special 

operations forces in Canada, retired.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You're Mr. Tony 

what?  

  MR. GUIMOND:  Tony Guimond.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You're Mr.?  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Strakaluse.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  And on your 

application, you only put your first name. 

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Instead of putting your 

last name.  You know, and the application says you have 

to fill in everything.  So I don't understand why you -- 

you know, you're educated man, I'm sure.  And I'm just 

saying, when I look at things, and they refuse to put 

their whole names in, it just isn't -- right?  You have 

to fill out all the blanks.  That's what it says.  All 

right? 

 And then, also, for your driver's license, 

class and state.  You didn't put it in there, what kind 
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of driver's license you have, what class, what state.  

If it's out of Canada, you can still say that.  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  That was an oversight.  I 

apologize, yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The other one for DUI, 

do you want to explain it?  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Sure.  That happened several 

years ago.  I went through the whole process and took 

care of everything.  It was a holiday.  It was 

Thanksgiving, Christmas.  And I did everything I was 

supposed to, and I took care of it.  And all the years 

I've been a QA, I've shown that I'm an upstanding guy.  

So I took care of all those issues.  And that's where 

I'm at.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And I read it and it 

says that you are clean and sober and all that.  And I 

appreciate that.  I think, it takes at a lot of work to 

do that.  And I commend you for that.  

 All right.  I just wondered why.  So, to me,  

you're solid.  I had a little area.  Thank you.  I 

appreciate it.  

 That's all I have, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Thank you. 

  Do any other members have questions?  Member 

Nixon?  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I've got a couple.  

Just one of the three of you explain to me what your 

company does and what you want to do in Nevada.  

  MR. GUIMOND:  Sir, we provide security in 

Canada.  We do armed, armed guards for transport in 

Canada, as well as the facility, mostly cannabis retail 

locations in Canada.  So we're slowly moving into the 

United States.  That's why we need to come in line with 

Mr. Kurt here.  And, basically, guard services is what 

we're looking at doing in Nevada.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 

questions?   

  Is there any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I 

pulled it off the consent agenda, I guess you would call 

it.  Okay.  And I'm comfortable enough to make this 

motion.    

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion to 

approve Sixty Secure Corp.  

  MR. RIGILLO:  3 Sixty.  
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  MR. GUIMOND:  3 Sixty.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  3 Sixty Secure Corp is 

applying for a new private patrolman license.  If 

approved, Kurt Strakaluse is requesting to transfer his 

qualified agent status from 30MinuteSecurity.com, LLC, 

license number 1662.  And corporate officers to be 

approved is Thomas Gerstenecker and Carlo Rigillo.  

That's my motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Subject to all 

statutory and regulatory requirements?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.  I'm sorry.  

Subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

  Do we have a second on the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

for approval and a second.  And discussion on the 

motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  

Congratulations.  Good luck.  

  MR. RIGILLO:  Thank you very much. 
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  MR. GUIMOND:  Thank you very much.  

  MR. STRAKALUSE:  Thank you, gentlemen.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 19 was 

withdrawn. 

  We will move on to item number 20, Lemieux & 

Associates, LLC.  

  MR. MOLNAR:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning, sir.  

Please identify yourself and tell us a little bit about 

you and your intentions.  

  MR. MOLNAR:  My name is Robert Molnar.  I'm one 

of the partners for Lemieux & Associates, a private 

investigation company headquartered out of Connecticut.  

And we've made the decision to expand nationwide due to 

client request.  And this is one of my last states.  So.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  How many states are you 

in?  

  MR. MOLNAR:  47 until we get this one.  We're 

not going to do Alaska or Hawaii.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  

  MR. MOLNAR:  Just for vacations.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Thank you.  

 Do any of the members have any questions? 

Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, sir.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  You did one 

year in the Navy?  

  MR. MOLNAR:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I have no other 

questions.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 

any public comment?   

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  This is Ray Flynn.  I'll 

make the motion that Lemieux & Associates, LLC be 

granted a new corporate private investigator license.  

Robert D. Molnar is applying for an individual private 

investigator license.  If this is approved, he is 

requesting that his individual license be placed into 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

Members to be approved are Robert D. Molnar and 

George A. Lemieux II.  This is subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 
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second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor, signify by saying 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Good luck, 

Mr. Molnar.  

  MR. MOLNAR:  Thank you very much.  Can I say 

one thing real quickly?  This is -- I've gone through 

this with a number of states.  This is the most 

professional and organized one I've gone through.  So 

it's just so you know.  You notice I said that after I 

got approved, so.  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can we revisit this?  

  MR. MOLNAR:  I just know it was awesome.  So. 

thank you.  It was great.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you for the 

comments.  We appreciated that.  

 Number 21, JD Consulting & Investigation, LLC.  

  Good morning, sir.  

  MR. DICKEY:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background and 

what your intentions are.  

  MR. DICKEY:  Good morning.  My name is Joseph 
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Dickey.  I'm applying for a new corporate private 

investigator license for a company I'm starting called 

JD Consulting & Investigation.  I've been an FBI agent 

in Las Vegas since 1997.  I'm retiring next month.  

Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  How many 

years with the FBI?  

  MR. DICKEY:  1997.  I actually had a private 

sector engagement from 2005 to 2006.  So that backed me 

up to just over 20 years.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Congratulations on your 

retirement.  

  MR. DICKEY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any questions from the 

Board?  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just -- yes.  

Mr. Dickey and I are not friends or related in any way, 

but I've known of Mr. Dickey for quite some time.  I 

don't know if you know me. 

  MR. DICKEY:  I do.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The idea is we've never 

had any relationship, I don't think, just the background 

of it.  I don't think I have any problem voting on this.  

  MR. DICKEY:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you for the 
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disclosure.  

 Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 

any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Tammy Nixon.  I 

move that JD Consulting & Investigations, LLC is 

approved for the new corporate private investigator 

license.  Joseph G. Dickey is applying to have an 

individual private license.  If approved, he is 

requesting that his individual license be placed into 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

This is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  I have a motion for 

approval.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing no discussion, all in favor of the 

motion, signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")    
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 It passes unanimously.   

 Kevin, do we need to put his license in 

abeyance until his retirement from the FGI is effective?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That's correct.  He'll place it in 

abeyance.  As soon as we get the retirement paperwork 

from him, we can activate it without coming before the 

Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's like next month? 

  MR. DICKEY:  Yes, July 31st.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Well, good 

luck.  Thank you.  You've been approved.  

  MR. DICKEY:  Great.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Good luck. 

  MR. DICKEY:  Sounds good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 22, RMS 

Protective Services, LLC.  

  Good morning.  

  MR. BRENTNALL:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background, and 

tell us what your intentions are.  

  MR. BRENTNALL:  Lyndon Brentnall, COO of RMS, 

licensed in Florida.  We do private investigation work 
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and also armed security in Florida.  Looking to expand 

and do a lot more work over here in Las Vegas, 

specifically surveillance detection and technical 

service-related items.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.   

  Any questions from the members?  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  None at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  None, sir.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 

any public comment?  

 Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm Gronauer.  I'll 

make a motion to approve.  RMS Protective Service, LLC 

is applying for a new corporate private investigator  

license, Lyndon C. Brentnall applying for an individual 

private investigator license.  If approved, he is 

requesting that his individual license be placed into 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

This is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion.  Do 

we have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Do we have any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Mr. Brentnall, 

good luck, and you've been approved.  

  MR. BRENTNALL:  Thank you, sir.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Congratulations. 

  MR. BRENTNALL:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Moving on to number 23, 

Alfred Lozano.   

  Is Mr. Lozano there?  Oh, yeah, there he is.  

Okay.  

  MR. LOZANO:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning.  

  MR. LOZANO:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background, and 

tell us what your intentions are.  

  MR. LOZANO:  Good morning.  My name is Alfred 

Lozano.  I retired from the San Diego Police Department 

on July 1st, 2017, after 28 years.  I had about 18, 18 
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years of investigative experience, the last 10 years 

worked in a homicide unit.  Currently, I am working with 

the CoventBridge Group, which is an investigative group 

out of Jacksonville, Florida.  We're, I believe, in all 

50 states.  And I'm applying to be the qualifying agent 

for the corporation here in Nevada.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.   

  Any questions from the Board?  Board Member 

Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah.  Just, I'm just a 

little confused on your background.  You've got -- 

unless you did the -- had the wrong dates, you don't 

have 28 years down for San Diego police force.  

  MR. LOZANO:  There was two years of reserve. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Oh, two years.  Okay.  Got 

it.  All right.  I'm good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Do we have 

any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I'll make the 

motion that Alfred Lozano be granted an individual 
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private investigator license.  If this is approved, he 

is requesting that his individual license be placed into 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent for 

CoventBridge (USA), Inc., license number 1187.  This is 

subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And we have a second.  

So we have a motion and a second.  Discussion on the 

motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 Mr. Lozano, you've been approved.  Good luck.  

Go forth.  Do good.  

  MR. LOZANO:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Congratulations.  

  MR. LOZANO:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Number 24, James T. 

Born.  

  Good morning, sir.  

  MR. BORN:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 
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yourself, give us your background, and tell us what your 

intentions are.  

  MR. BORN:  My name is James Born.  I've been a 

licensed investigator in California for 41 years.  I was 

licensed in Nevada 1988 to 2000, I believe it was, 12 

years anyway.  My wife had multiple sclerosis at that 

time, became quadriplegic.  So I had to put aside 

everything to care for her.  And I'm back.  She passed 

away recently.  So I'm ready to go back to work.  I've 

got 11 years, or 12 years in the -- 11 years in the Navy 

and 12 years in the Army.  And I've had over 5,000 hours 

of training in 226 schools.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Did I see no Air Force 

mixed in there, too?  

  MR. BORN:  No, sir.  I kind of by-passed that 

one.  I probably shouldn't say that, because I'm in Air 

Force country here.  But I was mess cook at the last 

supper.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  My condolences on your 

wife, sir.  

 Do we have any Board questions?  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I just want to thank you 

for your service.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

76 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MR. BORN:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I just want to 

say thank you for your service.  You also were a deputy 

sheriff in Mineral County?  

  MR. BORN:  Captain.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Captain?  

  MR. BORN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  How long 

were you in Mineral County?  

  MR. BORN:  Well, I was up there for one year, 

because the -- I was a private investigator, so I had to 

put my license in abeyance.  And I went up there.  They 

were going through an insurance investigation for the 

entire county, and the sheriff brought me up there to 

help them with all their paperwork and organize the 

whole system.  The original sheriff what was there, 

prior to the sheriff that I was helping, didn't get 

reelected, so he destroyed everything.  And so they were 

left with a Lloyd's of London investigation without 

anybody to help them.   

  And at that time, I was teaching crime scene 

technology through Sirchie Finger Print Laboratories.  

And the sheriff and the undersheriff came down and went 

to my class, and they liked me and knew about my 
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qualifications, so they immediately got me up there.  So 

he says, "Would you come up there for at least one year?  

That's all I'm asking."  He says, "I'll make you a 

sergeant."  I said, "Well, I'll have to think about 

that.  That's a long time to put aside."  By the time we 

got through, he said, "Well, I'm going to make you a 

lieutenant."  And I went up there, and he said, "Look, 

we decided to make you a captain."  I said, "You know, 

if I had waited one more day, I probably could have had 

the sheriff's spot, you know."  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you for the 

background.  I appreciate it.  

  MR. BORN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you for all your 

service.  

  MR. BORN:  Thank you.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  So.   

  MR. BORN:  I'm sorry about that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  So do we 

have -- is there any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  It's Ray Flynn.  I'll make 

a motion to approve.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion to approve.  Do we have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a second.  

Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing no discussion, all in favor, signify by 

saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 Mr. Born, congratulations and good luck.  

  MR. BORN:  Thank you, sir.  Thank you, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Number 25, 

Maybeth G. --  I'm going to say Andrade ("An-dred-ee").  

  MS. ANDRADE:  "An-draw-dee."  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  "An-draw-dee."  Good 

morning.  Please identify yourself, give us a little bit 

of your background, and tell us what your plans are.  

  MS. ANDRADE:  Yes.  Good morning.  My name is 

Maybeth Andrade.  I'm currently working with Robert 

Lawson Investigations.  I do criminal defense.  And I'm 

hoping to continue in that field.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  And how long 

have you been an investigator?  

  MS. ANDRADE:  Going on four years in September.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Questions of the 

Board.  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Don't slip on it 
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now (pronunciation of his name).  

 The applicant -- I kind of lot my notes here.  

I believe that you worked for Robert Lawson?  

  MS. ANDRADE:  Investigations, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  For four years.  Do you 

have a work card?  

  MS. ANDRADE:  I do have, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Back there? 

  MS. ANDRADE:  Yes, I do. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And, no problem.  

No, that's it.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Member 

Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Any public 

comment? 

  Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that Maybeth G. Andrade -- sorry -- is approved for an 

individual private investigator license.  This is 

subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

for approval.  Do we have a second?  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

80 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion and a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

  Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  

Congratulations.  

  MS. ANDRADE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good luck to you. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MS. ANDRADE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Item 

number 26, ECAMSECURE.  

  MR. WORRELL:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning.  Please 

identify yourself, and give us a little bit of your 

background and what your plans are.  

  MR. WORRELL:  My name's William Worrell.  And I 

served for eight years in the United States Air Force, 

which is what brought me out here to Nevada.  I've been 

out here for about 34 years, working on and off in all 

aspects of the security industry, both electronic and 

physical, mostly electronic.  And I'm here for 
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ECAMSECURE.  I've worked for them for 14 years.  And to 

become the qualifying agent so that we can move into 

some areas where we are now going to be required to 

carry a patrolman's license.  So that's what I'm hoping 

to accomplish.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Director Ingram, 

did we have -- did we want to touch on an area before we 

go into questions?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

ECAMSECURE came before the Board at a previous Board 

meeting, and there was a question on the background for 

the member to be approved, Christopher Coffey.  The 

investigator had picked up on something that had already 

been cleared and presented to the Board when Mr. Coffey 

got licensed several years ago.  And, unfortunately, 

with the turnover in investigators, that didn't come out 

that that had already been resolved.   

  So there is no issue with Mr. Coffey's 

background.  Everything was taken care of, again, 

several years ago.  So they are returning at the request 

of the Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any member questions?  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  None at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I would accept a 

motion. 

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I'll make the 

motion that ECAMSECURE is applying for a new corporate 

private patrolman license.  William D. Worrell is 

applying for an individual private patrolman license.  

If this is approved, he is requesting that his 

individual license be placed into abeyance so that he 

may become the qualifying agent.  Member to be approved 

is Christopher L. Coffey.  This is subject to all 

statutory and regulatory requirements.   

 And for the record, he is coming back before 

us.  He has addressed our concerns.   

 And I also want to thank you for your service.  

  MR. WORRELL:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So we have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a second.  Is 

there any discussion on the motion?  
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 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  

Congratulations, Mr. Worrell.  And good luck.  

  MR. WORRELL:  Thank you.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 27 is here, 

up north, I believe.  Right?  Ball & Chain Security 

Services.  I really like that name. 

  MR. GOWER:  The chain is in the back 

(indicating a woman in audience).  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Sir, please 

identify yourself, give us some of your background, and 

tell us what your plans are.  

  MR. GOWER:  Robert Gower, 29 and a half years, 

approximately, in corrections.  I retired as the warden 

of the California Correctional Center.  A friend of mine 

called me up and asked me to help him out.  He is in the 

process of growing hemp, largest outdoor grove in the 

United States currently, mostly automated.  And it's in 

Nevada, White Pine County.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Very good.  All right.  

Do we have any member questions?  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I just want to 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

84 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

comment.  I enjoyed his application where he explained 

the lawsuits.  Just being in corrections, you're going 

to get sued.  That's important.  So I have no problem 

whatsoever.  I'm good.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment?  We have none north.  

  MR. INGRAM:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Nothing south.  Then, 

all in -- let's see.  Then, I'll -- I guess, we better 

get a motion before we can vote on it.  I'll accept a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion to approve.  Ball & Chain Security Services is 

applying for a new corporate private patrolman license.  

Robert L. Gower is applying for an individual private 

patrolman license.  If approved, he is requesting that 

his individual license be placed into abeyance so that 

he may become the qualifying agent.  This is subject to 

all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion.  And 

do we have a second?   
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion, and 

we have a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Good luck, 

Mr. Gower.  

  MR. GOWER:  Thank you.  Have a good day.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, it's Ray Flynn.  Can 

we take a five-minute bio break?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Absolutely.  Five 

minutes for a bio break.  

                        * * * * *  

(A break was taken, 10:24 to 10:35 a.m.) 

* * * * * 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, we don't know 

where Mr. Gronauer is.  I propose we move forward with 

the three of us.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Moving on, we'll 

go to item 28, Eye Witness Security.  

  Good morning, sir.  
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  MR. HOLT:  Good morning, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background --   

  MR. HOLT:  My name is --  

  BOARD MEMBER NADEAU:  -- and what your plans 

are.  

  MR. HOLT:  Okay.  My name is Derwin D. Holt.  

For the last five years, we do event staffing.  I worked 

as the number one subcontractor for Allied Security as 

well as CSC.  I also started a ministry called Worship 

to Work.  We've gainfully employed over 300 young men 

and women.  And I'm looking to bring that here in Nevada 

state, Nevada as well, with my ministry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Member 

questions.  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Is there any public 

comment?  

  MR. INGRAM:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Seeing no 

public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I'll make a 

motion that Eye Witness Security, LLC be granted a new  
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corporate private patrolman license.  Derwin D. Holt is 

applying for an individual private patrolman license.  

If approved, he's requesting that his individual license 

be held in abeyance so that he may become the qualifying 

agent.  Member to be approved is Derwin D. Holt.  This 

is subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion to 

approve.  Do we have a second? 

  (Board Member Gronauer rejoined the meeting.) 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Can I make a brief 

comment?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I do not know Mr. Holt, 

but he is a subcontractor for Allied Universal.  But 

I've not met him before, so I don't think that I even 

have a problem making a decision in this case.  I just 

wanted to put that in the record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Thank you for the disclosure.  Were you going to make a 

second, Member Nixon, were you going to do the second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I will do the second.  

Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 
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motion to approve.  Discussion on the motion? 

  Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 Passes unanimously.  Mr. Holt, congratulations.  

Good luck.  

  MR. HOLT:  Thank you guys very much.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  MR. HOLT:  God bless you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, for the record, Board 

Member Gronauer is back with us.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Did I go somewhere? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Item 

number 29, Blackstone Security Services.  

  MR. SWINDALL:  Good morning. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning.  Please 

identify yourself, give us a little bit of your 

background in the company and what your plans are.  

  MR. SWINDALL:  Yes.  Good morning, Board.   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good morning. 

  MR. SWINDALL:  My name is Dan Swindall.  I'm 

the president and CEO of Blackstone Security Services, 

based out of Phoenix, Arizona.  I have got started in 
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security as an Air Force security policeman.  And when I 

got back from overseas, I went into the security 

industry.  It's been 42 years now.  I'm the qualifying 

party for Blackstone in Arizona and New Mexico, and I 

currently sit on the DPS hearing board for the State of 

Arizona.  I'm also a member of "Viasser" (phonetic 

spelling).  And I'm applying for corporate private 

patrolman license.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 Any questions for Mr. Swindall?  Member 

Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  Again, good 

morning to you.  

  MR. SWINDALL:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You did five years in 

the Air Force?  

  MR. SWINDALL:  Correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And what type of 

discharge?  It doesn't show on here. 

  MR. SWINDALL:  Oh, it's honorable.  It's 

honorable. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And what is the 

service?  

  MR. SWINDALL:  I had a four-year tour, and I 

got orders to England.  And I was married and had a 
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small child.  And so, in order to take a family 

overseas, you had to stay for 12 months.  So I did a 

three-year tour there.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  It just wasn't 

marked, so I didn't know.  

  MR. SWINDALL:  No.  I apologize. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  That's all.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you for your 

service.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 

any public comment?  

 Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that Blackstone 

Security Services, Inc. is applying for a new corporate 

private investigator's license.  Daniel L. Swindall is 

applying for an individual private license.  If 

approved, he is requesting that his individual license 

be placed into abeyance so that he may become the 

qualifying agent.  Corporate officer to be approved is  

Daniel L. Swindall.  This is subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  And we have 

a motion and a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 It passes unanimously.  Good luck, 

Mr. Swindall.  And go forth.  Congratulations.  

  MR. SWINDALL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Thank 

you, Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 30, Timothy 

Wells.  

  Good morning, sir.  

  MR. WELLS:  Good morning, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of background on you and 

what your -- and the company, and your plans.  

  MR. WELLS:  Yes, sir.  My name is Timothy 

Wells.  I am with Bedrock Protection Agency, since 

December of this year became the branch manager.  I'm 
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retired military, 20 years with the Army.  From there, 

moved to Las Vegas.  Well, let me kind of go back up.  I 

also served as a hospital supervisor in Columbia, South 

Carolina, for awhile.  After that, I became a police 

officer down with the South Carolina Department of 

Public Safety, working mental health, before moving out 

here to Las Vegas to become a security officer with G4S 

Secure Solutions.  I worked with them for 10 years.  I 

started as a regular officer and moved up through the 

company to become an HR manager before transferring out 

to Arizona for about eight months and becoming the 

general manager. 

  I like Las Vegas a lot better.  The company 

went through a restructure.  So I came back to Las 

Vegas.  And now I'm with Bedrock Protection Agency as 

the branch manager.  And I look to service the company 

with our residential and commercial accounts and to grow 

a business here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 Any questions from the members?  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  Thank you for your 

service.  

  MR. WELLS:  Thank you, sir.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And Member Gronauer? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It was the Army.  None, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 

any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I would accept a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that Timothy Wells 

is applying for an individual private patrolman license.  

If approved, he is requesting that his individual 

license be placed into abeyance so that he may become 

the qualifying agent for Bedrock Protection Agency, LLC, 

license number 2183.  This is subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

and a second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  

Congratulations, Mr. Wells.  And good luck.  
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  MR. WELLS:  Thank you very much, sir.  Thank 

you, Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good luck.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Item number 31, 

Frederick Hutchison.  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good morning. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, outline your experiences and what your plans 

are for you and your company.  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  My name is Frederick Hutchison.  

I grew up here in Las Vegas.  I was in security in the 

early '90s, got into a career in law enforcement, where 

I just retired about a couple years ago from the 

Henderson Police Department, where I served as a gang 

detective, also in intelligence, various task forces, 

along with the ATF was the last task force I worked 

with.  I retired and was approached by SecureCar, a 

member there, to become their qualifying agent.  I 

accepted.  And I'm just excited for a new adventure.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Great.  Any questions 

from the Board members?  Member Flynn?  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  What, when, what's 

your retirement date?  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  Retirement date is November 

2016, I think it is.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And what have you been 

doing between then and now?  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  I've been -- I got my PILB 

card, and I've been doing some executive protection work 

for some local companies.  Team Zebra Tactical is one. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. HUTCHISON:  And with the guys over there, I 

knew them from my search warrants I wrote. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Did you buy time in PERS?  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  I bought a little bit of time, 

yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  No 

other questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Member 

Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  What did you 

do prior to Henderson P.D.?  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  I worked with Clark County 

School District P.D. for about three years.  I was, I 

got to be, in that three-year period, I became an 

instructor.  And I was a gang detective over there.  It 
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was kind of where I wanted to go.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm satisfied that it 

wasn't some place before that wasn't accounted for.  

Okay.  I'm good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Member 

Nixon?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I do have another 

question, though.  I mean Gronauer brings this up.  Why, 

this is why we've got -- normally, you breeze right 

through.  There's stuff that's missing in your 

application.  Why didn't you list like the school 

district police?  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  I think, it just asked for -- 

was it 15 or 10 years back?  And that's all I listed 

back.  I apologize about that. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, you don't have 

anything to apologize.  You're one of the few people 

that follow that rule.  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  I saw the instructions, so I 

put it down.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  I take that 

back.  Thank you so much.   

  MR. HUTCHISON:  You're welcome, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Is there 
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any public comment?  

 Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I make a 

motion that Frederick Hutchison be granted a private 

patrolman license.  If approved, he is requesting that 

his individual license be placed into abeyance so that 

he may become the qualifying agent for SecureCar, LLC, 

license number 2118, subject to all statutory and 

regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?   

  The motion passes unanimously.  

Congratulations, Mr. Hutchison.  Good luck.  

  MR. HUTCHISON:  Thank you.  I appreciate it.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck. 

  MR. HUTCHISON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Number 32, Brian P. 

Koehn ("Kohn").  
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  MR. KOEHN:  Good morning, everybody.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Semper Fi. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Good morning, sir.  

  MR. KOEHN:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, tell us a little about -- tell us about 

yourself and what your plans are for you and your 

company.  

  MR. KOEHN:  Well, good morning again.  My 

name's Brian Koehn ("Kayn").  I'm a warden at the Nevada 

Southern Detention Center.  I've been in corrections for 

26'ish years, the last 11 as warden.  This is my fourth 

facility as warden.  Transferred to Las Vegas.  And I'm 

really happy with that, by the way.  And so I'm here so 

that we can keep doing business in Pahrump, Nevada with 

our facility.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  And I 

apologize for mispronouncing your name.  

  MR. KOEHN:  Ah, everyone does.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Do we have any 

questions from the members?  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  How do you question a 

Marine?  Let me see.  Do you know Howard Scully?  

  MR. KOEHN:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  He was the previous 
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warden.  Nevada State Prisons.  Okay. 

  MR. KOEHN:  I don't know the state facilities.  

I don't.  I'm not real familiar with them.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  So you 

never worked at the prison.  Okay.  What I'm doing is 

just I wanted to know, how many years did you put in 

detention?  

  MR. KOEHN:  Well, 26 years in corrections.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  26.  Sorry.  

  MR. KOEHN:  26 years, yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No problem.  

Thank you.  I'm good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  All good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Is there any public 

comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I would accept a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make 

the motion.  I make the motion to approve Brian P. 

Koehn.  

  MR. KOEHN:  Close enough.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is it close?  Is 

applying for an individual private patrolman license.  

If approved, he is requesting that his individual 

license be placed into abeyance so that he may become 

the qualifying agent for CoreCivic, Incorporated, dba 

Nevada Southern Detention -- Detection Center, license 

number 2135.  This is subject to all statutory and 

regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion to 

approve.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

 Opposed?  

  The motion passes unanimously.  Mr. Koehn, good 

luck.  Congratulations.  Thank you.  

  MR. KOEHN:  Thank you, sir.  Appreciate it.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you, and good luck 

to you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Number 33, Michael 

Reece.  
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  Good morning, sir.  

  MR. REECE:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background, and 

tell us what your plans are.  

  MR. REECE:  My name is Michael Reece.  I've 

been in security management for approximately the last 

27 years.  From '98 to 2016, I was corporate director of 

security with Camden Property Trust.  Prior to that, I 

was with Hotel Gaming Companies.  I'm looking to get my 

private patrolman license.  And that's it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 Questions from the Board members?  Member 

Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, I had questions 

concerning the 2017 domestic violence.  

  MR. REECE:  Yes.  It was an unfortunate 

situation involving my 36-year-old son who, 

unfortunately, put his hands on his mother.  And I 

defended his mother.  Went to court, prosecuted, decided 

it was self-defense on behalf of my wife, and the case 

was dismissed.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  MR. REECE:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 
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questions?   

 No.  Board Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  Mr. Reece, on the 

application it doesn't have the date of your bankruptcy.  

  MR. REECE:  2010.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  2010.  Okay.  And then 

what have you been doing since 2016?  

  MR. REECE:  2016.  I'm currently employed with 

Cypress Security as a business development manager, as 

of tomorrow, as they recently sold to Allied Universal.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Why is that not on your 

application?  Because your application --  

  MR. REECE:  It was a recent job prior to the 

application.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'm sorry.  What?  

  MR. REECE:  I became employed with Cypress 

after the application was filed.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So what did you do for 

three years?  

  MR. REECE:  I've been pretty much kicking it, 

retired.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. REECE:  Yeah. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I get that one.  

  MR. REECE:  Yes. 
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And then last, but not 

least, I don't understand, what does an illegal use for 

transportation means?  

  MR. REECE:  That was involved with a situation 

when I was 18 years old.  And the vehicle in which that 

I was driving, that belonged to me, but it didn't have 

tags and et cetera, and the tag that was on it was 

incorrect, so they filed a misdemeanor charge of illegal 

use of transportation. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Incorrect or 

fictitious?  

  MR. REECE:  It was incorrect.  It was not, it 

was not the right plate for the vehicle, fictitious, I 

guess.  It was a plate that I had taken off my mother's 

vehicle. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I 

think, I got it.  We've got three cops on the Board.  

  MR. REECE:  40 years ago.  Yeah, I see.  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  We've heard things that we 

call them queuing policing.  All right.  All right.  I 

appreciate your responses.  Thank you.  

  MR. REECE:  You're welcome. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And that was a long time 

ago.  

  MR. REECE:  Yes, it was.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I want the Board -- I want 

the record to reflect that.  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I think, Member Nixon  

would like to say something first.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Oh. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Again, I don't know 

Mr. Reece, but I need to make it, you know, public that, 

you know, he's been acquired by Allied Universal.  And 

so I'm not recusing myself, because I don't know him.  I 

think I can make a decision.  But I wanted to make a 

public record. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you for the 

disclosure.  

 Any additional questions?  

 Seeing none, do we have any --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, I have a question, 

sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Oh, you do?  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  I 

know, it's surprising.  

  On the investigative report, on page 3, all 

right, it had on there the investigator found some 

adverse information.  Is that the information we were 

talking about?  That's all I need to know. 
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  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Then, we're 

good.  Thank you for that.  

 I'm fine.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Thank you. 

  Is there any public comment?  

 Seeing no public comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  It's Ray Flynn.  I'll make 

a motion for approval based on anything that was of 

concern.  We've got time and distance as well as 

dismissals.  And the applicant satisfactorily answered 

our questions.  And that Michael Reece is applying for 

an individual private patrolman license.  This is 

subject to all times statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

to approve.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 All right.  The motion passes unanimously.  
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Good luck.  Congratulations.  

  MR. REECE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What was that phrase 

you used for that licensure?  What was the phrase you 

used, how you described it?  

  MR. REECE:  Fictitious.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, that's what it is.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Incorrect.  

  MR. REECE:  Incorrect, incorrect license plate.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We're now moving to the 

process server approvals.  Number 34, Lisa W. 

Logan-Hawkins.  

  Good morning.  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Good morning.  

  MR. SOTO:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself and the gentleman at the table with you.  

Please tell us a little bit about your background and 

experience and what your plans are going forward.  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  I'm applying for the 

process server license.  I've been a resident of 

Las Vegas for about 20 years.  Over the last five, 

pretty much five years, I've worked for ABI Document 

Support Services.  We handle process serving.  I do 

notaries for the company.  And I'm looking to become 
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a -- the qualifying agent for ABI Document.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.   

  Do we have any questions --  

  Oh, the gentleman with you.  

  MR. SOTO:  Oh, I'm sorry.  My name is John 

Soto.  I've been with ABI for 10 years.  Excuse me.  I 

was just recently licensed by the Board as a process 

server and was applying as a qualifying agent.  But the 

company has just recently handed me the state of Texas 

to oversee as well as California and Nevada.  So that 

kind of delayed my move to Nevada, which is why we're 

here today to have Ms. Hawkins licensed and, hopefully, 

move to the qualifying agent.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 All right.  Do we have any questions from the 

members?  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  

Ms. Logan-Hawkins, good morning.  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a work card 

now, process server work card?  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  How long has 

that been in effect?  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  It's like eight years now.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  All right.  Now, 

there was something else on your report about a 

settlement that you're recovering.  Yeah, and do you 

have any dates or documents to say this is all settled?  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  It's not totally settled.  

We just came up with a settlement for a reduced amount.  

And I'm working on -- yes, I -- yes, I did.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You did submit it to 

them? 

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Yes, I did.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That question's  

been answered.  So I'm fine.  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Member 

Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, I'm all good.  Thank 

you.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment?  

  MR. INGRAM:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Seeing no public 

comment, I would accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 
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motion to approve.  Lisa W. Logan-Hawkins is applying 

for an individual process server license.  If approved, 

she is requesting that her individual license be placed 

into abeyance so that it become -- she may become the 

qualifying agent of ABI Document Support Services, LLC, 

license number 1579.  Members to be approved are Clare 

Arguedas, Wesley J. Campbell and Jose M. Fernandez 

de Castro.  This is subject to statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion to 

approve.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Good luck.  

Congratulations.  

  MS. LOGAN-HAWKINS:  Thank you much.  

  MR. SOTO:  Thank you, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We now move on to 

canine handler, number 35, Protective Force 

International.  
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  MR. ARRANT:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good morning. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, talk about your --   

  MR. ARRANT:  My name's Gary --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  -- your --  

  MR. ARRANT:  My name's Gary Arrant.  I just 

graduated academy, canine academy in -- from North 

Carolina, a seven-week academy.  I was number one in my 

class.  I'm happy.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Kevin, do we have any additional information on 

this?  

  MR. INGRAM:  I believe, Mr. Arrant was 

scheduled once before for a Board meeting and was unable 

to attend. 

  Is that correct?  

  MR. ARRANT:  No.  

  MR. INGRAM:  No?  I guess not, then. 

  MR. ARRANT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right. 

  MR. INGRAM:  I guess not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Thank you. 

  Are there any questions from the members?  
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Let's start with Member Nixon.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Just for the investigator.  

Who's Woody Chan? 

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Woody Chan is the canine 

handler over at the Las Vegas Convention Center. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  He works for the LVCC? 

  MR. SWARTHOUT:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you.  Just wanted to 

clarify that.  No, nothing further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I just want to 

say that I happened to meet Mr. Reece at my office.  And 

he has, they have an office in the same office complex, 

78 offices, where my office is located.  I met him just 

by a handshake, saying hello.  And that's about it.  I 

do not know him.  I'm not personally involved with him.  

So I don't feel I couldn't provide judgment to his vote.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Thank you 

for the disclosure.  

 Is there any public comment? 

 Seeing none, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Ray Flynn.  I'll make a 

motion that Protective Force International, LLC, license 
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number 2687, be granted a new canine handler license.  

That Gary E. Arrant is applying for an individual canine 

handler license.  If approved, he is requesting that his 

individual license be placed into abeyance so that he 

may become the qualifying agent.  This is subject to all 

statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Discussion on the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I just have to say, I 

just used the wrong name when I said that I know him.  I 

don't know him.  It's Mr. Arrant.  I said Mr. Reece.  

So.  Sorry about that.  

  MR. ARRANT:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No other discussion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Seeing no 

additional discussion, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Good luck, sir.  

  MR. ARRANT:  Thank you.  And thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Congratulations. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We'll move on to 

private investigator and process server.  Lawrence E. 

Sanchez.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Sanchez? 

  Not present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Then, let's move 

on.  Let's just trail that and move on to number -- 

private patrol and canine handler, number 37, Global K9 

Protection Group.  

 Good morning. 

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning. 

 MR. HOOKER:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Please identify 

yourself, give us a little bit of your background and 

experience, and what your plans are for you and the 

company.  

  MR. HOOKER:  Absolutely.  My name's William 

Hooker, with Global K9 Protection Group.  Spent -- I'm 

retired military, 10 years as a military handler, 

trainer, kennel master; 15 years reserve in 

antiterrorism; and I had 15, or 14 years out of 15 years 

in the private sector of canine.  The plan for today is 

to acquire a new private patrolman license and canine 

handler license.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  Did I see 
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that you're an explosives dog handler, or not; is that 

correct, is it?  

  MR. HOOKER:  Yes, sir.  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Very good.   

  Any questions from the members?  Member 

Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  You listed 

four previous employments.  And I'm told that you didn't 

list any supervisor.  Is there a reason for that?  

  MR. HOOKER:  No.  One of them was my own 

company, one that we sold to another company.  If I 

failed to put that down, it was just my mistake.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Which company was that?  

  MR. HOOKER:  MSA Security.  And if I didn't put 

one for the current one, for Global, that recently 

changed as well.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And you allowed your 

previous license, the Nevada license to expire?  

  MR. HOOKER:  Yeah, when I left with MSA 

Security, correct.  It was not a good parting.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You ended up a major?  

  MR. HOOKER:  I'm sorry? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You ended up a major?  

  MR. HOOKER:  Chief. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  All right.  
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Thank you.  I have no more questions.  Chief.  I'm good. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  None at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  Thank you for your 

service.  

  MR. HOOKER:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  No more questions from 

the Board members.  Is there any public comment?  

  MR. INGRAM:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Seeing no public 

comment, I'd accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nixon.  I move that Global 

K9 Protection Group, LLC is applying for a new private 

patrolman and canine handler license.  William D. Hooker 

is applying for an individual private patrol and canine 

handler license.  If approved, he is requesting that his 

individual license be placed into abeyance so that he 

may become the qualifying agent.  Members to be approved 

are Donald J. Clarkson and Eric S. Hare.  This is 

subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion for 

approval.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion and a 
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second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Good luck, 

Mr. Hooker.  

  MR. HOOKER:  Thank you, sir.  Thank you, Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Is Mr. Sanchez here?  

 Still no Mr. Sanchez.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Let's go ahead 

and move to registration appeals.  And let's note that 

with registration appeals there is no public comment.  

This is, these are administrative hearings.   

  And we'll start with number 38, Richard Black.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Richard Black?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Are you Mr. Black?  

  MR. BLACK:  Yes. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Mr. Black is up 

north.  And he was not sworn, sworn in.  So he'll need 

to be sworn in, as will -- you'll need to be sworn in at 

the same time.  Okay.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do we want to -- or let's go 

ahead and do, reswear anybody who wasn't sworn in 
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earlier, if they may give testimony, both in the north 

and south.   

  Will you be stand.  Or raise your right hand, 

good enough.  Do you swear that the testimony you give 

today will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing 

but the truth?  

  (All applicants and potential witnesses present 

in Las Vegas and Carson City were sworn in.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:   All right.  Thank you 

very much. 

  Okay.  All right.  Give us just a moment, 

Mr. Black. 

  This looks like Investigator Saladino.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes, Mr. Chair, Investigator 

Saladino.  The applicant was denied for a 1990 -- 

actually, it was for a 1993 sexual assault first degree, 

which was changed to false imprisonment at a felony 

level.  The applicant received a sentence of one to -- 

one and a half to three years in prison.  It wasn't 

disclosed.  

 Also, in the fingerprint report, there was a 

1990 sexual assault, two counts.  Those two were 

dismissed.   

 And then in '98, there was a misdemeanor DUI 

where he was found guilty.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So just to  

confirm, identify yourself.  

  MR. BLACK:  I'm Richard G. Black.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Richard G. 

Black.  So, Mr. Black, did you hear what he just 

explained, that there are three -- 

  MR. BLACK:  No, I don't know where they came 

from.  The only one I know about was in Omaha.  I don't 

know what he's talking about, the rest.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So --   

  MR. BLACK:  In Omaha, what happened wasn't what 

happened.  I mean she was going to throw her down a set 

of stairs.  I stopped her from doing it.  The next thing 

I knew, she said, "My boyfriend said I can jump out of a 

four-story window and fly."  And I said, "No, you can't 

believe it.  You can't, you can't fly."   

  And then the cop came in.  She had run.  The 

next thing I know, I went to jail.  And the only thing I 

heard from the government that was brung, and he had to 

go on a case, he said, "Don't worry, it's a simple 

case."  He said, "Don't worry about a thing."  The next 

thing I know, they give me a new order.   

  Everything you say don't count.  You don't look 

back, the ones we look forward to.  That was the last.  

So I just, might as well give up.  I'd probably get 50 
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years.  The next thing I know, I don't know what 

happened after that.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So you were convicted, 

correct?  Did you serve time in prison?  

  MR. BLACK:  I was -- did the six months.  They 

didn't take me to court or nothing.  They waited another 

six months.  Then they let me go.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Were on you 

probation or parole?  

  MR. BLACK:  No, none of that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  You didn't have to 

report or anything like that?  

  MR. BLACK:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  And what year 

did that happen; do you recall?  

  MR. BLACK:  It had to be around -- let's see.  

Probably '91.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So according to 

the records that the PILB received from the FBI, you had 

an arrest in 1990 for sexual assault, two counts.  And 

those, that, those were dismissed.  Then you had an 

arrest in 1993 for sexual assault --   

  MR. BLACK:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Let me finish.  Listen, 

listen through.  The charge was changed to false 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

120 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

imprisonment, and that, and you were given time for 

that.  Were you -- have you ever been arrested for DUI?  

  MR. BLACK:  No.  I've been in jail.  I was --  

the cop who came here, I was having -- kicking, and put 

me in the police station, because I wouldn't leave, so 

they put me in jail.  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Were you drunk?  

  MR. BLACK:  Huh?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Were you drunk? 

  MR. BLACK:  I had a few beers, you know.  I 

mean I wasn't totally drunk.  They didn't want to put me 

in jail, but I made them put me in jail.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So how come you 

didn't, how come you didn't disclose the one arrest that 

you have had --  

  MR. BLACK:  When I -- when we got the sheriff 

here, my wife said, "He ain't got me on the record, so 

go get security."  I -- so I believed her, and I didn't 

mention.  Otherwise, I would have.  I'm an honest 

person.  I don't believe in breaking the law.  I don't 

believe in a lot of things.  And whether they're coming 

or not, I do it the way of the law.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  The 

other Board members may have questions, so.  

  MR. BLACK:  I'll ask any -- I'll answer 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

121 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

anything that I can.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Board 

Member Flynn, do you have any questions?   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  Does 

the investigator have anything else to add?  

  MR. SALADINO:  No, Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 All right.  Then, I'll accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I'll make a 

motion to deny the appeal based on staff's 

recommendation.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

to uphold the denial.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion and a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, signify by saying 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  
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 So, Mr. Black, you are not going to be able to 

get your registration now.  

  MR. BLACK:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  You can come 

back in a year and reapply.  

  MR. BLACK:  Can I ask one question?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. BLACK:  I went down and worked for Security 

Unlimited.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. BLACK:  I worked 48 hours and never got 

paid for it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Now, there's a 

remedy for that.  And that remedy is that you go to 

the -- help me out, Kevin.  

  MR. INGRAM:  It's the Labor Commission.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  I'm sorry?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That the would be the State Labor 

Commission.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  I'm sorry.  I still 

didn't understand you. 

  THE REPORTER:  THE State Labor Commission.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Oh, State Labor 

Commission.  There's an office in Reno.  Do you live in 

Reno, or to you live in Carson City?  
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  MR. BLACK:  I live here in Carson.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  There's an 

office in Carson City.  You go to the State Labor 

Commission and you make -- you complain to them, and 

they'll work with you to try to --   

  MR. BLACK:  No, I think that whole company is a 

real -- especially on a -- on a whatcha call it, you 

know, they said.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. BLACK:  While I was sleeping in there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So what was the name of 

that company, again?  

  MR. BLACK:  Security Unlimited.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Security Unlimited.  

So, yeah, you can reapply for your registration, 

security registration, a year from now.  Okay?  

  MR. BLACK:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  But you can't now for a 

year.  But you can work, if I understand, you can work 

in like a casino or something like that.   

  Is that correct, Kevin?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yeah, if he passes the background, 

he can potentially work in security there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Now, whenever you're 

asked, when you're trying to apply for security, if 
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you're ever asked "Have you been arrested?" you need to 

disclose.  Okay?  

  MR. BLACK:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And there's no time 

limit.  You have to disclose.  Okay?  If you spend time 

in jail, you have to tell it.  

  MR. BLACK:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right?  

  MR. BLACK:  I'm not, I'm not even staying 

there.  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  

Well, go to the Labor Commission.  All right?  Thank 

you, Mr. Black.  

  MR. BLACK:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  Number 39, 

Lee Roy Calloway.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Not present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We'll trail 

that one.  

  Number 40, Dewayne Darby.  

  MR. INGRAM:  He's here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  This is 

investigator?  Please identify yourself, sir.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 2007 carrying a concealed 
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weapon out of California.  It was a misdemeanor.  The 

applicant received 36 months probation.  And he did 

disclose the application on the arrest, on the -- 

disclosed the arrest on the application.   

  And there was also a 2006 possession of a 

controlled substance out of California.  It was a 

misdemeanor and another 36 months probation.  That was 

not disclosed.  That was found on the fingerprint 

report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Sir, would you identify 

yourself, please.  

  MR. DARBY:  I'm Dewayne Darby. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay. 

  MR. DARBY:  I moved to Las Vegas last year in 

October.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Do we have 

questions from the members?  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning, 

Mr. Darby.  

  MR. DARBY:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What you have -- how 

long have you lived in Las Vegas?  

  MR. DARBY:  Since last -- last year, October.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  What have you 

been doing?  
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  MR. DARBY:  Right now, I've been doing staffing 

companies.  I tried the security, trying to get a guard 

card first.  So I've been doing staffing companies.  

Under the table, a little work, construction work.  

That's it really right now.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have family 

here? 

  MR. DARBY:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You disclosed the CCW, 

carrying a concealed weapon --   

  MR. DARBY:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- in the background.  

Is there a reason you didn't disclose the PCS, 

possession of controlled substance?  

  MR. DARBY:  I forgot about that.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You had 36 months 

probation.  It's pretty hard to forget about it, you 

know.  

  MR. DARBY:  I'm just trying to forget about 

certain stuff I did in the past.  Right now, I got my 

daughter and my kids with me.  So I'm trying to do 

better in life right now.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where have you been 

living since 2007?  

  MR. DARBY:  2007 was a long time ago. 
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where did you live 

since then till now? 

  MR. DARBY:  Till now, gosh, well --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Would it be in 

California?  

  MR. DARBY:  In California, I was in South 

Central, Long Beach, Gardena, Beverly Hills.  Then, in 

2018, moved out here, me and my fiance, my three boys 

and my two daughters.    

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right. 

  MR. DARBY:  And I've had casino work.  And I 

was just, I've been doing staff work.  I got custody of 

my three boys.  So I was trying to maintain everything 

for them.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So you lived in South 

Central, also?  

  MR. DARBY:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  How long did you live 

in South Central; do you know what years you lived 

there?  

  MR. DARBY:  I was nine years old.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, okay.  All right.  

When you're a teenager, it's a different place to live.  

Okay.  All right.  So you had no other arrests since 

2007?  
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  MR. DARBY:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No problems or run-ins 

with the cops, no citations, no driving?  

  MR. DARBY:  Oh, probably driving, yes.  I got, 

it was a speeding ticket out here.  That was last month.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What have you done with 

that speeding ticket?  

  MR. DARBY:  I have a court date.  I tried to 

pay for it so I wouldn't go to court, to see how much it 

was, and stuff like that.  That's it.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a driver's 

license now?  

  MR. DARBY:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Which state?  

  MR. DARBY:  Los Angeles.  California.  I'm 

sorry for that.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  All right.  

Thank you.  That's all I have.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you. 

  Member Nixon?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  Mr. Darby, why do 

you want to work in security?  

  MR. DARBY:  Well, my friend's friend was doing 
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it up in California.  My girl, her brother told me about 

it.  And I was planning on doing it before I left 

California, but the time was kind of off.  So when I 

came here, go ahead and do security, help my family out, 

what I'm trying to do right now.  And I was working 

at -- was it Allied Universal, to do it up here, 

something about doing security.  It'll help me out, for 

my family.    

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  What was the controlled 

substance?  

  MR. DARBY:  Really I don't remember, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  What was the 

weapon?  

  MR. DARBY:  It was a nine-millimeter. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  What was that all about?  

  MR. DARBY:  Living in a nonsafe place, and I 

thought I'd need one to -- just to have one, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  One other 

thing.  You need a Nevada driver's license.  

  MR. DARBY:  Right.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You're supposed to get one 

within 45 days of living here.  

  MR. DARBY:  Okay.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Any additional 

questions from the members, anything?  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

130 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I'd like to 

follow up, Mr. Chairman.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Go right ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  On the carrying a 

concealed weapon, it says with prior convictions.  I 

just have to ask the investigator.  So, now, was that 

prior arrest, prior arrest, is that for weapons? 

  MR. SALADINO:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  That was the drug? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Yeah, the reason he got it for 

prior convictions was the controlled substance was 2006.  

The weapons charge was 2007.  And then, also, on the 

fingerprint report, it does show a 1203.4 for the 

weapons charge.   

  And the applicant does have a Nevada driver's 

license.  He provided us the interim document during his 

application process.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You have a driver's 

license?  

  MR. DARBY:  Yeah, I have an ID, my Nevada ID.  

I haven't gotten the driver's license yet. 

  MR. SALADINO:  It's an ID card.  

  MR. DARBY:  Yeah, for right now. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  No problem.  

All right.  Thank you.  That's all I had.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Any additional 

information from the investigator?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Just that the weapons charge was 

dismissed under 1203.4.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay. 

  MR. SALADINO:  And then we do have a Nevada ID.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Got it.  Thank you very 

much.  

 All right.  With that said, I'd accept a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  It's Ray Flynn.  I'm going 

to make a motion to approve based on time, distance.  He 

did admit to the more serious of the two charges, so 

I've got reason to believe he did forget about the other 

one.  So that's my motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

to --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  We have a motion to 

overturn the denial, and we have a second.  Any 

discussion on the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, I second.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  So we have 

a motion with a second, no discussion on the motion.  

All in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye." 
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 The motion passes unanimously.  Sir, you will 

get your registration.  

  MR. DARBY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Congratulations.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It may be because of 

your kids.  That says a lot. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Good luck to 

you.  

  MR. DARBY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you. 

  With the indulgence of the Board, I'm going to 

call number 62, Michael Pullos.  Because I have to leave 

early, I would like to have all the north ones taken 

care of before I leave.  

  So please identify yourself, sir.   

  MR. PULLOS:  Good morning.  My name is Michael 

Andrew Pullos.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And, I think, this is 

Investigator Maxwell. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  Mr. Pullos was denied 

for the following.   

  In 1996, out of California, he had a CCW in a 

vehicle, which was a misdemeanor offense.  The 
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disposition was convicted and jail.  This was the reason 

for the denial.  It was not disclosed.  

 In 1997, out of California, possession of a 

controlled substance, which was marijuana.  It was 

unknown.  So was the disposition.  They did not 

disclose.  

 2000, out of California, possession of a 

controlled substance and paraphernalia, at a misdemeanor 

level, two years probation, four months jail.  This was 

disclosed.  

 Also in 2000, same offense, possession of 

controlled substance and paraphernalia, misdemeanor, 

one-year probation, seven months jail, fined, and the 

probation was modified.  This was not disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Mr. Pullos. 

  MR. PULLOS:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Would you explain why 

you did not disclose three of the four that he just 

discussed.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Yeah, at the time of my 

application, I explained to the lady that I really did 

not know the dates of all the offenses.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. PULLOS:  And the CCW, I totally forgot 

about that one.  Because I was stopped, and I was 
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actually taking a gun to someone else's house, because a 

friend of mine called and said her and her husband were 

fighting, and there was a gun in the house.  So I just 

removed it and was taking it to a friend's house.  But I 

totally forgot about that one.  I had no idea that was 

there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Where was the gun 

concealed in your car?  

  MR. PULLOS:  I told the officer it was 

underneath the front seat of my car. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay. 

  MR. PULLOS:  I was driving a Volkswagen Karmann 

Ghia.  There was no place else to put it actually.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And what about the -- 

are all these accurate as far as the --    

  MR. PULLOS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  You've been arrested 

three times for possession --  

  MR. PULLOS:  Absolutely. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  -- of a controlled 

substance?  

  MR. PULLOS:  Yes.  That was a time in my life 

where I was stoned, using a lot of drug, 

methamphetamines, started to regret every minute of it.  

I went to jail, and I did RCP, and I did a bunch of 
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programs in jail, got the only certificate of completion 

in one of the psychology classes.  And I just -- that's 

the past.  You know, it's something I did.  I'm done.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  How long have you been 

not using drugs?  

  MR. PULLOS:  September 15, 2007.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Oh, it's actually 2005.  Sorry.  

Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, just for the record, 

there are two additional pages --  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah. 

  MR. INGRAM:  -- of charges that we didn't get 

to.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Correct. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  There are two what? 

  MR. PULLOS:  There's probably more.  I had a 

lot of charges.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Additional pages of charges.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Oh, okay.   

  MR. PULLOS:  Yeah. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  I got it.  

Thank you very much.  
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  MR. PULLOS:  And when I -- that's when I was 

filling out the application, I told the secretary that I 

just don't know all the dates I have.  And even in my -- 

and I wrote a statement that I don't know all the dates.  

But I am guilty of everything that it says.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Okay.  Yeah, 

thanks for pointing that out.  I just didn't scroll  

down far enough.  

 Question.  Where did you fill out your 

application?  

  MR. PULLOS:  Right here in Carson City.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Here at the --   

  MR. PULLOS:  The PILB office.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Got everything submitted.  I mean 

I have actually overturned my felonies, had my felonies 

down, converted to misdemeanors.  I did everything I was 

supposed to do.  I did everything.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay. 

  MR. PULLOS:  Actually, there's one that's 

probably not here, an arrest in Reno in two thousand -- 

it was two years ago, for possession of drug 

paraphernalia.  Which was a dumb mistake.  I picked up a 

woman and gave her a ride.  And we got pulled over.  

Why, I don't know.  But she had a meth pipe in her bra, 
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and she said it was mine.  I took responsibility of it.  

I did 20 days in jail so I didn't have to do a two-year 

probation period.  And the judge told me it would be off 

my record, and I had no -- no conviction, I think.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. PULLOS:  I've been working ever since, and.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Where do you 

work now?  

  MR. PULLOS:  Right now, I work for Chewy.com.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right. 

Member Nixon, do you have any questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah.  The gentleman said 

that he had been clean since two thousand, I think, five 

or seven.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  But he's got arrests for, 

you know, paraphernalia all the way up until '17, you 

know, 2015, 2015, 2017.  So I mean have you --   

  MR. PULLOS:  There should be nothing in 2015.  

2017 is the drug paraphernalia that I just mentioned.  

But I was tested, and I was not under the influence of 

anything.  I was released the same day on my own 

recognizance.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  On the report it says 20 

days in jail.  
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  MR. PULLOS:  Right.  That was after I went and 

did -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Was that time served?  

  MR. PULLOS:  Yes, absolutely.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. PULLOS:  I was released, and then I chose 

to do the 20 days rather than do the two years 

probation.  And that was after my court appearance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  

  MR. PULLOS:  But 2015, I'm not sure what you're 

referring to.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  In 2015, it's 

California prohibited owning or -- and possession.  

Anyway, obviously, ammunition and maybe a gun.  

  MR. PULLOS:  No gun.  No, it was ammunition 

that was --  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Possession of --  

  MR. PULLOS:  -- for four shotgun shells.  And 

they told me that would be off my record if I completed 

what they requested of me.  I did 40, 40 hours of 

community service and did informed drives.  And the 

reason why there was -- it said I was a felon in 

possession of ammunition.  And I had my felonies 

overturned, so they reduced that.  And I haven't heard 

anything about it.  I paid a $400 fine, and I did my 40 
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hours of community service.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Nixon, any 

additional questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Again, why didn't you 

disclose any of these?  It says they were not disclosed.  

  MR. PULLOS:  I thought I disclosed most of 

them.  I really did not know the dates.  And on my 

application, I listed 1990 plus, meaning that there was 

more convictions up until 2000.  I just didn't know the 

dates at all.  I had no -- I was putting that behind me.  

And it's been a long time.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No more questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  None.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  

Then, I'll accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ray Flynn.  I move to 

follow staff's recommendation for denial.  We do not 

have neither time nor distance.  Plus, we have at least 

a half dozen did not disclose.  And I'm not satisfied 

with the applicant's responses.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Do we have a 
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second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We have a 

motion and a second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, signify by saying 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  So you can 

reapply in a year.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And I would suggest 

that you get with the office here and get a copy of the 

criminal history.  

  MR. PULLOS:  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So that you know what 

you're dealing with.  And so if you do decide to 

reapply, then you can go ahead and disclose.  

  MR. PULLOS:  Because that's with a background 

check, and I couldn't find any of that on that record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Yes.  

  MR. PULLOS:  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Well, a different 

level.  

  MR. PULLOS:  All right.  I appreciate your 

time.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right, 

Mr. Pullos. 

  We'll move right along to go to item number 41, 

Sade Easley ("Es-lee").  Easley ("Ees-lee")?  I guess, 

it's Easley.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Not here. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  All right.  We'll trail 

that one. 

  Number 42, Emmanuel Foster.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Foster is here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

  Please identify yourself.  

  MR. FOSTER:  My first name is Emmanuel Gerald 

Foster.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  And Investigator 

Saladino.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1989 felony possession charge 

out of California, a 2007 felony possession out of 

California again, and a 2008 second degree felony 

robbery where he received three years prison time.  Two 

years prison time.  The applicant did disclose all the 

arrests and convictions on his application, also 

provided court documents showing that he completed all 

the requirements for the courts, and has been very 
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forthcoming with information in regards to the arrests 

and convictions.  And that's why we're here today for 

the appeal process.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Foster, do you want to explain the arrests 

and those circumstances?  

  MR. FOSTER:  It's pretty much, in California, 

trying to get clean and sober, kept -- kept relapsing, 

kept, you know, trying all the, you know, different 

rehabs.   

  And on the second degree burglary, robbery -- I 

don't know which one -- you know, so I was just trying, 

you know, to get clean one more time, just couldn't do 

it, you know what I'm saying, out in the streets, you 

know.  So I did.  And, you know, that was back in 

January 20, 2008.  I've been clean ever since, worked 

for Solutions Recovery.  And when Solutions --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  What were of the 

circumstances of the robbery?  

  MR. FOSTER:  Under the influence.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  What, who, what or who 

did you rob?  

  MR. FOSTER:  It was a hotel.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Questions from 

the Board.  Member Gronauer?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What have you been 

doing since two thousand -- when you say you're -- 

you're recovered now?  

  MR. FOSTER:  Well, I came out here in 2012.  

And I worked like little odds and ends jobs, you know.  

And I went to work for -- in treatment for Solutions 

Recovery.  I was working in detox.  I worked with them 

for four years.  They sold the company to American 

Addiction.  I'm active and on rehab.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Are you employed now?  

  MR. FOSTER:  Yes.  I work for Fletcher Goods 

(phonetic spelling) on 14th and Fremont.  You know, so 

it's really I haven't really had a -- since I've been 

out here, I haven't really been unemployed.  I've been 

unemployed for like maybe six months.  I always worked.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What is the total time 

you built?  

  MR. FOSTER:  As far as what? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Prison.  

  MR. FOSTER:  Did 21 months.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  21 months?  

  MR. FOSTER:  Yeah, I went in on January 28 and 

got out October the 15th, 2009.  The 28th, January 28th.  

And I got out in '09, the 15th of October. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a driver's 
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license?  

  MR. FOSTER:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Have you had any other 

run-ins with the law since then? 

  MR. FOSTER:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No traffic citations?   

  MR. FOSTER:  Not even a traffic ticket. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good.  I appreciate it.  

Thank you.  

  MR. FOSTER:  I did my homework.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Apparently, you studied 

well.   

  MR. FOSTER:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  No more, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.   

  Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Why do you want to work  

in the security field?  

  MR. FOSTER:  For me, you know, it's something 

different.  I have a sister in Oakland, California doing 

security.  She told me, you know, "Once you do try it, 

you'll understand."  You know, I'm just trying to, you 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

145 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

know, do stuff now to -- you know, like I said, for me.  

It's real hard for me to sit here right now, I mean.  I 

just lost my brother.  And I lost my mom in 2014.  I 

just lost my brother May 10th, 2019.  Just, you know, I 

just came back from California, you know.  So like I was 

telling him, just like I told her, that I'm ready to 

change.  I'm just trying to keep changing.  I just keep 

trying to change and go forward. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can I have a follow-up 

question, Mr. Chair?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Absolutely.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Foster, do you have 

a security job lined up?  

  MR. FOSTER:  I was just told, once you get the 

guard card, you know.  Because they did give me a 

temporary one.  I was supposed to, I was supposed to be 

here in March.  I don't know what happened.  They just 

didn't have me up on the calendar or something.  And I 

was supposed to get here.  So now I'm here again trying 

to get the guard card.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I just wanted to 

know if you have a job, anything lined up right now.  

  MR. FOSTER:  No. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No problem.  
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Thank you.  

 Any additional Board member questions?  

 Any, any additional information from the 

investigator?  

  MR. SALADINO:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  All right.  I'll 

accept a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion to 

approve, what do I say, set aside the denial, to set 

aside the denial and approve Emanuel Foster, who applied 

for registration and was denied, and approve that 

Mr. Foster receive his card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  We have a motion 

to set aside the denial or overturn the denial.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  So we have a motion and 

a second.  Discussion on the motion?  

 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, 

signify by saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Opposed?  

 Mr. Foster, you'll get your registration now.  

  MR. FOSTER:  Thank you.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Good luck.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Board Member Flynn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  I'm turning the reins 

over to you.  Good luck.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Write if you get work.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Have a good 

day. 

* * * * * 

  (Board Chairman Nadeau left the meeting, and 

Acting Board Member Flynn began chairing the meeting.) 

* * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Should we adjourn for the day?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I second.  

  (Laughter.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

number 43, Harvey Sidney.  Mr. Sidney, are you here?  

 Well, we'll trail that one.  

  44, Joe Henry.  

  Mr. Henry, how are you, sir? 

  MR. HENRY:  I'm all right, sir.  How are you 
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doing?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  If 

you want to be in security, and at the same time you are 

required to register as a sex offender, you're going to 

have to convince this Board.  We've never done this one 

before.  I'll be up front with you. 

  MR. HENRY:  I understand that.  I've been in 

the state for 25 years now.  And Arizona started.  I was 

based for 25 years.  Moved out here in '93.  So I was 

working there.  And I moved out here.  Been with the job 

for 25 years, until just February 9th -- February 14th 

this year, I was released, let go.   

  I had no problem receiving, on my own, gaming 

card, all that.  I went -- when I applied for my gaming 

card, they did call me, questioned it.  And I still was 

approved and everything else so far.  I have not had no 

issues at all receiving cards at all.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you -- were 

you working for Arizona Trellis in 2009?  

  MR. HENRY:  Yes, sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did they know 

about this arrest?  

  MR. HENRY:  Yes, sir.  I started working there 

in '93.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you want to 
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tell us about the circumstances of that one?  

  MR. HENRY:  I was, at the time, I was a foster 

parent, dealt with foster kids, got the kids.  And I had 

a kid in the house, and she accused me of doing 

something I didn't do.  And I didn't want to get -- I 

wanted to get involved.  I got an attorney.  He said, 

"Hey, take the deal.  They're going to put you on 

probation for a year.  You won't lose none of your 

weapons or none of that, and continue working at the 

casino."  I'm like, "Okay.  I'll take a deal."  And my 

attorney was Weiner, Dale Weiner.  I went to court.  He 

went to court with me.  They gave me probation for a 

year.  I went through my probation, went to classes like 

I was supposed to and everything.  After my probation, I 

got a dishonorable discharge because I didn't just pay 

my fine.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

Investigator, do you have anything else to add?  

  MR. SALADINO:  When gaming was contacted in 

regards to the charges, they were quite surprised that 

he still had his gaming registration, and that now it's 

up for to be renewed, and they said they would not renew 

it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you 

have the arrest report?  
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  MR. SALADINO:  I have the court documents.  I 

do not have the police report.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is for Investigator 

Saladino.  So he's been getting a gaming card every 

year, or what is it, every five years? 

  MR. HENRY:  Every five years, yes.  

  MR. SALADINO:  So when it was renewed after the 

incident had happened, I guess, they have a -- the chief 

that was there was no longer there.  The investigator 

had put an opposition in the report for them to move 

forward.  And, apparently, it fell through the cracks, 

and now it won't be renewed.  

  MR. HENRY:  I even went through it again since 

the five years.  I got another five years and applied 

for it.  You know, I get, HR gets to pay for it, send it 

for fingerprints and all that.  And I got my gaming 

license again.  Every five years, four to five years, 

whatever it was.  I've been coming for 25 years.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And you said you're no 

longer working for Arizona Trellis, they dismissed you?  

  MR. HENRY:  Yes, ma'am. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And they knew about the 

conviction since --   
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  MR. HENRY:  Yes, ma'am.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Did they say why they 

dismissed you?  

  MR. HENRY:  Just released on -- they saw a 

glitch in the computer, didn't say it was computer, a 

glitch somewhere.  But I got pulled over, and they said 

I did not register.  And I had registered.  I had my 

paperwork to prove it.  They arrested me.  Even though 

the officer said, "I see you're registered, but I don't 

know why this is saying you didn't."   

  So I went to court.  The judge said, "You have 

the paperwork?"  I showed him my paperwork that it got 

dropped to a misdemeanor.  He said, "Okay.  Release 

him." 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And when did you get 

pulled over?  

  MR. HENRY:  This was in December of twenty -- 

December of 2018 is when this happened, two thousand -- 

this is '20.  2019.  It was in the last year.  That's 

when I got it, that's when they released me in February. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. HENRY:  And I had called off.  Well, you 

can't call off and be incarcerated in jail.  And I was 

following all the rules and stuff under the rules and 

regulations.  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So that's why you 

were dismissed?  

  MR. HENRY:  Yes, ma'am.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That was 

December 2018?  

  MR. HENRY:  '19.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  When you were pulled over. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  When you were pulled 

over.  It's not December '19 yet.  

  MR. HENRY:  This is '20.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is '19. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is 2019.  

  MR. HENRY:  Oh.  I'm thinking '20. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just confuse me. 

  MR. HENRY:  I'm thinking 2020.  I'm sorry.  I'm 

sorry.  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  So.  All 

right.  In December 2018, you got pulled over.  

Apparently, you had a citation or something, right?  Did 

you get arrested for it?  

  MR. HENRY:  They arrested me because they said 

I didn't have -- I wasn't registered.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And you applied 
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for your work card in March of 2019? 

  MR. HENRY:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Don't show that arrest 

on your record.  

  MR. HENRY:  Because he dropped it right away.  

The judge dropped it right away, because I had my 

paperwork, and she was like --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I have no problem with 

that. 

  MR. HENRY:  Oh, okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Santano, can you 

help me out here? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Yeah, Mr. Saladino.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

Saladino. 

  MR. SALADINO:  There was a December 25th, 2018 

arrest for prohibited failing to register.  He was found 

guilty of a misdemeanor, and he got credit for time 

served.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Apparently, I 

just found that on my screen.  

  MR. SALADINO:  I'm sorry about that.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And it might have been 

one of the things that was added later on.  

  MR. SALADINO:  It wasn't on the report that I 
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submitted.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Right.  Okay.  It's 

just difficult, I need to tell you.  You know, you seem 

like a nice gentleman.  You worked 23 years in one 

place. 

  MR. HENRY:  25 years, yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  25 years.  That's cool.  

But if gaming revoked your -- revokes your gaming card, 

it makes it really difficult on this, on my behalf, the 

way I look at it.  Okay? 

  MR. HENRY:  All right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm just looking at it.  

It's not personal.  It's all business now.  

  MR. HENRY:  I do understand it.  I do 

understand that, yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

Anyway, I have no more questions, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm going to have to 

make a motion on Mr. Henry to uphold the denial.  Joe 

Henry applied for registration and was denied.  

Mr. Henry is, was appealing to the Board pursuant to 

NRS 648.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We have a motion.  
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Do we have a second?  

 Counsel, can I second?  All right.  I'll second 

the motion.  Any discussion?   

 Okay.  Call for a vote.  All in favor, say 

"aye."  

 (Board members said "aye.")  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Opposed?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Two 

to one to follow the recommendations of staff.  

  Number 45, Oveon Toney.  And if I mispronounce 

a name, my apologies.  

  MR. TONEY:  You got it correct, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, wow. 

  MR. TONEY:  How's going? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  It's going good.  

How are you today? 

  MR. TONEY:  All right. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Mr. Toney, your work card was denied.  Why don't you 

talk to me and tell me what you know.  

  MR. TONEY:  In two thousand --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You've got to talk a 

little louder, though. 

  MR. TONEY:  In 2005 --  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you want to 

move that over towards you (microphone)?  All right.  

He's going to sit there.  

  MR. TONEY:  I believe, it was between 2005, 

2006. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Right.  

  MR. TONEY:  I had a concealed weapon charge.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Right.  

  MR. TONEY:  I ended up getting probation for 

that.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  M-hm 

(affirmative).  

  MR. TONEY:  And did complete that, that 

sentence to prison for two years.  Got out in three 

months.  I haven't been in trouble ever since then, you 

know.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Who's the 

investigator on this?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Boy, you're busy 

today.  You mentioned that he failed to disclose these.  

  MR. SALADINO:  It was, the carrying a concealed 

weapon was listed.  The 2005, obtain or possess a credit 

card without owner's consent, that gross misdemeanor was 

not listed.  The probation was revoked, and the sentence 
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was modified to nine months CCDC, minus 181 days for 

credit for time served.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well.  

  MR. TONEY:  I don't remember that.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What? 

  MR. TONEY:  I don't remember that. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, you 

remember it now.  You didn't remember it when you did 

your application.  Do you want to explain?  

  MR. TONEY:  It slipped my mind totally.  

Totally. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You were 

sentenced to nine months and it slipped your mind? 

  MR. TONEY:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll 

entertain a motion from the Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

decision to deny Joe Henry's --   

  MR. TONEY:  No, Toney.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sorry.  What's the first 

name?  I am so sorry.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

158 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oveon.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Oveon Toney's registration 

due to not disclosing the conviction.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Got a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any discussion?  

 All right.  Call for a vote.  All in favor of 

the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All opposed?  

  Okay.  The motion carries.  Your work card will 

remain denied.  You can reapply in a year, sir.  

  MR. TONEY:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mary? 

  MS. KLEMME:  Yes? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Mary, can I get you to mute your  

microphones unless you need to speak to us, because 

we're getting some feedback.  

  MS. KLEMME:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, that's much 

better.  Not that we don't mind hearing you.  Okay.   
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  All right.  Number 46, Frank Troiano 

("Try-an-yoh").  I hope I --   

  MR. TROIANO:  "Try-awn-oh." 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  "Try-awn-oh."  

Okay.  Okay.  Are you okay, sir? 

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay.  I have a peg leg.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.   

  MR. TROIANO:  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're quite 

welcome.  All right.  Your work card was denied.  And 

you've got some recent history, which is never good for 

the Board.  But I will let you say what you want to say, 

sir.  

  MR. TROIANO:  I was charged this summer with a 

concealed without a permit.  And it got dropped to a 

misdemeanor.  I ended up paying some fines.  And that 

was it.  It'll come off my record soon, even my attorney 

was saying.  The reason being is two years ago, on 

St. Patrick's Day, I was shot, nearly killed.  I died 

twice, 10 minutes each time.  I lost too much blood.  I 

got hit in the artery.  I suffered from PTSD after that.  

And for two years, it's been quite a road, you know.  

  And I was just on my motorcycle.  And because 

of my plastic up here on the socket, I couldn't like 

open carry my weapon, and so I put it right here 
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(indicating) just to get from point A to point B.  And I 

got pulled over.  I told him.  I was honest with him.  

And he took me, he had to take me to jail.   

  It all got dropped, though.  And I didn't even 

have to do probation, never did jail time, never even -- 

I'm 41 years old and never had any real, never any, 

nothing serious at all, you know.   

  And here I am, I just want to forward with my 

life and serve a purpose.  I have a job opportunity with 

amazing people that know me well and like me a lot.  

And, you know, with my leg situation, you know, 

disability thing, I'm too young.  I have a lot of life 

to live.  I just, I have this job opportunity, and I 

just really would love to.  This would mentally and 

physically be great for me.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you 

looking?  

  MR. TROIANO:  No, I'm not.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So why don't you 

explain to me the circumstances of you being shot.  

  MR. TROIANO:  I was actually a Good Samaritan, 

you know, wrong place, wrong time.  I was coming home 

from a friend's house, and there was a road rage 

incident at a red light.  The guy said I cut him off.  

And he pulled up in his car.  And I ride a motorcycle, 
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you know.  And I still ride a motorcycle, you know.  And 

he jumped out of his car and hit me off the bike.  The 

bike fell.  And so I got up.  And he pulled out a gun, 

and he shot me and ran off.  And I was left there at 

2:00 in the morning to die on the street like a dog.  

And I didn't even do nothing wrong, you know.  I woke up 

in the hospital on life support.  Miraculously, I'm 

here.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. TROIANO:  And I never had any other stuff 

in my life.  I'm 41 years old.  I want to start a 

family.  I met an amazing woman.  And this job means 

everything to me.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. TROIANO:  Right now, I'm just waiting.  

Because I don't have anybody lining up to hire a guy 

with one leg, you know.  So I've been -- it was two 

years to recover.  I was in a wheelchair for 12 months, 

you know.  So I had a lot of physical therapy to get 

where I'm at right now. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So why do you 

want to work in security?  

  MR. TROIANO:  It's not security.  It's actually 

repossessing vehicles, recovery agent.  And just either 
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the camera cars, stealing plates, or in the tow truck.  

So this, this will be like the biggest thing to change 

my life around.  Like to just mentally, after all the 

stuff I've been through, suffering, it will really help 

me.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. TROIANO:  That's all.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  All 

right.  Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Gronauer.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm just trying to 

understand.  They had two charges for this, chase, speed 

21 miles per hour over the posted limit, dismissed out 

of the courts.  Okay.  And a firearm charge was reduced 

from a felony to a misdemeanor.  Do you have any weapons 

now?  

  MR. TROIANO:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you own any weapons? 

  MR. TROIANO:  No.  Ever since then, I left it 

alone.  I just want to move forward, you know.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I appreciate you 

disclosing this.  And it's very recent, and it's just 

July of 2018.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Yeah.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And then, can I ask you 

what company is offering you a job?  

  MR. TROIANO:  Recovery Network of Nevada, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Recovery Network?  

  MR. TROIANO:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Saladino? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is that you?  Okay.  

Did we get anything from an employer, a prospective 

employer, any kind of letter or anything?   

  MR. SALADINO:  I have not, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Do you have a 

letter from your employer, from the possible employer?  

  MR. TROIANO:  No, I don't, sir.  But they would 

back me up on anything.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well --   

  MR. TROIANO:  They're good friends and 

everything.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You have to 

understand that the CCW, carrying concealed weapon, but, 

you had a suspended jail sentence, because that means 

you still were found guilty.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You said there 

was nothing to it and that everything was done.  And 
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it's -- well, it's not exactly the truth.  So you have 

to understand how that goes.  Right now, that's all I 

have, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

question from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'll entertain a 

motion.  

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'll make a motion.  I 

move that we overturn Joe Henry's denial.  Mr. Henry is 

appealing the decision, and that I move that we overturn 

it since he did disclose it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Oh, sorry.  It's the wrong 

name.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Frank Troiano.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Frank Troiano.  Sorry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're going to 

have to scratch Joe Henry.  Just color it all in, color 

it all in.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're welcome. 

  All right.  We have a motion.  Do I have a 

second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's the very first for 

you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  The very first. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll call 

for a second a second time.   

  And I'll call for a second a third time.   

  All right.  The motion doesn't pass.  I'm 

seeking another motion. 

  All right.  I'll make a motion.  I'll make a 

motion we're going to deny, only because we don't have 

time and distance.   

  You've been sitting here this morning.  We're 

looking at people that haven't been arrested in 10 

years, 12 years, 15 years.  You haven't even been 12 

months.  And I understand what you're going through.  So 

what I would ask you to do is come back in a year.  And, 

also, bring your potential employer.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Because that's 

got a lot.   

  MR. TROIANO:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We will take that 

into mind.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  But please 
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understand, it hasn't even been 12 months. 

  MR. TROIANO:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So I don't even 

have time and distance.  But don't go anywhere.  They 

don't always agree with me.   

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  But 

that's my motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We 

have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  

  All right.  I'll call for a vote.  All in favor 

of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All opposed, say 

"nay."  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 

passes two to one.  We will support staff.  Your work 

card is denied.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Good 

luck to you, sir.  

  MR. TROIANO:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Come back in a year, 
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and get that employer to talk up for you.  Okay? 

  MR. TROIANO:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 47, Tomas 

Baltazar. 

  Have a seat.  You know what, do me a favor.  

Sit in that one.  Either that or move the mic.  Your 

choice.  All right.  That's even better.  Thank you. 

  MR. BALTAZAR:  Yep. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Mr. Baltazar, you are in front of us.  And tell us 

what's going on and why you think you should get a work 

card.  

  MR. BALTAZAR:  I came like two years ago.  You 

told me to come back in a year.  So I'm trying again.  

And I've been working retail ever since I came, got 

denied.  I work with the public.  So I got to be right 

with them, you know, be nice and everything.  And the 

first time, I think, you had a problem with the other 

thing.  So I was denied.   

  But, yeah, I'm just trying to get it again 

right now, see how you guys think.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Who's the 

investigator on this?  

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ms. Donald, is 
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that correct, we asked him to come back?  

  MS. DONALD:  That is correct.  He appeared 

before the Board in September of 2016.  He had two 

arrests in 2000 and that he did disclose.  He received 

probation and jail time for them, and he was honorably 

discharged.  The reason he was originally denied back 

then was because it was a weapons conviction at the 

misdemeanor level.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Yeah, I -- 

I'll go out on a limb here.  I think, I was the one that 

asked you to come back.  

  MR. BALTAZAR:  Yes, I remember you 

specifically.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, yeah, well, 

I'm easy to remember.  Trust me.  All right.  What have 

you been doing the last two years?  

  MR. BALTAZAR:  Right now, I've been working.  I 

worked at Toys "R" Us before they closed.  Then I was 

unemployed for like two months.  And right now, I'm at 

Target.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank 

you for coming back.  Thank you for hanging in there. 

  MR. BALTAZAR:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You haven't been 

in trouble in the last few years.  
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  MR. BALTAZAR:  Yeah, I'm trying to do right.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll make 

a motion that we overturn the denial.   

  You've stayed out of the trouble.  We have time 

and distance.  We've got 11 years since you've been in 

trouble.  You are gainfully employed.  And you answered 

all the questions truthfully.   

  That is my motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion and 

a second.  Any further discussion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 The motion carries.  You will get your work 

card.  

  MR. BALTAZAR:  All right.  Thank you very much.  

Thank you.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Congratulations. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's a big deal. 

  MR. BALTAZAR:  All right.  Thank you guys.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Mr. Boerdam?  Okay.  I'll try another one.  Is Jason 

here? 

  All right.  Mr. Boerdam doesn't appear to be 

here.  We will trail that one, also.   

  Ms. Maxey. 

  Ms. Maxey, will you help me out with your 

proper pronunciation of your first name.  

  MS. MAXEY:  "Roy-ahn-ah." 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  "Roy-ahn-ah."  

Good afternoon.   

  MS. MAXEY:  Good afternoon. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So tell us 

what's going on.  Why do you want a work card? 

  MS. MAXEY:  Honestly, I'm just, I'm ready to 

change my life.  I've been arrested about five times, 

and it was all just to provide for my kids.  And I was 

young and didn't really have an understanding to life 

and the right things that I should be doing, and I made 

bad choices.  And the choices was just to provide for my 

kids.  Like everything that I was doing, I was just 

trying to provide for my kids.  That was all.  

  And now I'm 25 years old.  And I know that 

those choices that I was making, even though it was, you 

know, to make sure my kids didn't go hungry or anything, 
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I know that they weren't right.  And I know that I have 

to work, and I have to earn my living the right way.   

  And that's why I'm here now just trying to 

change any life around so that I won't be taken away 

from my kids again.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We're not 

even two years since your last arrest.  

  MS. MAXEY:  Two years?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  July of 2017.  

It's not July yet.  What kind of items were you 

stealing; were stealing items to resell, or were you 

stealing food?  

  MS. MAXEY:  Yes, sir, I was stealing items to 

resell.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are 

you doing the last two years since, or the last 23 

months?  

  MS. MAXEY:  I've just been doing hair.  Because 

I've been doing hair since I was 13 years old.  It's -- 

I don't have a lot of clientele.  I don't really know a 

lot of people like that.  So I wasn't making enough 

money to provide for my kids and to pay, you know, where 

I was staying at.   

  And I'm just trying to make a different way, 

just trying to do something different.  Like I don't 
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want to -- I'm not that type of person, and just put 

myself in destruction.  Like I just want to do better 

for my kids.  That's all.  I just want to do better.  

That's it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have no 

further questions.  Any other questions from the Board?  

  What? 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is the one we're 

talking about? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, we're done 

with Joe Henry.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can you say that, what 

happened?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah.  So could you 

explain why you didn't disclose the -- there's some back 

in 2014 that weren't disclosed in the initial 

application.  

  MS. MAXEY:  2014.  I don't remember what was 

going there.  What went on back then?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  There's petty larceny and 

battery, petty larceny, petty larceny and false --  

  MR. INGRAM:  Statement. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  -- statement, obstruction.  

And these were here in Nevada.  
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  MS. MAXEY:  I have my arrest, everything that's 

on my record with me.  I thought that I disclosed 

everything on there.  Because I had it right here in 

front of me.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  These are North 

Las Vegas and Henderson arrests.  

  MS. MAXEY:  North Las Vegas and Henderson 

arrests?  Yes.  What do you want me to say, talk to you 

about this?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Did you -- you didn't 

disclose them.  Was there a reason why?  

  MS. MAXEY:  Honestly, I'm guessing that I 

forgot.  I got a copy of my -- my background from Metro 

Police Department, and I put everything that was on the 

record on my application.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Gotcha.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who's the 

investigator on this?   

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anything you want 

to add?  

  MS. DONALD:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  Are you working 
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now besides doing hair?  

  MS. MAXEY:  No, I'm not.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  How many children do 

you have?  

  MS. MAXEY:  I have older two kids.  I have an 

eight-year-old, a six-year-old.  And I just had a baby, 

but she's one now.  So I have three in total.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And they live with you?  

  MS. MAXEY:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And what are you 

planning on doing if you get a work card?  

  MS. MAXEY:  Working.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where?  

  MS. MAXEY:  I had, I had a job lined up.  I'm 

not sure if it's still in place right now, because it's 

been about two months ago.  I applied for Bedrock 

Protection Security, and they wanted me to bring in my 

guard card and stuff like that.  But I knew that once 

I -- I applied first for my work card, but I knew I had 

to have time in order for it to get approved.  And with 

me not having any felonies or anything like that, I 

thought that I would be approved.  So that's why I 

applied for the Bedrock Protection Security.  But I 

ended up getting something in a note saying that I 

wasn't approved.  So I never went to the interview or 
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anything like that.   

  And I'm just here now just trying to see where 

to go from here.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, I think, you 

heard earlier, you know, time and distance is a big 

thing.  And you have quite a few of these larcenies on 

your record.  And they go -- you know, '14 was bad year 

for you, and then in '16, but then again in January of 

'15.  And these are all guilty.  And the ones you 

forgot, you had to spend some time in the jail, from 

what it says here, two days in jail in 2014.  And, you 

know, it's -- I worked in the jail one time.   

  I guess, I have a problem with the time and 

distance on it.  I mean you seem like a very nice lady.  

You seem like you really want to turn your life around.  

And you had that job lined up.  Have you ever pursued 

any more about it, since you knew you were coming for 

your work card or anything? 

  MS. MAXEY:  I haven't pursued anything else.  

But I just wanted to get everything in order to make 

sure that once I go for it, that it's all said and done.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  The ones that 

you didn't disclose, like I said, are North Las Vegas 

and Henderson.  And whatever Metro gave you, I don't 

know, but it wasn't on the North Las Vegas, Henderson 
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crime.  That's all.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  Call for a motion. 

 I'll call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm thinking.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I know, but the 

motion will die.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm trying to be quiet. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

denial of Ms. Maxey due to time and distance and the not 

disclosing the 2014 larcenies.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm going to 

second that.  And, well, any discussion?  

 You know, besides time and distance, ma'am, 

there's also the fact that you were a prolific 

larcenist.  And one the things in the security industry 

is the folks that work that are entrusted with property, 

and lots of property.  And, I think, we need some more 

distance between your arrests to show that you've gotten 

larceny out of your heart.  Okay.  So.  

 All right.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion 

carried.  The work card is denied.  
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  MS. MAXEY:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Come again in a year.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Mark White. 

  How are you today?  

  MR. WHITE:  Good afternoon.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You had a 

work card application denied.  Let's hear your side.  

  MR. WHITE:  Yeah, it was, it was denied.  I 

didn't know that I didn't disclose any of my record.  

Actually, I -- 17 years, I've been, you know.  Whether I 

did or did not, they wanted it, they wanted it 

disclosed, so. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who's the 

investigator?   

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm really 

confused.  Do we have the right, do we have the right 

gentleman?  Yeah, you did disclose.  

  MS. DONALD:  And the reason he was denied --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You told the 

truth.  

  MR. WHITE:  Well, I -- when -- yeah, but I'm 

saying that I... 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Your hair is going to 
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grow.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Let's 

start from scratch.  I'll go with the investigator 

first.  Maybe she can remind you what you said or you  

didn't say.  Okay.  Go ahead.  

  MS. DONALD:  In 1998, Mr. White was sentenced 

to seven years prison for possession with the intent to 

distribute cocaine.   

  In 1996, he was -- in 1996 and -- okay, yeah, 

transporting, selling narcotic, controlled substance.  

That was a felony.  He was sentenced to three years.   

  He served both the '96 and '98 sentences 

currently.  He was released from prison in 2003. 

 In '92, he had a possession purchasing cocaine 

felony.  He was sentenced to four years and ended up 

serving about one year.   

 So he was denied for the felony charges.  He 

disclosed them on the application.  His fingerprint 

results confirmed what he listed.  And he's not been in 

trouble with the law since his release from prison in 

2003.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So your history, 

going from user to seller, when you went to prison.  And 

you have not been in trouble since 1998.  Is that 

correct?  
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  MR. WHITE:  No trouble.  Well, it was using.  

Of course, you sell to support to use it, so.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  People do.  

  MR. WHITE:  Well, yeah, exactly.  But, yeah, 

no, I haven't been in trouble.  I've been working since.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Well, call 

it what it is, it's a drug deal.  

  MR. WHITE:  Yeah.  Yeah, that period, so. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  But 

it was over 20 years ago.  All right.  What are you 

doing now, today?  

  MR. WHITE:  I'm one of the -- I'm a newer 

self-employed, got my own business, Property 

Preservation.  And I also do Uber.  And I'm trying to do 

this in between, because my contracts pay me every other 

day.  So I got to supply in between.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What is your own 

business?  

  MR. WHITE:  Property Preservation.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Which means?  

  MR. WHITE:  Which means you preserve property.  

Meaning when the house is going to foreclose, they send 

me the work orders, and I go take care of the 

winterization, plumbing, roofing, the lawn, whatever it 

needs, so they can get it back, so they can basically 
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sell it, everything's up to code, so they can say, hey, 

we can sell it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank 

you.   

  Anything other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  Do you have a 

business license?  

  MR. WHITE:  Yes, I do have a Nevada business 

license.  And I have, I have two, because I have to have 

one for Uber, and I have one for what I do, for Property 

Preservation.  And I have an asset managing permit.  So, 

yeah, I got everything.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Good.  I'm good.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion to 

overturn the denial.  Not on that one. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, that's the other guy.    

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 51.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I've got it right here.  

Overturn.  I make a motion to overturn the denial of 

Mark White, who applied for a registration and was 

denied.  I really believe that because of the time and 

distance and he seems to have his feet on the ground 

now.  So that's my motion.  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  There's a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any 

further discussion?  

 Hearing none, call for a vote.  All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  Okay.  You'll be getting your card.  

  MR. WHITE:  Thank you, sir.  Appreciate it. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Bassey.  

Jacques Bassey? 

  All right.  We will trail Mr. Bassey.  

 Mr. Brown, Kenneth Brown.  Come on up.  

  MR. BROWN:  How are you today?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm doing great.  

People remember me two years later.  

  Okay.  Mr. Bassey, why are -- let's see.  Ooh, 

you're another recent one.  All right.  I want to hear 

the story. 

  MR. INGRAM:  It's Mr. Brown.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  My apologies.  

Now I'm -- see, it's not just her.  

  MR. INGRAM:  We're going to have to separate 

you guys.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  All 

right.  We got a failure to disclose.  All right.  Let's 

go.  

  MR. BROWN:  Oh, I just moved here from Texas --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Uh-huh 

(affirmative). 

  MR. BROWN:  -- in January.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Sure. 

  MR. BROWN:  And I've been working security here 

for Allied Universal.  And I applied for my card, and 

they just denied me.  And I did say I disclosed it, on 

my case where I'm from.  And I'm just trying to  

overturn it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So you're working 

for security?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes, sir.  Well, I don't work for 

Allied no more, but I work for CAC.  It's event 

staffing. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm a little 

confused now. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Now I'm confused. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm really 

confused.  Who's the investigator on this? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell, 

please.  I'm confused.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  He was initially made 

provisional, because the arrests that's denying him were 

out of Texas.  We didn't see them until we got the 

fingerprint report. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Gotcha.  Okay.  

All right.   

  Go on.  

  MR. BROWN:  Oh.  That's it.  I just, I hope 

that I can get the denial to get my work card so I can 

work in security.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What did you do 

in Texas before you moved here?  

  MR. BROWN:  Oh, I was working in a warehouse, 

different jobs, odd jobs, and stuff like that.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. BROWN:  I worked for CAC down there, too.  

I did like a lot of sporting events and stuff like that.  

And, basically, that's it.  I mean I'm a pretty good 

worker.  And, basically, that's it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So, 
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Mr. Maxwell.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  He admitted, he 

disclosed the aggravated robbery in 1994, correct, but 

he did not disclose the criminal trespass where he 

served 30 days in 2005?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir, there was no disclosure on 

the application. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  For either one of 

them? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Right, no, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Okay.  

Any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Why didn't you disclose 

the convictions that you had?  

  MR. BROWN:  Well, I did, but I didn't know how 

to process it, you know.  I mean I'm new here.  I don't 

know how to process getting a card.  Because certain 

states, you know, I just worked.  I didn't know anything 

about it.  But if they would have asked me, I would have 

disclosed it.  I'm not trying to lie to you.  But I'm 

hearing from the Board to tell you that I had did some 

time.  And, also, that I'm -- like I said, I'm a pretty 

good worker.  I got letters here for -- I'm a student at 

CSN.  I had no cases here in Nevada like that.  
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Basically, that's it.  I mean I'm not trying to hide 

anything from you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Did you fill out your 

application the office, the PILB office?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes, ma'am.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  You did.  Did you ask any 

questions when you were filling it out, when it came to 

that section?  

  MR. BROWN:  No, I didn't.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Robert?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  When were you released 

from prison?  

  MR. BROWN:  2004.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, you built some 

time there, then.  How much time did you have altogether 

in prison?  

  MR. BROWN:  I just did eight years.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, the charge was in 

'94.  I see.  By the time it goes to court and 

everything else, all right.  I mean what did you do 

prior to Texas, back in California; did you do anything?  

Were you in California?  Now I'm getting the same 

disease.  

  MR. BROWN:  I've been to the West Coast before, 
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and I never --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Stay away from it.  

Okay.  That's all I have.  Well, I have one more thing.  

Do you have a driver's license?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes.  And I have a Nevada ID.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Nevada ID and what 

driver's license do you have?  

  MR. BROWN:  I have a Texas driver's license.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You work for Uber, 

right?  

  MR. BROWN:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Well, I'm done 

again.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're going to be 

taking a break soon.  Okay.  All right.  Any other 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Apparently, I have 

none.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I 

will entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial of Kenneth Brown -- just 

making sure -- due to nondisclosure. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?   
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  All right.  Ray Flynn.  I will second that.  

Any other, further discussion?   

  Seeing none, all in favor of the motion?  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Nay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 

carries two to one.  All right.  Mr. Brown, you have a 

year, you can come back in a year.  You need to  

disclose your arrests.  I've seen the application.  I 

personally asked to see the application.  It was pretty 

clear:  Have you ever been arrested or convicted?  We 

need to know.  All right.  You have a good day, sir.  

  MR. BROWN:  All right.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Can we take a break?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, we're taking 

a break.  We're taking a break for 15 minutes.  

  Are you okay with that up north?  Give me a 

thumbs-up if you're okay with it. 

  MS. KLEMME:  Yes. 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

                        * * * * * 
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(A break was taken, 12:28 to 12:46 p.m.) 

                        * * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're just 

waiting on the attorney. 

  (There was a brief period off the record.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We're 

ready to get started.  And if we get into a legal 

problem, then we'll pause. 

  Good morning, Mr. Butler.  

  MR. BUTLER:  Good morning, Chairman.  Good 

afternoon, everybody.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good afternoon.  

We've all had our break.  We know who's up here.  We all 

got the right stuff on our computers.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Maybe.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Well, 

we denied you a work card.  Why don't you give me your 

side of the story, sir.  

  MR. BUTLER:  I've learned from my mistakes.  

I'm very humble.  Right now, I search for job security. 

Since my release date, I believe in '94, I haven't been 

in any trouble.  Maybe a few minor things, but other 

than that, I've been very good, very humble.   

  I'm goal-orientated.  The last three or four 

years, I was a line haul driver.  That kind of conflicts 
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with my goals.  I am working right now.  It's a decent 

job.  It's just right now it's not enough.  I have two 

possibilities for a security job already.  I just need 

this guard card.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anything else to 

add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  No, sir, only that he -- he did 

disclose all the arrests and provided court documents 

and was very forthcoming with information when asked. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any 

questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  This is the easy one.  I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Find the right guy.   

  I will make a motion to overturn the denial of 

Dorien Butler.  He applied for registration, was denied.  

And that's where I'm at.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll 

second and add to that that we definitely have time and 

distance.  It's been over 21 years since he's been in 

trouble, so.  All right.  We got a motion.  We got a 

second.  Any discussion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye."  
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 Congratulations.  You'll be getting your card.  

  MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  Thank you all very 

much.  You have a wonderful day.  Yes, sir.  Thank you 

all very much.  You have a good day.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you. 

  MR. BUTLER:  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Eva Camarillo. 

  Good afternoon, ma'am. 

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Howdy, howdy.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Denied your work card.  Why don't you talk to us and 

tell us why you think you should get one.  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Well, I've spoken to 

Mr. Maxwell, or Investigator Maxwell.  And he requested 

information from me.  But I did disclose.  So I 

submitted all that information to him.  My certificate 

of rehabilitation dated back 2002.  My documentation 

showing my case was expunged from Kern County, I believe 

that was in '94, '98, something like that.  I haven't 

been in any trouble since.   

  What I've done, what I've done and been doing 

since 2002 is going to school.  I'm about seven classes 

away from my bachelor's, Fresno State.  I have got, I 
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have received my associate's.  I have received a minor.  

I received certificates along the way, substance abuse 

counseling; certification, not patient counseling.  I 

thought I'd clear that up.  You know, so I've done a lot 

of things along the way.  Raised my kids.   

  I do do security.  I have worked in jobs where 

I have handled money.  I've never had any issues since 

my issues.  So I'm trying to just get it cleaned up and 

get my guard card here in Nevada. 

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  I have my guard card in 

California.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  How long have you 

lived in Las Vegas?  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  I don't.  I live in Fresno.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, you want to 

move here?  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  No.  I live in Fresno.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Right.  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  The company I work for, CFC, 

there's also a branch here, and there's a branch in 

Reno.  And they sometimes call us to come work here.  

And I have a better chance of getting called to fill 

those positions if I have a guard card.  So. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You have 
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your California guard card?  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Yes, I have my California guard 

card.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm 

up to speed.  I got it.  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Yeah.  That's why I said I have 

my California guard card. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I connected the 

dots. 

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  It's amazing.  

All right.  Thank you. 

  Mr. Maxwell.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anything else to 

add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  No, sir, only what Ms. Camarillo 

mentioned before.  She was very, very helpful with 

providing information.  And she disclosed the arrests. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, he said you 

were helpful.  He usually doesn't. 

  MS. CAMARILLO:  I try.  I try.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No. 
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move to we overturn 

Camarillo's denial and award her a guard card.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have 

a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any 

discussion on the record?   

  All right.  I want the record to reflect that 

we definitely have time and distance.  And she's 

currently working for a security company in California, 

and the reasons why she wants a card, so.  Okay.  With 

that, all in favor, say "aye" on the motion.  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  The motion carries.  Congratulations. 

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Awesome.  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thanks for waiting so 

long.  

  MS. CAMARILLO:  Thanks.  Not a problem.  Thank 

you.  I appreciate everything.  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay, 

Mr. Collins, Ronald Collins.  
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  MR. COLLINS:  Good afternoon.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good afternoon.  

  MR. COLLINS:  Good afternoon to the 

investigators and those up north.  My name's Ron 

Collins.  

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Collins, the 

card was denied.  And, also, you failed to disclose.  So 

let's talk about it.  

  MR. COLLINS:  The fact that Mr. Maxwell --  

can you update me on what's on my disclosure?  Can I -- 

can he go first, so I know what I'm dealing with?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just tell us about your 

side.  

  MR. COLLINS:  Oh, well, I had a conviction in 

1970.  I'm 66 years old now.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Right. 

  MR. COLLINS:  This conviction took place when I 

was 17 years old in the city of Chicago in North 

Lawndale where I was born and raised.  And I was 

convicted of voluntary manslaughter and sentenced to 10 

years in the state penitentiary, which I did 18 months.  

And since then, I've been living a productive citizen, 

you know, so.  

  So I don't remember what I failed to disclose.  

I mean the question was a felony.  Right?  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The question was 

if you'd been arrested.  

  MR. COLLINS:  Okay. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir, if I may.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, you may, 

Mr. Maxwell.   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Collins did, in fact, 

disclose that arrest for the disclosure of the murder 

charge in 1970 at felony level.  In 1971, he was 

sentenced to Joliet two to 10 years.  Also in '71, the 

charge was amended to voluntary manslaughter, and he was 

paroled to Rockford, Illinois on 12-21-1972.   

  The arrests that were not disclosed was a theft 

arrest in 1970, which he got one year's probation, and a 

1976 petty theft, which it was another one year's  

probation.  Those are the only two things that were not 

disclosed.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  How much time did 

you do for the manslaughter?  

  MR. COLLINS:  18 months. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You only did 18 

months?  

  MR. COLLINS:  Right.  It was, basically, like a 

self-defense thing.  Like I said, I was 17 years old.  

And I was being robbed.  And, you know, it went from 
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there.  And, you know, since I got out of prison in 

1973, I started working for the Rockford Housing 

Authority in 1978.  I worked there for 30 years.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. COLLINS:  And then I got sick and come out 

with disability.  I moved out here to Nevada.  Which I 

had been coming to Nevada for the last 30 years.  And so 

when I retired from my job, I relocated to Las Vegas.  

Six months after I moved here, my daughter died.  So I 

had to take in her three children.  I'm a single parent.  

And so I took them, her three children, and put them all 

through school out here in Nevada.  All three of them 

have graduated.  They're all working.  And life is going 

on.   

  I don't think I have any other blemishes on my 

history.  I could have brought some documentation, some 

paperwork, or some pastors and politicians and all of 

that here to talk for me.  But I figured that I'm just 

going to talk for myself, sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, and I 

appreciate that.  How long have you been living in 

Nevada, then?  

  MR. COLLINS:  I've been here since 2010.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what are you 

doing for a job right now?  
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  MR. COLLINS:  Well, I'm retired.  You know, 

that's why, that's why I'm trying to get a job, so I can 

do something.  You know what I saying? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MR. COLLINS:  Yeah, I'm trying to be 

productive, you know.  I haven't drank in 31 years.  I 

haven't smoked a cigarette in 30 years.  And, you know, 

I don't have any blemishes on my driving record.  So 

it's, you know -- I'm at your mercy this morning.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, we're not 

going to go that far. 

  MR. COLLINS:  Oh, okay.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So if I 

understand correctly, you just forgot about the theft 

charge?  

  MR. COLLINS:  Well, the question, I thought the 

question was felony.  That's -- you know, it wasn't that 

I was digging deep into the -- you know.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I --  

  MR. COLLINS:  Like I said, I'm 66.  I got the 

loss of memory thing like you guys have been discussing, 

so. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Gronauer 

likes to, oh, I don't know about it, I don't know what's 

going on.  
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  MR. COLLINS:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I mean you 

admitted to the manslaughter.  I mean I can see where 

you made a mistake on the minor charge.  You admitted to 

the more --  

  MR. COLLINS:  That's up in North Lawndale.  If 

any of you guys are familiar with Chicago, coming up in 

that era.  You can go there right now at, what, 3:00 

o'clock and you'll see hundreds of young folks standing 

on corners.  So that's the kind of the environment that 

I come out of. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. COLLINS:  And I brought my grandchildren 

out of there so they wouldn't be caught up in that type 

of lifestyle. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. COLLINS:  So I brought them out here, 

figure we can have a better quality of life in Nevada.  

And that's happening, you know.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Isn't it amazing?  

  MR. COLLINS:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I just had.  

Mr. Maxwell.  
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  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is there anything to 

add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I have none.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  No 

discussion.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make the motion to 

overturn the denial on Mr. Ron Collins.  

  MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Who applied for 

registration and was denied. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any 

discussion?  

 Okay.  I just want to add it's been over 40 

years since Mr. Collins has been in any type of legal 

trouble.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I agree.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Call 

for a vote.  All in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed? 
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  The motion carries.  You'll be getting your 

card.  Good luck to you, sir. 

  MR. COLLINS:  Sounds mighty well, too.  Thank 

you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Ms. English.  Breiana English.  

 Okay.  We will trail that one.  

 Tommy Garner. 

  Mr. Garner, how are you, sir? 

  MR. GARNER:  Good afternoon.  All right.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's not your  

photo album, is it?  

  MR. GARNER:  No.  This is my charges. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  This is going to 

be an interesting one.  All right.  Mr. Garner, let me 

catch up here. 

  Okay.  We denied your security guard card.  So 

tell us why you think you should have one and what you 

did in the past.  

  MR. GARNER:  I'm from California.  What I did 

in the past, I was working for C1, a radio station out 

there in California, for about nine years before I moved 

out here in December of 2018.  The only reason I moved 

out here is because of my son.  But I was making $35 an 

hour out there.  It's just after I lost my grandma about 
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three years ago, we lost our house; you know, mama gave 

it up to foreclosure.   

  So after we lost the house, I was sleeping in 

my '96 Benz, trying just to go back and forth for work, 

in and out of the L.A.  My son called me November 20th.  

And when I used to come back and forth, I used to 

whisper in his ear and tell him I was going to move out 

here.  When I got that call, he told me, he was like, 

"Oh, Dad, are you still coming out here for my 

birthday?"  And I go, "Are you living out here?"  And 

his birthday is October.  So when I got that call on his 

birthday of October 21st, I came out here two days after 

his birthday.  I sold everything.  And I decided to make 

a bust.  And my best friend from high school took me in,  

and he was saying that whatever you got to do, he going 

to be there to help me.   

  So I'm just out here, I'm trying to do for my 

son.  You know, I'm trying raise a kid.  So that's the 

only reason I'm out here. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Take a couple 

breaths.  

  MR. GARNER:  Oh, no, I'm good.  It's just, it's 

touching just talking about it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

Mr. Maxwell.  
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  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  How do you get 

all of these?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go talk to your 

boss.  Anything you want to add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  No, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What I 

want you to talk about, Mr. Garner, is all your arrests 

had to do with violence or something that could cause 

violence.  Okay.  I mean I don't have a larcenist here. 

  MR. GARNER:  Yeah. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And I don't have 

a DUI or a drug user.  I've got somebody that either 

done violence or brought something to do violence.  So 

why don't we talk about that.  

  MR. GARNER:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Before I decide 

why I want to allow you to be a security in our state.  

  MR. GARNER:  Well, which one do you want to 

talk about?   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Talk about them 

all.  I want to talk about all of them.  

  MR. GARNER:  Okay.  So let's start off with the 

gun case. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

203 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. GARNER:  2007, just graduated from high 

school, from Boston High School out there in 

San Bernardino County.  Came to visit, on my dad's side, 

cousins and family members that I haven't seen in a long 

time.  My little cousins wanted to go to a party.  There 

was no cars around there.  The only person that was 

there was me, being the oldest -- I'd just turned 18 -- 

and my grandma.  My grandma was there. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Were you --  

  MR. GARNER:  Huh? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why were you 

carrying a gun?  

  MR. GARNER:  Oh, I'm going to tell you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. GARNER:  My grandma was there.  She knew 

the area.  Like I said, I wasn't in L.A.  I'd just 

graduated from high school in San Bernardino County.  

She knew the area.  She gave me her personal gun, in the 

case and everything.  I put it in my -- she told me to 

put it in my backpack.  I put it in my backpack.  She 

told me to put it in my backpack.  I put it in my 

backpack.  And she told me to take them to the actual 

party that they wanted to go to, which is another family 

member's party who was graduating from high school and 
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going into college, playing football for USC.   

  So on the way back, we got pulled over for a 

curfew stop, because we looked young.  When I got pulled 

over, the officer asked us, "Hey, how old are you guys?"  

I told him, "I'm 18."  Then it was like, "You got any 

weapons?"  I told him that I got a backpack, I said, "I 

got a backpack.  There's a gun in there, and it's in the 

case and all that.  I'm 18.  It's my grandma's.  She 

told me to take it for protection."  And then from 

there, he looked at it and said, "Okay.  Well, we just 

got you on a traffic stop.  I'm going to take you in.  

Thank you for being honest, but I'm going to take you in 

for that gun."   

  So I don't know if you guys got the reports, 

but it should have my grandma name listed on the actual 

document of the courts. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Never 

heard that one. 

  MR. GARNER:  So --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Let's move 

forward.  

  MR. GARNER:  The fight. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, the 2013, 

let's just talk about that.  

  MR. GARNER:  It was my birthday, the night 
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before my birthday. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Uh-huh 

(affirmative). 

  MR. GARNER:  My cousin had a female end up -- 

you know, we were having a party in my house.  Had a 

female end up in the rest room, and she told him, "Stop, 

no, leave me alone."  So I broke into the door, because 

I knew, you know, it was the tone, it might not be -- 

why he's holding her hostage.  Let her go.  Let her do 

what she want to do.  They wasn't together, nothing like 

that.  He was getting mad, all hostile.  He didn't want 

to leave my home.  Which he stayed right across the 

street.  He didn't want to leave.  I said, "Man, just 

leave.  You know me.  Just rub it off the next morning."  

  So it got into a fight.  I went to his side, 

because we stay in a cul-de-sac.  So I went to his 

house.  And I wasn't on his premises, but he called the 

police before he even came down his walkway.  And that 

was the actual fight of me getting arrested on my 

birthday.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what was the 

false ID part?  

  MR. GARNER:  False ID because I didn't have ID 

on me. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You had a false 
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ID on you? 

  MR. GARNER:  No, I didn't have ID on me at all.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you identify 

yourself incorrectly to the officers?  

  MR. GARNER:  No.  I didn't identify myself at 

all.  I was pointed out on the call.  They already, they 

already gave, they already had to give a description of 

the clothes that I had on.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And you 

did 22 days in jail?  

  MR. GARNER:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  For fighting in a 

public place?  

  MR. GARNER:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  No 

other questions from me.  Anybody else, questions from 

the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And that was the fight in 

2013, right?  Because there was one for a fight, noise, 

offensive words. 

  MR. GARNER:  It was 2008.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  What is that type 

of -- I'm sorry.  Thank you.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  That, that one actually is linked 

in with the carrying the firearm. 
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Gotcha.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I apologize.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  They're together. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  They're together.  All 

right.  Thank you.  No further questions.  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Garner.  

  MR. GARNER:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a problem 

with anger issues?  

  MR. GARNER:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You just happen to get 

in them spots, and things happen, right?  

  MR. GARNER:  Well, I've just been in certain 

situation that I had no control over.  But I've always 

been honest.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I have a follow-up.  And 

I'm sorry if I missed it.  But what have you been doing 

since you've gotten here to Nevada?  

  MR. GARNER:  I was working for SOA.  I was 

communicating with the club just to try to figure out 

why my card wasn't actually coming, because I did a -- I 

guess, a speed process for the card.  So I was just 

checking on it like every week, calling in to make sure, 

when my card is coming, and found out that I have to go 
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to a board, you guys denied me.  Since then, I've just 

been hard-pressed just to make rent.  So I'm going to go 

back to LA.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  One other 

question.  Did you work in security in California?  

  MR. GARNER:  I was doing, I was doing private 

security, working with celebrities, A-listed 

celebrities.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank 

you.   

  Do you have anything else?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I'm good.  Thank 

you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  No 

other questions.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'll move to overturn 

Mr. Garner's denial due to time and distance and the 

fact that he actually did disclose the arrests. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have 

a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second.  You 

second?  I'll second this time.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh.  Okay.  I 

have a motion.  And Board Member Gronauer seconded it.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Is there any 

discussion on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 Okay.  Congratulations.  You'll be getting your 

card.  

  MR. GARNER:  Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Good luck. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good luck to you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anthony Lujan.  

  MR. LUJAN:  You said my name right.  Good 

afternoon.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good afternoon to 

you.  I have to catch up.  And let's see.   

  Okay.  Your work card process was denied.  

We've got nondisclosures, as well as we've got some 

crimes of violence.  So let's hear your side, sir. 

  MR. LUJAN:  For the nondisclosure, I believe 

that I said that I had a felony on my record from about 

29 years ago.  I didn't disclose the fact that there was 

a weapon and which actually was -- it was an incident 

with a family member.  And there actually was, it was a 

butter knife that I threatened him with.   
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MR. LUJAN:  But, anyway, the cops were called, 

and they arrested me.  And I went to court.  I actually 

took the advice of the lawyer instead of fighting it.  

He asked me, told me that I should plead nolo contendo 

or contendere.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  M-hm 

(affirmative).  

  MR. LUJAN:  And the outcome was supposed to be 

that I was going to have probation.  And then it was 

going to be a sealed record for a certain amount of 

years.  And then, if I didn't get any other charges, it 

was supposed to be expunged from my record.  But they 

never did do that.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You had a 

DUI in 1982.  It was a long time ago, but you didn't 

disclose that.  

  MR. LUJAN:  Yeah.  I was just -- I thought they 

were just looking for felony stuff and that stuff.  I 

mean I've had three DWIs, and they were three years 

apart.  And I actually quit drinking after that, because 

I did not want to get another one.  And I swore I would 

never drive until I quit drinking, and which I did back 

in -- when I was about 30 years old. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  How long have you 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

211 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

been living in Nevada?  

  MR. LUJAN:  I just moved here in January. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what have you 

done for employment in the last -- 

  MR. LUJAN:  Oh, well, I actually was working 

for Securitas in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  M-hm 

(affirmative). 

  MR. LUJAN:  Which I still have, I actually have 

a card right here which is still valid till November.  

It's the guard card from there.  And I was transferring.  

And then I had to go to the PILB and apply, and they 

denied it because of that came up.  And they actually 

had a position for me, but I couldn't take it because I  

didn't have my card.  And I actually worked at Golden 

Corral as well, and I was able to transfer with them, 

too.  So I still had a job secured here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Let 

me guess.  Mr. Maxwell, is this yours, too?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

Anything you want to add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Just that Mr. Lujan was not made 

provisional because he did, in fact, disclose the felony 

arrest.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  Mr. Lujan, do you 

intend to work in security?  

  MR. LUJAN:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Armed or unarmed? 

  MR. LUJAN:  I'm just looking for not armed.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Because I know, in 

Nevada, if you have a domestic violence, it's better if 

you don't have a gun. 

  MR. LUJAN:  Yeah, I think, I knew that.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  There's not a lot of 

open carries over here, even though it's -- it was 

angry, and it started without the domestic violence, and 

I know how that works. 

  MR. LUJAN:  Yeah.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And because you're 

here, because --  

  MR. LUJAN:  No, I didn't have a gun.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You're used to 

something else.  It's still domestic violence as far as 

the court goes.  

  MR. LUJAN:  Right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  So I wanted  

to make sure if you're doing armed or unarmed.  How long 
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have you lived here? 

  MR. LUJAN:  I moved here in January when I was 

going to transfer with Securitas.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And where have you been 

working since January?  

  MR. LUJAN:  Golden Corral.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  We have a Golden 

Corral?  

  MR. LUJAN:  We have two actually.  We're in the 

process of getting three more.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No kidding? 

  MR. LUJAN:  Yes.  You should go there.  It's 

great.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I remember, I seen that 

we used to have one at the Harrah like 30 years ago.  

  MR. LUJAN:  Oh.  And the one I work at is, it's 

just --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, help me out, sir.  

Thank you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  No 

other questions.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion, if 

you don't mind, to set aside the denial and approve 

Anthony Lujan, who applied for registration and was 

denied prior. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'll second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion and 

a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's just time and 

distance.  

  MR. LUJAN:  Thank you.  Appreciate it.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  All 

in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 The motion carries.  You'll get your card.  

Congratulations.  Good luck to you. 

  MR. LUJAN:  Thank you.  Appreciate it.  Have a 

good day.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  You, too. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm 

just going to go through this, and you can help me with 

the last name and pronunciation of it here.  Vincent, 

with an M? 

  All right.  We'll trail that one, too.   

  Jeremy Shechtman. 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Here, Your Honor. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm not Your 
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Honor.  Did I pronounce it correctly?  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Mr. Shechtman, let's talk about we denied you, you 

didn't disclose some things, you did some things.  Let's 

hear it from you.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  As far as the reason why I was 

denied, I was told that it was because of an offensive 

weapon, sir.  I didn't write that down.  In that year, 

towards the end of 2010, I came back from my second tour 

of Iraq.  I came back to a mother who had second-degree 

lymphoma, second-stage lymphoma.  At that time, I found 

out that my mother and my ex-fiance', my fiance' at the 

time, my ex-fiance' now, had gotten into a big argument, 

because they had -- she had said that she wanted to tell 

me that my mother had cancer, my mother did not want her 

to tell me because of where I was at, was afraid that it 

was going to affect me.  So on my return home, we warred 

with each other.  If I was with one, the other one would 

yell at me.  If I was with the other, that one would 

yell at me. 

  On the day that this arrest happened, I had 

gotten, just gotten back from Philadelphia, where I had 

taken my mom to chemotherapy.  So when I got back to the 

house, with my ex-fiance' there, she had got into a 
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verbal argument with me, accused me of doing all these 

things, not loving her as much as I loved my mother.  

And I left the area.  She proceeded to call her mom and 

tell her mom that we had been in a -- not a physical 

altercation, but an argument.  Her mother proceeded to 

call the police.   

  They picked me up down the road.  And when the 

police officers took me out of the car, it turned out 

that there was a family member who was part of that 

police department.  They went through the car.  I was a 

little aggressive because of the situation that I had 

just come out of.  And they had found a baseball bat,  

which I had put in the car.  I have pictures of what the 

baseball looked like in the car and the --  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Shechtman, you just put your  

papers over the microphone.  The court reporter won't be 

able to hear you.  Actually, push that up towards me, so 

it won't pick up the papers rustling.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Understood.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  This is the picture of the bat 

and the hook that it was in.  So the bat was laying in 

there along with a scraper for my car and some stuff.  

The reason why it was put in there like that was to keep 

it from rolling around.  I had a '99 TransAm at the 
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time, which had -- there was no trunk room.  So. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Like 

you said, you got mouthy with the officers.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes, sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And they say what 

happened with this one.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  It's 

some time ago.  What have you done in the last --   

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Currently, I am the senior  

vice president of CRI Counterterrorism Training School.  

I have trained veterans.  I trained contractors, law  

enforcement and future military forces that are going 

overseas in how to protect themselves, weapon training, 

hand-to-hand combat and such.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So, and you're 

applying for a guard card?  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  I am, sir, yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm missing 

something here.  You're the CEO of a company that does 

training, and you're trying to get a guard card? 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Senior vice president.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, okay.  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  So I also, I also work as a 

bodyguard for the CEO of that company.  And I go with 
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him, with his family, if there's ever anything that he 

needs protection-wise.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  I'd like to start, continue to 

serve the Nevada community and get my -- all my 

certifications.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So 

you don't live here? 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Sir? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you live here? 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  I do live here.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We 

pronounce it "Neh-VAD-ah."   

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

Mr. Maxwell. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Sir. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anything you want 

to add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Just that he disclosed everything 

that's on the denial report.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

I have no further questions.  Anybody else on the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I don't have any question.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's easy to call it 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

219 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

"Neh-VAD-ah." 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  I'm from Philadelphia, sir, so.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Are you from 

Philadelphia or somewhere around there?  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Oh, originally from 

Philadelphia, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I know it well.  

That's where were you arrested, in Philly?  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes, sir.  It was right outside 

Philadelphia, right outside.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You're a Pennsylvania 

boy?  

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No, I'm good.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll  

entertain a motion, since there's no further questions 

from the Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion to 

overturn the denial on Jeremy Shechtman.  Time and 

distance.  He applied for his registration card. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a second.  

All in favor -- any other discussion on the motion?  
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  All in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed? 

  The motion carries.  You'll get your card.  

Congratulations. 

  MR. SHECHTMAN:  Thank you, sir.  Have a good 

day.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You know, some people 

came in late again.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  How many 

people are here for work card appeals?  

 Nobody.  They're just entertainment.   

 All right.  I need to call these fellows.  Is 

Mr. Bryson Blue here? 

 All right.  I will call him one more time.   

 I'm going to go through those that were 

trailed.  They were trailer this morning.   

 All right.  I have a private investigator and 

process server license that I'm trailing, a Lawrence E. 

Sanchez.  Is Mr. Sanchez here?  

 All right.  He is not here.  What does the 

Board want to do with this one?  

 Who's the investigator on this, Mr. Sanchez?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Oh.  I'm sorry.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What do you know 
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about this guy?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Let's see.  Mr. Sanchez was 

licensed previously here in Nevada.  He did, however, 

let it expire in '18.  That's why he was reapplying.  He 

also has Sanchez Investigations in California.  It is in 

good standing with California DSIS.  He did provide 

forms from DSIS verifying the license is in good 

standing and has been kept that way since 1989, since he 

applied.  He was notified. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  They 

do not have to be here, so.  All right.  Any questions 

from the Board?  I did not, myself, I did not have 

questions on this one.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  For verification, normally, 

the Board history is if they're applying for a new 

license, they're required to report before the Board, or 

they ought to. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, they are?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  The change of statuses would 

be the ones that you don't normally require them here.  

  In the past, you've traditionally gone ahead 

and postponed it to the next Board meeting.  However, 

you can go ahead and decide on it without him being 

present if you would like to.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Nope, first time 
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chairing, so.  So I don't need a motion to postpone it, 

do I?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We 

will postpone number 36 to the next meeting.  

 Thank you.  

 All right.  That's it from the morning session.   

 Registration appeals.  Is Mr. Calloway here?  

 Mr. Calloway's not here.  I make a motion we 

deny his appeal.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We're 

agreeing with staff for denial.  

 Sade Easley.  Is Sade Easley here? 

 Okay.  I'll make a motion that we deny his 

appeal.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All in 

favor? 

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Denied. 

  Number 43, Sidney Harvey.  Is Mr. Harvey here, 

or Ms. Harvey?  
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 Okay.  I'll make a motion we deny the appeal.  

Do I have a second?   

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We have a motion 

and a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Harvey's 

denied.  

 Number 48, Jason Boerdam.  Mr. Boerdam, are you 

here? 

 He's not here.  I make a motion we deny the 

appeal.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We have a 

motion and a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion 

carries.  And I was aye on that. 

 Number 52, Jacques Bassey.  Is Mr. Bassey here?  

 He's not here.  I make a motion that we deny 

the appeal.  I need a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a 

motion and a second.  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  His appeal 

is denied. 

 Number 57, Breiana English.  Is Ms. English 

here? 

 Okay.  She is not here.  I make a motion we 

deny that appeal.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a second.  

All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The motion 

carries. 

  Number 61, Vincent Miozza.  Is Mr. Miozza here? 

  He is not.  I make a motion to deny the appeal.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a second.  

All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  Motion carries.  

 Number 64, Mr. Bryson Blue, are you here?   

 He is not here.  I make a motion we deny the 

appeal.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a second.  

All in favor, "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 Okay.  That is it for the morning session.  We 

have a disciplinary hearing next.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Do you want to take five or 10 

minutes --  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Yeah. 

  MR. INGRAM:  -- to let them prepare, and? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, five's 

good.   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I need to run out and prep.  

And we're going to shift Board Counsel to Mr. Detmer. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Let's take 10 so  

nobody's rushing.  We're going up and down stairs.   

  I want to do this because this is the end of 

the -- I've never done this.  The morning session is 

over (gavel). 

  We're on a 10-minute break.  

                        * * * * * 

(A break was taken, 1:26 to 1:55 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We'll 

call to order the disciplinary hearing for Adam Plant, 
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R, as in Robert, 085960, pursuant to NRS 648.156, for 

possible action. 

  Will all the parties identify themselves, 

starting with the State.  

  MR. DETMER:  And, Mr. Chairman, I apologize.  

As to the Board, are all the -- do we have a quorum as 

far as members and as far as the names of the members 

that are present for the hearing? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You know what, we 

will, I'll call a role, might be the best, best thing to 

do.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Do you want me to do that?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, why don't 

you do that. 

  MR. INGRAM:  All right.  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  And Board Member Flynn?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  We do have a quorum for 

this meeting.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  My name's Rosalie 

Bordelove.  I'll be representing the Board and, 
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potentially, staff today.   

  And, as you see, Mike Detmer is here as your 

counsel.  So any questions you have regarding any of 

your role as Board or those questions, please direct 

towards him.  He's there to give you advice today.  

  MR. REID:  Good afternoon.  Stephen Reid.  I 

am --  

  (The Reporter indicated that it's difficult to 

hear Las Vegas.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, can you hear them okay? 

  (There was a brief discussion off the record.)  

  MR. REID:  Do you want me to try again? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why don't you try 

again. 

  THE REPORTER:  Yeah, thank you. 

  MR. REID:  Stephen Reid.  I'm an attorney.  I'm 

representing the respondent here, who is Adam Plant, who 

is present.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You got that? 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I did.  Thank you.  Great.  

Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

preliminary motions?  

  MS. DETMER:  Any stipulations? 

  MR. REID:  We have, we have exhibits that are 
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being filed between myself and the Attorney General's 

Office.  We have agreed to admit both sides of all the 

exhibits.  And we have presented those, I think, to the 

Board already, one from the respondent's side, one from 

the petitioner's side.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Yes, we're both stipulating to 

the admittance.  

 MS. BORDELOVE:  And then the other preliminary 

matter, I think, I had, which, I believe, counsel has 

agreed to, is to stipulate to that, and I will withdraw 

these paragraphs, and correct me if I'm wrong on any of 

them, but that certain paragraphs in the complaint would 

be the ones that were admitted in the answer, but to 

consider them, stipulate to considering them proven.  

And then I won't go through anything on them.  And those 

would be paragraphs 1, 3, 5, 8, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 20, 

23, 26, 27.  

 To the extent that any of you don't have -- I'd 

advise you to start with this.  The complaint, I know, 

it's probably supporting material for this meeting, is 

also Exhibit 1 in those binders, and the answer I made 

Exhibit 2, just so those would be in the record and easy 

to find.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

229 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MR. REID:  And, also, we have no issues with 

admitting those and given those based upon the answer to 

the complaint.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  And then you -- any other 

preliminary matters?  

  MR. REID:  I have no motions or issues.  The 

only concern I have is, is that there is an ongoing 

criminal case against Mr. Adam Plant for these, this 

exact situation.  I have advised my client to plead his, 

take his Constitutional right to the Fifth Amendment, to 

invoke that Fifth Amendment right.  He does wish to 

speak to the Board.   

  I just want the Board to know that that, when I 

jump up and stop him or if I stop him from answering 

certain questions, it's because that's my advice that 

I'm requesting him not to answer those questions based 

upon his ongoing criminal case.  And I presume the Board 

is aware of the criminal case.  And if it's not, it is 

in my exhibits, and it's Exhibit G, which is 

Bates-stamped RES041.  

  MR. DETMER:  And I'm sorry, counsel.  So we 

have a binder up here.  There's two packets of exhibits.  

  MR. REID:  Oh, I made it easier, sir.  The 

binder is where the Attorney General's Office, and mine 

is just the smaller package in the binder. 
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  MR. DETMER:  Okay. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  And when he's referring to 

Bates-stamped, any of you that may not be familiar, it's 

on the bottom right.  The Attorney General's, the ones 

brought forth by the petitioner and my exhibits, are 

Bates-stamped with PILB Bates at the bottom right in the 

left of the binder. 

  MR. KLEMME:  Excuse me.  Excuse me.  Am I going 

to be giving Shannon these exhibits right now?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  You may.  I believe, they've 

all been admitted at this point by stipulation. 

  MS. KLEMME:  Okay.  They all have been 

admitted.  Okay.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mr. Chairman, that they have been 

admitted. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm sorry.  What?  

  MR. DETMER:  Just as far as the declaration for 

the record, that the exhibits of the counsels have been 

admitted into the record.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  They have been 

admitted.  

  (Petitioner's Exhibits 1 through 15 and 

Respondent's Exhibits A through H were marked for 

identification prior to the commencement of the hearing 

and are admitted by stipulation.) 
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  Then, yes, you may give them 

all to Shannon. 

  MS. KLEMME:  Oh, okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. DETMER:  And Mike Detmer, serving as Board 

counsel.   

  As far as the --  

  (The Reporter indicated that it's difficult to 

hear Las Vegas.) 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, Board Counsel.   

  As far as the statement of intent to exercise 

the Fifth Amendment right to not self-incriminate, a 

properly exercised right to avoid self-incrimination 

should be observed and the non-testimony not taken 

adversely against the witness.  But that would be a 

properly exercised Fifth Amendment observation.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. DETMER:  And as far as -- and this is for 

my edification, actually the Board's, everyone's 

edification.  I'm talking too fast again, I know.  Do 

the parties wish to exercise a motion to exclude 

witnesses?  

  MR. REID:  We have no wish to.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I have no wish to. 

  MR. DETMER:  And are there any additional 

stipulations or motions preliminary to the hearing?  
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  MR. REID:  I think, that's everything.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Let's 

get started. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  Then, I will, I guess, 

start and give you a bit of an overview.   

  What we have here today is an individual who, 

in the eyes of, I guess, petitioner in this, or the 

Board, has been using his registered work card as a full 

license to provide private security and executive 

protection services for clients within the state of 

Nevada. 

  As I will show you, in going through these 

exhibits and through testimony, the respondent was 

informed on numerous occasions that he needed a full 

license to be able to provide these services.  But 

instead of getting licensed, he disregarded the 

requirements of NRS 648.060 and continued to perform 

private security and executive protection services 

despite receiving five unlicensed activity citations. 

  And I wanted to point out a couple of things 

just to clarify what I'm asking for today.  None of 

these five citations have been appealed within the 

required time frame, which is 30 days by statute.  But 

what I am asking for you to do is to revoke his work 
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card, his registration, under NRS 648.156, because he 

violated the provisions of NRS Chapter 648 and showed an 

utter disregard for their contents.  

 So I just wanted to, I guess, clarify that this 

isn't a citation appeal hearing as you had before.  And 

I'm -- though I'm going to be going through some of the 

facts in the citations.  But we are basing off of NRS 

648.156, subsection 2.  And I don't know if any of you 

want to take a look at that at the outset of this.  I 

can also pull it up from somewhere in here. 

 Oh, there you go.  He had a second binder.  But 

it, 648.156 states that the Board may revoke the 

registration of a registered employee if the Board 

finds, after a hearing, that the registered -- on or 

after the date which the Board issued the registration 

to the registered employee, the registered employee 

commits or attempts or conspires to commit any acts 

prohibited by this chapter or any regulation adopted or 

order pursuant thereto.  

 So this here is a hearing regarding 

respondent's work card and whether or not he should be 

allowed to retain that work card after what I'll show 

you today.  

  MR. REID:  I have just a short opening 

statement, and that is, is to say that there is two 
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issues here.   

  There's the legality of the citations that were 

issued.  What we have is five different citations that 

were issued.  They are almost identical in the wording 

and the language that's used.  We have a statute that 

states, NRS 648.162, each notice of violation must, A, 

be in writing and describe with particularity the nature 

of the violation.  I'm going to show you a case law 

which has that exact same phrase and that exact same 

case law on point, to say that they -- to describe with 

particularity the nature of the violation needs a more 

description in the citation.  That's on the legal side.  

 On the other side, we understand that -- I have 

some issues.  We have a criminal case that's ongoing.  I 

want to make sure that my client doesn't say anything 

that's going to incriminate him for that case, because 

he has that right, and I have to protect him.  But my 

client does want to speak to you, does want to let you 

guys know his side of the story, and he wants to be able 

to plead for some type of an arrangement with this 

Board.   

 And that's why we're here today.  Thank you.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  To the legal arguments, I 

guess, if now would be the time for me to respond to 

those, or would you rather hear those later?  
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  MR. REID:  The closest, the closest one, we do 

the opening, and then we put the evidence on.   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  Then I'll go into the 

evidence.  I would, yeah, I -- then, my first witness 

I'm going to call is Lori Irizarry.  And I don't know if 

we want to move this at all, so (microphone).  We can 

move it, if we need to, if you want to cross-examine at 

all.  So I want her to feel she's able to talk.  

  MR. DETMER:  Will you please stand.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Oh.  Yes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Can we swear everybody at once? 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  They were sworn earlier.  But 

we can swear them again.  They were sworn at the 

beginning of the meeting, I believe. 

  MR. DETMER:  Raise your right, please.  Do you 

hereby swear and affirm that you will tell the whole 

truth, tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but 

the truth?  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  I do.  

 

L O R I   I R I Z A R R Y, 

having been first duly sworn/affirmed, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

/// 

/// 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE: 

Q. Will you please state and spell your name for 

the record. 

A. Lori Irizarry.  That's L-O-R-I, 

I-R-I-Z-A-R-R-Y.  

Q. Okay.  And will you please describe your 

position with the Private Investigators Licensing Board. 

A. I am the Chief of Operations.  I oversee the 

investigators that we have on staff in the Las Vegas 

office.  

Q. Okay.  And did you work for the PILB in January 

of 2016?  

A. Yes.  

Q. And what was your position then?  

A. I think, I was the same title, Chief of 

Operations, as well. 

Q. Okay.  And will you, in that exhibit book 

there, please turn to Exhibit 3.  I realize we don't 

have tabs in there.  It is page 15, if that helps.  Do 

you recognize this document?  

A. Yes. 

Q. What is it?  

A. It is the work card application.  

Q. Is it respondent's work card application?  
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A. Yes.  

Q. Did the PILB receive this document from the 

respondent?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Will you describe a little bit the process for 

applying for a registered work card.  

A. So, in 2016, you could either apply online or 

come into the office to apply.  We have, the Las Vegas 

office is set up that there is a window in the lobby. 

 (The Reporter indicated that it's difficult 

hear to hear Las Vegas.  There was a minute off the 

record to relocate the microphone in Las Vegas.) 

BY MR. BORDELOVE: 

Q. So you were describing the process for applying 

for a registered word card as it was in 2016.  

A. So the work card application process, you can 

either apply online or apply in the office.  Our 

Las Vegas office is set up where you grab an 

application, fill it out in our office or bring it home, 

turn it in to someone at the window.  And then they look 

over the application before turning it in.  At that 

time, we're just looking for completeness, anything, if 

at that time there would possibly be a reason why, if 

you're missing anything, what you're missing, or the 

certain things that would deny you, we try to catch it 
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there at the window.  

Q. Okay.  And can you please turn to -- I think, 

it's page 4 of the application.  It's Bates-stamped PILB 

four zeroes 17.  

A. Okay.  

Q. Okay.  Can you read, in the middle of the page, 

the employment history for me, please?  

A. So the company name listed is Mayweather 

Promotions.  The location is Las Vegas, Nevada.  

Position, bodyguard.  From December 28, 2007 to 

October 1st of 2015.  And the reason for leaving is 

"Started private my own security."  

Q. Okay.  And is this information provided by -- 

was this provided by the respondent?  

A. Yes.  

Q. On the application?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Okay.  And at the bottom of the page here, 

there's a note.  Will you please read that.  

A. The date is 1-26-16.  A-P-P-L, reduced for 

applicant, applicant worked for Mayweather Productions, 

not contract, not contracted, informed this card not a 

license.  Aware needs to work for licensing.  And then 

my initials.  

Q. Okay.  So did you write this note?  
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A. Yes. 

Q. And can you describe to me why you wrote that 

note?  

A. So oftentimes, in chief operations, when 

someone's at the front window, if there's a question on 

an application that they're unsure of, they would bring 

it to my attention.  This one was brought to my 

attention because the person at the front noticed that 

they're listing that they're doing bodyguard work, but 

they're getting a work card.  So I wrote the note 

because, at the time, after speaking to Mr. Plant at the 

window, I asked him, "What type of work are you doing?  

Because I see you're not doing that anymore."  Because 

by the time he's applying.  He explained that he was 

doing contracted work for Mayweather.  And I let him 

know, just like I do most applicants when they come to 

the window, "Just so you know, this is not a license.  

You cannot use your work card unless you're associated 

with the licensee."  

 So for that reason, that's why I make the note 

at that same exact time.  And I usually make it right 

there in front of them as they're standing there right 

in front of me at the window.  

Q. Okay.  So you did inform him that the work card 

was not sufficient to provide bodyguarding services 
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without working for a licensee?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Okay.  Then will you turn to, I think, page 10 

of the application, which is Bates-stamped twenty -- 

where am I?  26.  

A. Okay.  

Q. Can you tell me what this is?  

A. This is the security guard exam questions.  

This is the questions that are required if you want to 

do security work in the state of Nevada.  

Q. Okay.  And will you please read to me -- let's 

start with question number 2.  

A. No person may engage in the business of private 

investigator, private patrol officer, process server, 

repossessor, canine handler, security consultant, or 

polygraphic examiner, slash, intern unless the person 

is, blank.  

Q. And what is the correct answer?  

A. Licensee.  

Q. And what did -- on the preceding page, which is 

Bates-stamped 25, what is that page?  

A. So this is where they're supposed to put their 

answers.  So Mr. Plant, this is his answer sheet that he 

filled out, with his handwriting and whatnot.  And 

that's what that is.  
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Q. What did he answer for number 2?  

A. He is answered correctly.  He answered 

question B, or answer B.  

Q. And for -- will you also read question 

number 5, please.  

A. A person with a word card, with an active work 

card is able to engage in the business of private 

investigator, private patrol officer, process server, 

repossessor, canine handler, security consultant, or 

polygraphic examiner under a person licensed in the 

related field.  

Q. What is the correct answer to that question?  

A. That is true.  

Q. And how did Mr. Plant answer that question?  

A. He answered it correctly, he answered true.  

 MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  I think, that is all the 

questions I have for you.   

 I can pass the witness to you.  I reserve that 

I may have some questions on redirect.  

 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. I'm sorry.  I didn't get your last name.  But 

can I call you Lori, if that's okay?  

A. Yes.   
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Q. Okay, Lori.  Lori, why did you write this note 

under the child support section?  

A. Because I usually make the note on the page in 

which it's pertaining to.  So because it's regarding the 

work card, I did it -- I'm sorry.  Because it's 

regarding his employment, it's on the exact same page.  

I just use a spot with an empty, blank spot. 

Q. Is there any reason why you didn't put it 

below, in the employment information, where it says 

"Started private my own security"; is there a reason why 

you didn't put it there just to highlight that this is 

an issue?  

A. No, because, to myself, from in the middle of 

the page, that's their application, so I don't want to 

overwrite what they have written.  So I usually put it 

somewhere, at the top or at the bottom, just so I'm not 

in their space of where it's above their application.  

Q. At the end, it says "Aware needs to work for  

license."  Then is that your initial at the end, LF?  

A. LI, yes.  

Q. LI.  Okay.  Did you have my client initial that 

as well?  

A. No.  

Q. Why not?  

A. Because it's not his statement.  It's my 
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statement that I'm making at the time when I did the 

application.  So I'm not asking him to verify anything.  

It's just my statement that I wrote.  

Q. Did he sign this application prior to you 

writing that information?  

A. He would have filled out the application, 

brought it to the window, and then I would have spoke to 

him, before paying.  

Q. But when he signed, to confirm that everything 

is true and correct, he would have signed that prior to 

you writing that information, correct?  

A. There is no signature required on the 2016 

application.  

Q. But it's -- looking at page Bates PILB 21, it 

says April 13.  Is that a different signature strip, or?  

A. Yes.  So what you're looking on Bates stamp 21 

is the Department of Public Safety's requirement to get 

fingerprinted.  

Q. Correct.  

A. That is part of the application.  But our 

application, it's not that page.  

Q. So there's nowhere for an applicant to put 

their signature so that they confirm that this is true 

and accurate?  

A. In 2016, no, that's correct.  
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Q. Did my client receive a copy of this 

application back, with your note added to it?  

A. Not unless he requested one.  

Q. Is that standard for a person not to receive a 

copy?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Do you usually get people trying to start their 

own private security using a registration card after 

applying in an application like this?  

A. Can you repeat the question?  

Q. Do you usually get people who say to you that 

they're going to be starting their own business as a 

private security company when they're applying for a 

registration card?  

A. I don't know if I'd use the word usually, but 

it does happen sometimes.  They are -- they 

misunderstood our process.  So that's usually when we 

catch them.  And we would notify them at that time 

that's not what you're wanting to fill out, and we would 

redirect them to speak to someone about being licensed.  

Q. Okay.  And did you do that with Mr. Plant?  

A. No, because he stated at that time that he's no 

longer doing that sort of work.  So I'm just informing 

him, okay, just so you know, this is not a license.  

Q. Did you redirect him to someone to discuss 
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about the license?  

A. No, I did not.  

  MR. REID:  Okay.  I have no more questions.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I don't have any other 

questions for you.  

 So does the Board have any questions for 

Ms. Irizarry?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I don't.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.    

  MR. DETMER:  Is Ms. Irizarry free to leave, or 

is she being withheld for rebuttal?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I think, she's free to leave.  

But, I think, she's probably staying till the end of the 

meeting anyway.  

  THE WITNESS:  Okay.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  The next witness I will call is 

Zachary Swarthout. 

  MR. DETMER:  Before you sit down, if you could 

please raise your right hand.  Sir, do you swear or 

affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing 

but the truth?  

  THE WITNESS:  I do.  

/// 
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Z A C H A R Y   S W A R T H O U T, 

having been first duly sworn/affirmed, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

Q. Mr. Swarthout, will you please state and spell 

your name for the record.  

A. Zachary Swarthout, Z-A-C-H-A-R-Y, last name 

Swarthout, S-W-A-R-T-H-O-U-T.  

Q. And what is your position at the PILB?  

A. I'm a compliance audit investigator.  

Q. And what does that position entail?  

A. So I go and I audit our licensed companies to 

make sure that they're following the rules.  I also look 

for compliance violations, not just for unlicensed 

activity, but through our licensees, also.  

Q. Okay.  And what type of investigation do you 

often do when looking for unlicensed activity?  

A. I look for social media posts that are posting 

bodyguard, security services, canine handlers, any, any 

variation of what we license and register with.  

Q. Okay.  And what type of investigations did you 

perform in August of 2018, when looking for unlicensed 

activity?  
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A. Mostly social media.  

Q. Okay.  Did you encounter any social media posts 

by Mr. Plant?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. Let's see.  Can I have you switch, turn to 

Exhibit 4, please?  If you would please flip through and 

familiarize yourself with the documents contained in 

there.  

A. (Witness complying.) 

Q. You can flip -- and you don't have to look at 

every page exactly, since, I think, we've already 

admitted them.  But do you recognize these documents?  

A. Yes.  

Q. What are they?  

A. They're screen prints from his Instagram page, 

from Mr. Plant's Instagram page, where he's detailing 

that he's doing security and bodyguard services.  

Q. Okay.  Can I take you to the page Bates-stamped 

33?  

A. 33.  All right.  

Q. Will you please, I guess, describe what this 

page is.  

A. So this is Mr. Plant's Instagram page.  This is 

a header.  This is like the main front page when you 

actually go onto it, with what he has put down and 
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described and what he's posted.  

Q. Okay.  Will you please read what it says right 

after his name, Adam Plant, just that little bit right 

there.  

A. At six seven 350, I am co-owner of The Great 

Wall TGW Executive Protection Service taking care of my 

wife and three children through God's grace.  DM me for 

service.  

Q. Thank you.  And then will you move on to 

page 42.  Will you please read what it says under The 

Great Wall TGW.  

A. Who need some block protection?  Offering TGW 

protection, and appearances very soon.  Let us know.   

 And then there's some hashtags.  Do you want me 

to read those, also?  

Q. No, that's okay.  Then will you move to 

page 48, please.  And will you please read the caption 

posted by Mr. Plant.  

A. When the best cornerback in the NFL Real 

Patrick Peterson comes to Las Vegas, you know he wants 

the best in private security, At Adam Plant to hold him 

down, and he has the best private host in At Elena Kess 

my homegirl taking care of all his bookings.  

Q. And what's the hashtag at the end of that?  

A. Clients of Adam Plant.  
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Q. Thank you.  And will you turn to page 52, 

please.  Will you please read just what was posted, the 

caption posted by Mr. Plant.  

A. We got my client feeling right, or feeling 

great right now, At Mr. Adam Plant, At Big Church 71, At 

Big Marko 17, Big Derrick, hashtag, Client of Adam 

Plant, hashtag, The Great Wall TGW Executive Protection 

Supporting Service, Execution Protection Service.  

Q. Okay.  And Will you move to page 54, please.   

Will you please read the caption Mr. Plant posted to 

that one.  

A. It's the way of Mr. Adam Plant and my company, 

At The Great Wall TGW Executive Protection Service to 

only provide G -- G-O-R -- I'm assuming "for" -- my 

client the best in private security service.  I deal 

with clients that pay very well to have professional  

services provided by professional men.  And I take the 

utmost pride in my name, my company, and most of all my 

work.  So with that being said, I'd like to thank God 

for everything.  

Q. Okay.  Will you move to page 64.  And I don't 

think you need to read the whole one, but will you read 

starting about halfway through where it says I really 

want to become. 

A. To really become a multimillionaire in the 
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field of private security, executive protection, 

bodyguarding, and I want my company At The Great Wall 

TGW to become the most notorious name in.  

Q. And will you move to page 66, please.  And will 

you read just the caption posted by Mr. Plant there. 

A. Just got my Utah concealed firearms permit to 

add to my bodyguard credentials, so I now have a CCW for 

Nevada, Florida, and Utah, hashtag, Clients of Adam 

Plant.  

Q. Thank you.  Let's see.  Will you move to 

page 74, please.  And will you please read the caption 

by Mr. Plant.  

A. If people ever had the nerve to question me 

about my business, I'll just break out my paperwork and 

tell them please don't get me confused with bullshit, my 

company.  At The Great Wall TGW is a security company 

and clothing line in which we are an LLC company with a 

tax ID number that we pay taxes for, and we own our 

trademarks.  So miss me with any foolness, At Mr. Adam 

Plant, At Big Church 71, At Dr. -- 

Q. With that, and then -- okay.  I don't know if I 

have an exhibit page here, but what I -- I think, this 

Exhibit 5.  But either way, it's page 78.  What is this 

a screenshot of? 

A. This is a screenshot of The Great Wall TGW's 
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website.  

Q. And will you please read what it says under 

The Great Wall Executive Protection Services. 

A. The Great Wall TGW is an executive protection 

service company and brand founded by Big Adam, Mr. Adam 

Plant Sr., and Big Church, Mr. Alfonso Redic, with 

managing member Dr. Adronica Handie, with the armament 

of years of protecting your favorite celebrities, 

athletes and high profiles.  Mr. Plant and Mr. Redic 

decided to launch their own executive protection 

services company accented by his very own The Great Wall 

TGW merchandising brand which is trademarked.  Big Adam 

and Big Church have traveled the world, worked with the 

most popular entertainers, elite business executives and 

have an enormous amount of experience in executive 

protection services.  With the assistance of their 

partner Dr. Adronica Handie a plan was forged to launch 

The Great Wall TGW Executive Protection Services.   

 And then there's space.  The company is focused 

on providing exemplary executive protection.  Our motto 

is the protection, protecting the elite one event at a 

time.  The company relies on the service of multiple men 

of an enormous statute.  These individuals range and 

tower in the size of six nine to seven two in height.  

Request our services and we'll provide the executive  
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protection services you, your organization or event 

deserves.  Shop our brand Walking With the Wall.  

Q. Thank you.  And you viewed all these documents, 

or all these posts on the internet in August of 2018, 

correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Okay.  And, I guess, we can move to Exhibit 6, 

page 92.  And will you please read the first probably 

four lines of what it says under goods and services.  

A. Okay.  Do you want the IC number or just the -- 

Q. And, I guess, first, what is this a screenshot 

of?  

A. This is a trademark from the U.S. Patent and 

Trademark's offices. 

Q. Okay. 

A. What you can find online for.  

Q. And what is the mark for?  

A. The Great Wall TGW.  

Q. Okay.  Then will you read the first four lines 

of the goods and services. 

A. Bodyguard services; security consultancy; 

security guard services; security services, namely armed 

escorts and security personnel for celebrities, boxers, 

fighters; security services, namely providing security 

assets for business and governmental agencies; security 
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threat analysis for personal protection purposes; 

security threat analysis for protecting personal 

property; security threat analysis for protecting public 

safety.  

Q. That's probably good.  And at the time of 

reading all these, did you verify whether or not 

Mr. Plant was listed on the roster?  

A. Yes.  

Q. For any security company? 

A. Yes.  At the time, he wasn't listed for any 

company.  

Q. Okay.  Then, will you move to Exhibit 7 and 

read what this document is.  

A. Okay.  This is citation I-060-18.  

Q. Okay.  And did you issue this citation?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. Okay.  And did you at any point receive any 

appeal of this citation?  

A. No, I did not.  

Q. Okay.  Did you have any contact with Mr. Plant 

regarding this citation after its issue?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. Will you describe what that contact was.  

A. He came into the office.  I believe, it was 

around August 13th, 12th, 13th area.  He spoke with 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

254 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

myself and Supervisor Investigator Vincent Saladino.  

Q. Okay.  And will you please describe the nature 

of that meeting.  

A. We went over the citations.  We told him that 

his work card was not a license.  We also talked him 

through the process of getting a license and provided 

him the application for the license.  

Q. Okay.  And how did Mr. Plant respond to this?  

A. He said that he was going to get in contact 

with his business partners.  

Q. Okay.  Will you move on to Exhibit 8.  Did you 

do follow-up investigations after that citation 

regarding Mr. Plant's activities?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Okay.  And these posts in Exhibit 8, are they 

ones that you observed after -- I think, they have dates 

on here.  Are they ones you observed in October of 2018?  

I guess, are the screenshots, the dates at the bottom of 

screenshots, do you believe that those are correct dates 

as to when you observed these posts?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Okay.  And will you turn to page 106.  And will 

you please read the caption there.  

A. The key to being a great bodyguard, slash, 

private security businessman in Las Vegas is that one 
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will always have to establish business relationships 

with the top club host and casino host at every prime 

location in Las Vegas such as my guy right here, At 

Richard Candido, the lead host at Omnian Nightclub.  And 

that is what separates me from the others, other.  I 

been doing this thing for almost 20 years now in 

Las Vegas.  

Q. Okay.  And will you move to page 112, please.  

And will you please read the first sentence of the 

caption to that picture.  

A. Off to work I go and see in this bodyguard line 

of work you got to be able to carry a firearm concealed 

to really be a professional at this cuz at the end of 

the day your client must be able to go home safely.  And 

all of Adams Plant's clients are secured entirely.  

Q. Thank you.  Let's see if there's any others of 

these I want to point out.  Would you turn to page 128, 

please.  And will you please read the caption by 

Mr. Plant.  

A. Took my clients to the At Encore Beach Club 

Night Swim.  I am always grateful to God for great 

clients, especially clients that like to pay their 

security well, L-O-L.  I thank you.  Hashtag, Clients of 

Adam Plant.  

Q. Okay.  Will you move to page 136, please.  And 
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will you please read the caption there, but you can 

leave off the hashtags.  

A. Always a pleasure of doing security for my 

brother At Warren G.  

Q. Thank you.  Okay.  And will you please move to 

Exhibit 9.  It is page 142, if that's helpful.  What is 

this a screenshot of? 

A. This is a Thumbtack advertisement.  It's kind 

of like an Angie's List kind of website where you can 

post out what services you're providing.  

Q. Okay.  And what is this advertising?  I guess, 

can you read the "About this pro"?  

A. The Great Wall TGW Executive Protection 

Service.  As a professional bodyguard I have been able 

to provide professional personal bodyguard services for 

celebrities such as Snoop Dogg, Floyd Mayweather, and 

Shaquille O'Neal while at the same time being able to 

privately secure extreme partygoers.  

Q. Okay.  And from this webpage, Thumbtack, would 

you be able to, essentially, request services or get in 

contact?  

A. Yes.  You can also request estimates.  

Q. Okay.  At the time of viewing these most recent 

social media posts and the Thumbtack page that you read, 

did you verify whether or not Mr. Plant was on any 
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security company's roster?  

A. Yes. 

Q. And was he?  

A. No.  

Q. Then will you turn to Exhibit 10, please.  Did 

you issue this citation?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. And to your knowledge, has this citation been 

appealed?  

A. No.  

Q. Okay.  Let's move on to -- let's see.  

Exhibit 11.  When did you view, or around when did you 

view the social media posts that are in Exhibit 11?  

A. Around November 26th, 2018.  

Q. Okay.  Will you please turn to page 151.  And 

will you please read the caption by Mr. Plant on that 

page.  

A. Another gig, another check, holding down, At 

Warren G.  

Q. M-hm (affirmative).  And will you move on to 

Exhibit 12, please.  Will you turn to page 155.  And 

will you read beginning where it starts in all caps.   

A. Okay.  I work for those clients known as big 

gamblers and this wonderful group of people know how to 

pay security and that's some real talk.  I was having 
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the most diverse group of clients because I am a real 

bodyguard and I know people and how to provide great 

services to any type of personality and will never be 

stopped.  I am a master of my craft and will do this 

work setting the bar for myself.  In this bodyguard 

business the world will know the name Adam Plant.  

Q. Okay.  And will you please move to page 159, 

please, and read the caption there.  

A. That's them bodyguards that's gone, gone great, 

at least a million apiece out the security shit.  Just 

keep watching us cuz we ain't watching no one else.  

Remember the name.  

Q. Okay.  At the time of these social media posts, 

did you verify if Mr. Plant was listed on a roster of 

any security company?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. Was he listed?  

A. No.  

Q. Okay.  Will you turn to Exhibit 13, please, 

page 160.  Did you issue this citation based on those 

social media posts?  

A. Yes, I did.  

Q. To your knowledge, has this situation been 

appealed?  

A. No.  
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Q. And will you please describe to me your 

activities regarding the investigation into Mr. Plant on 

the evening of January 10, 2019 and into the early 

morning hours of January 11th, 2019.  

A. Myself, Director Ingram and Supervisor 

Investigator Saladino were down at the Wynn, along with 

a couple officers from Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 

Department.  We were down there because a post by 

Mr. Plant said that they would be providing security 

services for a client at the XS nightclub.  

Q. And did you observe Mr. Plant providing private 

security and/or executive protection services that night 

or in the early hours of January 11?  

A. Yes, we did.  

Q. And can you describe what you observed?  

A. Mr. Plant and his associates and his clients 

were pulled out of the high roller section by Metro.  

Him and his cohorts and his client, they were walking in 

a formation trying to stop people from getting close to 

his client.  

Q. Okay.  Then will you look to Exhibit 14.  And 

at the time of -- on January 11, 2019, was Mr. Plant 

listed on the roster of any security company?  

A. No, he wasn't.  

Q. Okay.  Did you issue Exhibit -- let's see.  The 
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citation that's in Exhibit 14, is that a citation you 

issued?  

A. Yes, it is.  

Q. Okay.  And was it based on that January 11th 

observation?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Okay.  And Exhibit 15, will you take a look at 

that.  Will you describe to me the basis for that 

citation.  

A. This citation was issued out because he was 

seen providing security services for Adrien Broner while 

walking him into the MGM Grand.  

Q. Did you have contact with Mr. Plant after this 

citation was issued?  

A. Yes, we did.  

Q. And can you describe what that contact was?  

A. He came into the office.  It was either January 

17th or 18th.  He came in to discuss the citations and 

that and what was going on.  

Q. Okay.  And what occurred during that meeting?  

A. Myself, Supervisor Investigator Saladino and 

Director Ingram were involved, along with two, two, 

three Metro officers.  During the conversation, we 

provided him copies of the last three citations.  We 

also told him that you cannot continue to provide 
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services.  And he was also discussing possibly entering 

into a payment plan with the Director.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm sorry.  I 

didn't get that last. 

  THE WITNESS:  Entering into a payments plan 

with the Director on the citations.  

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

Q. To your knowledge, have any of these citations 

been appealed?  

A. No, they have not.  

Q. To your knowledge, have any amounts been paid 

to the PILB on any of these citations?  

A. To the PILB, no.  

Q. Okay.  I believe, there may have been something 

with the Controller's.  So were any of the citations 

submitted to the Controller's Office for collections, to 

your knowledge?  

A. Yes, the first two.  

Q. And that might be beyond your knowledge, but to 

the extent that you have knowledge of any payments to 

the Controller's Office?  

A. Yes, there was some payments.  

 MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  I think, that actually 

might have been admitted.  So we may leave that out.  

 But I'll pass the witness to you if you have 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

262 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

any questions.  

  MR. REID:  Sure.  

 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. Mr. Swarthout, I want to go back to the first 

citation, if that's okay, which is Exhibit 7, which is 

going to be nine six. 

A. 96, you said?  

Q. Nine six, correct.  

A. Okay.  

Q. This is the citation that's dated on the bottom 

August the 6th, 2018, and that's your signature on the 

left, correct? 

A. Correct.  

Q. Why was this citation given? 

A. It was issued out for the website and the 

social media posts.  

Q. Can you describe that a little more, because 

I'm sure that you don't give out citations just for any 

website, or?  

A. For him describing on his website that he's 

providing executive protection service.  

Q. Do you state that in the citation, that it's 

for the website and for the social media for advertising 
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protective services?  

A. No.  

Q. Why not?  

A. I was just listing out the definition of the 

services he was providing.  

Q. But you didn't describe them for the website 

and for the social media?  

A. No, I did not.  

Q. We can now move to the next citation, which is 

Exhibit Number 10, which is on Bates stamp number 145.  

This is the one dated October the 10th, 2018 with your 

signature on the left.  Do you see it? 

A. Yes.  

Q. What was this citation issued for? 

A. It was issued for the social media posts and a 

Thumbtack page.  

Q. Did you describe that in the citation?  

A. No, I did not.  

Q. Why not?  

A. I listed the definition of the -- for private 

patrol officer services.  

Q. But why didn't you describe the actual 

violation itself?  

A. I don't know why I didn't post that.  

Q. Okay.  I'm going to the next citation, if  
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that's okay.  It should be the third one, which is on 

PILB 160.  It's the one dated January the 10th, 2019.  

And this is your signature on the left-hand side.  What 

was this citation given for? 

A. This was given for him providing services, 

Mr. Plant, The Great Wall TGW, for providing services in 

the nightclub Hakkasan on December 31st, 2018.  

Q. What was he doing?  

A. He was providing executive protection services.  

Q. What was he actually physically doing?  

A. Employing, providing for others, persons 

bodyguards and executive protection.  

Q. Okay.  I know you're reading from the citation 

a vague description.  But I'm asking you, what was he 

physically doing, what was his person doing, what was he 

saying, what was he doing, what were his hands doing, 

how was he walking, what was he doing in violation to 

receive this citation?  

A. He checked in with Hakkasan nightclub saying 

that he was doing security.  

Q. So just to confirm, it says here that the -- 

"This office is in receipt of information which 

confirms, confirms that The Great Wall TGW, Adam Plant, 

has continued to the provide said services within the 

state of Nevada at the nightclub Hakkasan on December 
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31st, 2018."  But you're now saying that he checked into 

Hakkasan saying that he was providing security services, 

correct?  

A. That's correct.  

Q. Do you know who you spoke to?  

A. Dan Hoban. 

Q. Who is?  

A. Who is the -- for Hakkasan Group, I believe, 

he's security manager.  

Q. And you got that information prior to issuing 

the citation?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Why didn't you put the information in the 

citation?  

A. We normally don't provide our evidence when 

give them the citation.  

Q. I was trying, what I'm trying to get at is, why 

didn't you state what the actual physical thing that 

he's going to be doing?  Because you're saying that he 

checked in with Hakkasan saying that he was going to be 

providing the services, correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. And did he provide services?  

A. From what he told Hakkasan, yes.  

Q. So he checked in, said he was going to provide 
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services, then he checked again afterwards and said that 

he had provided those services? 

A. He checked in.  When he goes in, he showed his 

work card and said he's providing security services. 

Q. Okay.  And that was prior to -- what day was 

that on, December 31st, 2018?  

A. That's when he provided the services.  I 

believe, the email was January 3rd.  

Q. Oh, so there was an email?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Who was the email from and to? 

A. It was from Dan Hoban to the Director and 

Supervisor Investigator Saladino.  

Q. And do we have a copy of that email?  

A. We do.   

 THE WITNESS:  It would have been within the 

packet I gave you. 

 MS. BORDELOVE:  I thought the only email I had  

was regarding to as far as things working out tomorrow.  

Because we are not having it, that I'm aware of.  

  THE WITNESS:  I have a copy in my binder.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Let me take a look.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Reid, are you 

fine with a five-minute break?  

  MR. REID:  Sure. 
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* * * * * 

(A break was taken, 2:53 to 3:10 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  The 

hearing is continuing after our little break there.  

  Do you guys want me to just say that we're 

entering this email as defense Exhibit I?  

  MR. REID:  Sure. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Yes.  

  MR. REID:  We will speak up.  The last time 

was --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Can you hear me? 

  THE REPORTER:  I did hear that actually.  But, 

yeah, thank you. 

  (Exhibit I was marked and admitted.)  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. Okay.  Mr. Swarthout, I was asking questions 

about the citation dated January 10th, 2019, and you 

indicated that there was an email.  Now, there's just 

been a new exhibit added to the respondent's exhibits, 

I.  I think, you have that in front of you.  

A. Yes, I do.  

Q. This is an email, it looks like, from Vincent 

Saladino to yourself on January the 3rd, 2019.  And 
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below that is an email from Daniel Hoban dated 

January 2nd to Kevin Ingram and Vincent Saladino.  Is 

that correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Now, this email does start out saying "Thank 

you for the update on McIlwain."  And then it 

immediately goes on to "We saw very few private security 

this past weekend, which we can attribute to our meeting 

with you both, so thank you."  Do you know if there was 

a chain of emails prior to this email?  

A. No, I do not. 

Q. Do you know if there was a conversation between 

Mr. Ingram and Mr. Saladino with Mr. Hoban prior to this 

email?  

A. No, I do not.  

Q. Do you know why Mr. Daniel Hoban would forward 

an email like this to Mr. Ingram and Mr. Saladino?  And 

if you don't know, I don't expect you to guess, presume.  

A. From my knowledge, Dan Hoban has been sending 

us emails about the private security that's been coming 

into the nightclubs. 

Q. Is that what most security specialists, 

supervisors do throughout the city?  

A. No.  It is the Hakkasan Group that has taken it 

and started doing it.  
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Q. Did they take it on their own initiative?  

A. I do not know.  

Q. How regular do you see emails like this?  

A. Maybe once a month.  

Q. So this email was the basis for the citation 

dated January 10th, 2019; is that correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. What was the illegal activity that Adam Plant 

was doing on December 31st, 2019?  

A. From Hoban's email, he said that they were 

claiming to be security, and the Golden Knight Warriors 

would not -- because they were going to deny entry to 

Mr. Plant and Mr. Alley, and the Golden Knight Warriors 

said that they would not come in if their security was 

not entried.  

Q. So, effectively, he was providing security for 

the Golden State Warriors at Hakkasan nightclub on 

December 31st; is that correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Did you state that in your citation dated 

January 10th, 2019?  

A. I did not state that he was providing security 

for the Golden Knight Warriors.  

Q. Why not?  

A. I don't have an answer.  
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Q. Okay.  We'll move on to the next one, the next 

citation, which is on PILB 164.  This is the one dated 

January 14th, 2019.  

A. Okay.  

Q. Can you please tell me the violation that 

Mr. Plant conducted to receive this citation.  

A. He was observed providing private patrol 

officer services to a client at the Wynn Las Vegas at 

zero fifteen hundred hours.  

Q. What was he doing as a private patrol officer? 

A. He was providing bodyguard and EP services, 

executive protection.  

Q. What was he doing?  

A. He was providing protection for his client.  

Q. Physically, what was he doing?  

A. They were standing around the client.  The 

client was in the middle.  Mr. Plant was on one of the 

corners, and his other associates were on the other 

corners around his client.  

Q. And you earlier testified that -- and correct 

me if I'm wrong -- Mr. Plant and his cohorts were in 

formation stopping for people coming towards their 

client?  

A. Correct.  

Q. Is that approximately what you said?  I 
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scribbled it down, what you said.  

A. Correct.  

Q. Did you put those physical actions in the 

citation?  

A. No, I did not.  

Q. Why not?  

A. I don't know.  

Q. Was Mr. Plant arrested on this day?  

A. Yes, he was.  

Q. What was he arrested for? 

A. For providing executive protection services.  

Q. Was he arrested for anything else?  

 THE WITNESS:  Do you guys have a copy of the 

arrest report?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No, but if you're just 

referring to yourself, we don't -- we're not trying to 

admit it.  We don't need a copy.  

  THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So it was listed, it was 

listed down from -- the charges from Metro was FTC laws, 

slash, regs, re: investigator, slash, related P-R-O-F 

two plus.  And then the second charge was no work card 

security guard.  

BY MR. REID:   

Q. When it says no work card security guard, what 

does that mean?  
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  To the extent you know.  

BY MR. REID:   

Q. To the extent you know, what does it mean when 

he is -- he does not have the valid work card; what does 

that mean?  

A. I do not know.  All they did was list it as NRS 

648.060(1).  

Q. Did Mr. Plant have a valid work card at the 

time of January the 10th, 2019, January 11, 2019?  

A. Yes, he did.  

Q. Do you know why he received this surprise 

charge for working without a valid card, work card? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. I may have already asked this question, and I 

apologize.  And counsel might object.  Did you state in 

the citation words to the effect that Mr. Plant and his 

cohorts were in formation to stop people from coming to 

his client?  

A. No, I did not.  

Q. I'm going to just the last citation, if that's 

okay, and that's on page 168 of the PILB exhibits.  What 

was the reason for this violation?  Or this citation?  

Sorry.  

A. On January 15th, photos did come out that he 

was providing protection services for Adrien Broner 
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while he was walking in for the arrivals for the fight 

that weekend at the MGM Grand.  

Q. What were those photos?  

A. Of him walking in front, pushing the crowd away 

from Adrien Broner.  

Q. Do you have those photos?  

A. Yes, I do.  

Q. May I see them?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We don't have 

those.  

  MR. REID:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  The Board's indulgence.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  If we show them to the Board, I 

think that I'm okay with them being admitted.  If I -- 

instead of making copies now, can the Board read them 

all, and I will ensure the court reporter gets a copy 

later?  

  MR. DETMER:  I see no -- if you have an 

objection.   

  MR. REID:  I don't need to have them admitted.  

I'm sure the Board's only looked, so that they're about 

to see the pictures.  And I'm not here trying to stop 

them from seeing information.  So if you want to do it 

that way, that's fine.  If you want the Board to look at 

them, we can admit them as an exhibit.  
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  We'd be okay if all the Board 

sees them.  They become public record.  And so I'm fine 

with it.   

  But if you're fine with that, Shannon, I will 

make sure a copy is at least emailed to you.  We'll call 

this Exhibit J -- what are we on, I?  J? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  J. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  J.  The Board will view them 

now.  I will make sure that they get scanned in and a 

copy is sent, gotten to the court reporter in some way.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Shannon, 

can you hear me? 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I can hear you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I just want 

to state that the Board is accepting this, these 

photographs, actually printed papers of photographs into 

evidence as Exhibit J, as in John.  

  THE REPORTER:  All right. 

  (Exhibit J was marked and admitted.)  

  MS. DETMER:  Does counsel need this?  

  MR. REID:  I don't need it.  I just --   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you want to ask him 

questions about it, or?  

  MR. REID:  I think, just do it that way, go 

through them, but nothing, nothing specific to the 
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pictures.   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay. 

  MR. REID:  I just thought the Board would want 

to see them. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  Then, I don't know who 

I'll -- or somewhere, yeah, we just need to keep track 

of them so we can get a copy to the court reporter.  

BY MR. REID:   

 Q. So, Mr. Swarthout, where did we obtain these 

pictures from?  

A. Some of them were from the Las Vegas Review 

Journal.  And some of them were from Mr. Plant's 

Instagram and somebody else's Instagram page.  

Q. Okay.  And did you speak to Mr. Plant about 

this issue, or did you send out the citation?  

A. I sent out the citation.  

Q. In the citation, did you describe that -- I 

think, you testified the pictures showed him, I believe 

you said, pushing people out of the way of his client, 

Mr. Adrien Broner.  Did you describe that in the 

citation?  

A. No.  

Q. So is it correct to say that the description 

you wrote was:  On January 15th you were at the MGM 

providing services for Adrien Broner arrival?  
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A. Yes.  

Q. What services did you mean, in that sentence?  

A. Providing bodyguard, executive protection 

services.  

Q. How many times did you speak to Mr. Plant 

throughout these issues of these citations?  

A. I believe, twice.  

Q. Was that in person, or was that on the phone?  

A. In person.  

Q. Was it at your office?  

A. Yes.  

Q. On those occasions, did Mr. Plant explain that 

he wishes to provide services for people who wish to pay 

for protective services?  

A. No.  

Q. What did he say?  

A. He didn't go into any real detail about it.  He 

just said, said that he didn't know that he needed a 

license in the first one, and he thought his work card 

was a license.  

Q. And so the second time you spoke to him, what 

did he say then?  

A. That was in January.  The Director and 

everybody else was there, involved.  He didn't say much.  

We went over the latest three citations that were issued 
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out.  And the Director talked to him, seeing if he would 

be interested in doing a payment plan.  Mr. Plant 

alluded that he might be interested in doing that.  And 

that was really all that was going down.  

Q. Did he describe that he does have numerous 

people who would like for him to provide security 

services?  

A. I don't remember him saying that.  

Q. Did he ever say to you or did you hear him say 

to anyone in your office that he wishes to be able to 

provide services for members of the public?  

A. Not that I remember.  

Q. Did you say or anyone in the office say words 

to the effect of, if you want to do this, if you want to 

continue doing this and provide services to a member of 

the public, then you need to fill out this license form 

and obtain a license with the PILB?  

A. I believe, when we met in August, we did give 

him the application, we did go over the application 

process and all that.  

Q. And so you gave him the application and went 

through it with him and then did that; is that correct?  

A. Is that correct?  

A. Correct.  

Q. After -- and that was, you said that was in 
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August?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Was that before or after the first citation?  

A. That was after.  

Q. Did you speak to him after the second citation, 

which was -- according to the documentation, that's 

dated October the 10th?  

A. No.  

Q. Did you just send out this citation, did not 

discuss anything about it?  

A. Did not discuss it any further.  

Q. How about the third citation, which is dated on 

January 10th, when he got arrested; when did you speak 

to him after January 10th?  

A. On January 17th or 18th area, when he came into 

the office. 

Q. And you said earlier, you testified that it was 

yourself, Mr. Ingram, and, I believe you said two or 

three police officers?  

A. Yep, and Supervisor Investigator Saladino.  

Q. Why were the police officers there?  

A. Because of what had been going on.  

Q. And was that a meeting that was scheduled 

between your office and Mr. Plant?  

A. No.  
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Q. How did the Metro officers know that Mr. Plant 

was going to be there?  

A. Mr. Plant came down to the office earlier that 

morning, and the Director was not available.  We alerted 

the Director, who was out at the time, who then -- I 

don't know.  I assume he called the Metro officers to 

come down.  

Q. Do you know what the reason for the Metro 

officers being there was for?  

A. Most likely, just to discuss the situation.  

Q. You said there was three of them; is that 

correct?  

A. Correct.  

  MR. REID:  Okay.  I have no more questions.  

  Oh, I apologize.  I apologize.  I have one more 

question.  I apologize. 

 MS. BORDELOVE:  Go ahead.  

BY MR. REID:   

 Q. Have you spoken to any of the head of security 

at the casinos regarding Mr. Plant?  

A. Me?  No.  

Q. Do you happen to know if your office has spoken 

to the head of securities at any casinos?  

A. The security, I'm not sure.  I know some of the 

nightclubs we have talked to.  
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Q. About Mr. Plant?  

A. About a couple unlicensed activity personnel.  

Q. Does that include Mr. Plant?  

A. Yes.  

Q. And what were those discussions?  

A. I don't remember.  I don't have the emails on 

that.  

Q. Can you give me a rough indication?  

A. It would probably just be that he has been 

cited previously for providing these services.  And if 

he seems to be providing those services, let us know 

when he comes in.  

Q. Have there been any conversations with heads of 

securities of casinos, heads of securities of the 

nightclubs or the casinos --  

 (At 3:34 p.m., the videoconference connection 

with Las Vegas was lost.  There was a period off the 

record to reconnect.)  

BY MR. REID:   

 Q. Okay.  Just to repeat the question, the 

question was, have there been any conversations with the 

heads of security of the casinos or the nightclubs 

asking Mr. Plant not to enter any of their locations?  

A. Not that I know of.  

Q. Are you aware that TGW sells T-shirts?  
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A. Yes.  

Q. Is that in violation of any of the citations 

that you're aware of?  

A. No.  

  MR. REID:  I have no further questions.  

 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

 Q. Okay.  I don't have very many follow-up.  But I 

want to look back at -- let's go to the citation 

number -- page 96.  Will you read just the first two 

lines of the description there, under where it lists the 

offense and the fine amount, just the first two lines.  

A. It was determined that The Great Wall TGW, Adam 

Plant, Alfonso Redic, Adronica Handie, has offered 

private patrol officer services in the state of Nevada, 

engaged in the business of employing and providing for.  

Q. So has offered.  Did you include advertising as 

has offered?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Okay.  And then let's look at page 145.  That's 

the next citation.  Okay.  And is that same language, 

continued to offer, included in that, in the description 

there?  

A. Yes.  
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Q. Okay.  And let's see.  On page 160.  Will you 

read the first line, well, through the comma, so 

probably halfway through the second line.  

A. It was determined that The Great Wall TGW, Adam 

Plant, has continued to offer or advertise private 

patrol officer services in the state of Nevada.  

Q. M-hm (affirmative).  And let's see.  Page 164.  

Will you read that language out of that same section. 

A. It was determined that The Great Wall TGW, Adam 

Plant, has continued to offer or advertise private 

patrol officer services in the state of Nevada.  

Q. Okay.  And I don't think I need that on the 

last one.  Do you normally contact or reach out to 

individuals who you have sent citations to? 

A. No. 

Q. After the citation?  

A. No.  

Q. Okay.  During the meeting in August of 2018 

with Mr. Plant, do you recall either you or Investigator 

Saladino informing Mr. Plant of his ability to appeal 

the citations?  

A. Yes, we did.  

Q. Okay.  And in the meeting in January that you 

attended, was Mr. Plant informed of the ability to 

appeal citations within the 30 days?  
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A. I believe so.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I think, that's all my 

questions.  

 Do you have any?  

  MR. REID:  Yeah, I just have a very quick one 

on something you brought up.  

 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. On page 164 of the PILB exhibits, counsel 

stated that, or you read out the first line "It was 

determined that The Great Wall TGW, Adam Plant, has 

continued to offer or advertise private patrol 

services."  What was he offering or advertising for this 

citation?  

A. He wasn't offering as the basis of this 

violation.  

  MR. REID:  Okay.  I don't have questions.  

 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

 Q. I guess, the last question would be, as the 

basis for this citation, did you witness him providing 

private patrol officer services?  

A. Yes.  
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  I don't have anything 

further.   

  MR. DETMER:  Were there any further questions 

by counsel?  

  MR. REID:  I have no other questions. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Done.  Done, 

done.  Done.   

  MR. REID:  Done, done, done. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

questions from the Board before we move on?  

 And the basis of my questions, Ms. Bordelove, 

has to do with -- are you calling any more witnesses for 

your case?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  That 

besides your conversations with Hakkasan Security Group 

and Metro, were there any other conversations outside of 

the PILB concerning this case?  

  THE WITNESS:  Not that I know.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So did you 

ever speak -- you mentioned his cohorts.  Oh.  Sorry 

about that. 

  (The microphone was moved in Las Vegas.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Where were the 

citations issued?  
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 THE WITNESS:  They were issued from our office.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, but where -- 

at your office?  They weren't issued at the location?  

  THE WITNESS:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Did you, 

in the course of your investigation, contact Clark 

County business license to see if --  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what 

happened?  

  THE WITNESS:  They don't have any licenses.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Did you 

contact the state, Secretary of State?  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what 

happened?  

  THE WITNESS:  No business license.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What about 

the Department of Taxation?  

  THE WITNESS:  We did not contact Department of 

Taxation.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So we 

don't know whether he's paying taxes on his business or 

not?  

  THE WITNESS:  I don't know.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.   

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the Board. 

  If I may, do any other members of the Board 

have any questions based on Chairman Flynn's 

questioning?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I do.  Do we know if any 

of the people that were with him are considered 

employees?  

  THE WITNESS:  We don't.  We do know, from 

Employment Security Division's -- from some of the 

employees, we did not find anything being paid into 

there, which under our statutes is the definition of the 

employee-employer relationship.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  The second question, did 

they have any, did those individuals have guard cards?  

  THE WITNESS:  Some of them did, some of them 

don't.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'm good.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm good.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're good. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record. 

  If I may, do counsel have any questions based 

on the questions asked by the Board?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No. 

  MR. REID:  I just had one other question.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Let's move... 

  MR. REID:  Sorry. 

  (The microphone was moved in Las Vegas.) 

 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. Just to confirm, one of the questions was, did 

you check with the Secretary of State if there was a 

business license.  Did you check the Secretary of State 

for business license for Adam Plant?  

A. I searched under his name, under the 

association's and under the company name and didn't find 

anything.  

Q. What do you mean under the company name? 

A. Under The Great Wall TGW and under associated 

names, we can put in officers or the associated company 

names, and didn't find anything. 

Q. And when you searched for The Great Wall or 

TGW, you didn't find anything with the Secretary of 

State?  

A. No.  

  MR. REID:  I have no further questions. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record. 

  Just as a general statement, does anybody else 

have any questions, whether it be Board or counsel?  
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  No.  

  MR. DETMER:  So with that, is this witness 

excused? 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  This witness is excused.  And I 

do not have any further witnesses.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Reid, are you 

ready to present your case? 

  MR. REID:  I am.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  MR. REID:  Let's go ahead.  We'd like to call 

Mr. Adam Plant.  Adam Plant. 

  (There was a minute off the record to move the 

microphone in Las Vegas.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you want -- 

where do you want to sit?  Do you want to sit in the 

witness chair? 

  MR. DETMER:  If you would raise your right 

hand, sir.  Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, 

the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?  

  THE WITNESS:  Sure.  Yes, sir.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  State your name 

for the record. 

  THE WITNESS:  Adam Plant, A-D-A-M, P-L-A-N-T.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  

/// 
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A D A M   P L A N T, 

having been first duly sworn/affirmed, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. Mr. Plant, can you tell the Board about 

yourself?  

A. Yes.  

Q. What type of person you are.  

A. Adam Plant.  I'm a former football player, 

professional football player.  I went to Kansas City 

Chiefs.  And later on that year in 2002, I played with 

the BC Lions.  Upon receiving, acquiring an injury, my 

career was cut short.  And then the next thing for me to 

do was find out how I can make money with my size.  And 

security was, obviously, the field I felt into.   

 I worked in Hollywood during 2002, 2003 as a 

club security.  In 2004, I was hearing that, you know, 

security jobs were better here in Las Vegas.  So I 

decided to -- I would drive up on the weekends.  I lived 

in Long Beach, California, at the time.  And I got a job 

at the Hard Rock.  Later on that year, Snoop Dogg came 

and did a performance there at the Hard Rock.  And his 

head of security, who I had known, had seen me and asked 
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me, well, what was I doing in Vegas.  And I said, "Well, 

you know, I come up here on the weekends to work."  And 

said, "Man, you drive up here every weekend?"  I said, 

"Yeah."  He said, "Man, come see me on Monday.  I got a 

job for you."   

 So starting in August of 2004, I became Snoop 

Dogg's, one of his security.  While working for Snoop 

Dogg, I worked well enough to become the head of 

security.  So by 2007, I was the head of his security.  

 At the end of 2007, my current, my current 

partner right now, Alfonso Redic, who was working for 

Floyd Mayweather, asked me if I would, if he could get 

me a position here, would I want to move to Las Vegas 

and work for Floyd.  And it seemed like, you know, a 

good opportunity at that time, so I took it.  And I 

moved to Las Vegas December 28th of 2007 as a bodyguard 

for Floyd Mayweather.   

 During that time, from 2008 to 2017, I was off 

and on with Mayweather.  And I would -- I had other 

clients that I had previously that were coming to 

Las Vegas that I would take to clubs and different 

things like that.  And so in 2016, I was going to a 

club, Hakkasan, and the head security there had told me, 

he said, "Hey, bro, we've seen you for years.  We know 

you never cause any problems.  You're a good guy."  He 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 06-20-19 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

291 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

said, "But, man, to do, to continue to do bodyguard work 

in our clubs, you got to get a PILB card."  I was like, 

"Well, what is that?"  He said, "Well, that's the card 

that you got to get for, you know, any private security 

to come into clubs and stuff like that."   

 So a couple days later, I went down to the 

office and got this card.  

Q. I'm going to stop you there, because that's 

where I'll now ask you some more questions.  

A. Okay.  

Q. That would have been January 26, 2016?  

A. Yes.  

Q. And do you remember filling out the forms?  In 

the binder in front of you, you were shown page 15 of 

the PILB, right near the front, page 15 in the binder.  

A. Okay.  Yep. 

Q. Do you remember completing this form? 

A. Yes.  

Q. Is this your handwriting on the first page?  

A. Yes.  

Q. If you'd turn to page 16, is that your 

handwriting on that page?  

A. Yes.  

Q. On 17, is that your handwriting, except for the 

bottom two lines?  
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A. Yes.  

Q. Have you ever seen that, those two lines 

written before?  

A. Never.  This is the first time.  

Q. Do you remember who you spoke to when you 

completed this application and handed it in?  

A. I believe, the young lady to my right, right 

here.  

Q. Would that be Lori?  

A. Yes, sir.  

Q. Is that Lori? 

A. M-hm (affirmative). 

Q. Do you remember discussing with her that you 

wish to start your own security company?  

A. Yes, because that was after the Berto fight 

that Floyd had, and after the fight Floyd had issued a 

letter to all employees and he said, "At this time, you 

guys need to decide on making up moves, because I'm 

going to retire after this fight." 

 And so me and my partner at the time decided 

that he would call -- he would call us The Great Wall.  

That's where the name came from, because we were the two 

front guys in his security.  Due to our size and how we 

could, you know, control the crowd, that's what he 

nicknamed us.  So we decided let's take that name and 
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start a clothing company.   

 So we, our first initial thing with The Great 

Wall was to have T-shirts, hats, socks and different 

things like that.  And we had, we got started from a 

third partner, Dr. John Handie, who's an orthopedic 

surgeon in Oklahoma, who started everything for us and 

created the -- got the LLC for us.   

 And so that was the origination of The Great 

Wall.  It wasn't a security company.  The Great Wall was 

a clothing company.  And so that's what I had stated on 

here, because I decided, I said, "Well, since we have 

the clothing, we might as well make it a security 

company."   

Q. And, and when you filled out this form, and it 

states here that you "started private my own security," 

did Lori speak to you about starting your own security 

company?  

A. Not too much.  I believe, I told her that, and 

she did state that this was not a license.  But she did 

not inform me that along with this card, that I also 

needed to work under a license or have a license of my 

own.  I was not informed of that.  I was not told that. 

Now, I do see that's on the test.  I just, I didn't 

remember that.  But verbally, nobody told me that I 

needed to have a PPO license to perform my security.   
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 And like I said before, when I went to 

Hakkasan, the head of security there is the one who 

alerted me to this, because I wasn't even -- I hadn't 

even heard of the PILB board prior to that.  And that's 

just due to my -- my own lack of getting proper 

knowledge of the PILB board.  So that's on me.  

Q. So when you completed this form --  

A. M-hm (affirmative). 

Q. -- and you submitted it, and you obtained your 

card, what did you believe you could do with that card?  

A. Continue to go to clubs and work.  Because like 

I said, the guy said, and several other heads of 

securities at different clubs had told me, when I would 

come in, "Do you got your the PILB card?"  And I said, 

"Yeah, right here." 

 And like I said, I've been doing this work for 

a number of years where everybody in Vegas knows me.  

I've had a great name out here.  I have never had any 

issue in Las Vegas.   

 Prior to January 10th, I never wore a pair of 

handcuffs in my life.  I'm 43 years old, from south 

central Los Angeles, never had any kind of record.  I've 

been around the world.  I'm a married man.  My wife's 

back here of 22 years.  I have three kids.  All went to 

Bishop Gorman.  My third one is going to Bishop Gorman 
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right now.  My daughter is graduating from Nevada Reno 

next year with a degree is psychology.  My son plays for 

TCU.  He's a first draft pick in 2022.  And my daughter, 

my last one right here, Ashley, she's a volleyball 

player, and she does music, and she will be going to 

Bishop Gorman. 

 Every penny that I've made in security goes on 

taking care of my wife and my three kids.  I don't do 

anything for bragging, bolstering, I work for this, I 

work for that.  I have advertised in Instagram because 

the work I do is -- 

Q. Mr. Plant, as your attorney, you have to 

remember that we have an ongoing -- this is for the 

Board's sake.  

A. Okay.  

Q. That we have an ongoing criminal case.  So I do 

not want you to say anything about these current 

citations we have right now.  

A. Yes.  

Q. Okay.  At the time of completing this 

registration form, if you would have known that you 

needed to have got a license, would you have obtained a 

license? 

A. I would.  As soon as I got this, I would have 

had asked for the application to get the PPO license.  
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There is no way that I want any of my work to be 

interrupted and for me not to be able to work.  As I 

have stated, I have never been a criminal.  I don't have 

no kind of criminal record.  And, obviously, you know, 

everyone can see that.  So if you think that I would 

want to mess up me making money to take care of my 

family, then that's ridiculous.  

Q. Did you create an LLC for your company?  

A. Yes.  

Q. What about in the state of Nevada?  

A. State of Oklahoma, because, like I said, our 

partner, who's an orthopedic surgeon in Oklahoma, had 

the resources to create the LLC.  I hadn't known how to 

do it, but he did.  So he did that for us.  

Q. Any income that's brought in for this LLC, is 

taxes paid on that? 

A. Yeah, because we never made money from TGW.  

Everything, any work I've done has always been paid to 

Adam Plant.  I have a -- I've had the same tax lady for 

the last 12 years.  Me and my wife file jointly every 

year.  That's one agency I will never mess with in my 

life is the IRS.   I pay taxes completely. 

Q. Okay.  We have these five citations here.  I'm 

not going to ask any questions about those five 

citations.  I don't want you to say anything factually 
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about the incidents.  

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. We also have the Instagram posts.  And I can't 

talk about those Instagram posts since they are related 

to the citations.  Is there anything else that you 

wanted to say to the Board?  

A. As far as when you asked the gentlemen has my 

name been discussed with any club, club security or 

casino, head security of a casino, it has been.  There 

are several guys who have came to me and said, "Man, 

those guys from the PILB board, they were bragging that 

they arrested you.  They were telling me, 'Yeah, we got 

the guy, Plant.'"   

 And I feel that I'm being targeted for some 

unknown reason.  I went to Drai's Nightclub maybe about 

three weeks ago, me and my wife.  The head of the 

security there said, "You can't come in."  I said, 

"Chris" -- I know him -- "why can't I come into Drai's?"  

"Oh, man, you got issues with the PILB board."  I said, 

"What issues do I have, man?  I'm coming in as a regular 

patron, me and my wife.  Why can't I enter the club?"  

He said, "Man, you got to work out the issues with 

them." 

 I was offered to work a job at XS last week.  

And I told the gentleman, I said, "Well, I can't work 
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right now because my card is suspended."  And if -- for 

whatever reason, they don't want me there.  The head of 

security there told me if I came to XS, I would be 

trespassed.  And I said, "Trespassed for what?"  I 

haven't did anything.  I mean I got arrested here by the 

PILB board.  And since then, I realize, you know, the 

severity of these violations.  I realize that.  I 

realize the mistake.  And which I want to correct going 

forward.   

 I'm not in any way a bad person.  I'm just 

explaining my position as far as I'm a family man, I 

take care of my family.  This is my livelihood.  Me 

working is how I take care of my family.  I need to 

work.  Currently, I've had to resort to working at Crazy 

Horse 3 strip club.  I don't want to be in no strip 

club.  But I mean I have to make an income.   

 Now, I'm sure, if you all are parents like me, 

you want the best for yourself, your spouses and your 

children, like I do.  I'm a hard-working man.  This is 

what I do.  Security is my -- my livelihood.   

 So I just want to, if we can, moving on, how I 

can resolve that is I have a buddy right here, William 

Whitfield, who was my former bodyguard, who has a PPO 

license, who said that he's willing for me to work under 

his license until I can obtain my own.  So that's how I 
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want to make this situation correct.  

Q. There's currently outstanding fines for these 

citations.  If you -- if the Board were to be lenient 

and be able to reduce these fines to a more reasonable 

amount -- I believe, right now, it's at $37,500.  If it 

were a more attainable amount, and you'd be on a strict 

payment plan, would you -- what would your thoughts be 

on that?  

A. Of course.  Of course, I will pay that.  I did 

go down and talk to Mr. Ingram before about making a 

payment plan.  But when my card was restricted, I didn't 

have the money to pay.  Now, mind you, I just told you I 

had, I had -- both of my two older kids graduated from 

Gorman.  But I'm sure you guys know about Bishop Gorman.  

It's a very expensive school.  You know what I mean?  

And because of the bodyguard work I've done, me and my 

wife were in agreements that I wanted my wife to always 

be in the house so our kids could always have a parent 

in the house, with homework, you know, and do everything 

the parent does, while I was out working.  But because 

I'm the sole provider, it's really strenuous.  And I 

have to work as many gigs as I can work and have as much 

clientele as I can to earn money to take care of my 

family.   

 So, yes, if we can come to an agreement, I'd be 
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more than willing to pay these fines.  And I feel that 

the work that I do, there is no other bodyguard in town 

like me, because nobody has worked with the level of 

celebrities that I've worked for, at the same time the 

different type of clientele that I've worked for.  

Q. Mr. Plant, you were arrested on December -- 

January 10th of this year.  

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. How did that affect you?  

A. I had nightmares beyond that.  I mean that 

really psychologically messed me up.  Because like I 

stated, I've never worn a pair of handcuffs in my life, 

never.  I've never had any criminal history, any 

criminal record, nothing.  And for that to happen, it 

was an embarrassment to me.  I think, it was an 

embarrassment to the city.  Because, I think, I 

represent Las Vegas well.  I have had numerous amounts 

of people that said the only reason why they even came 

to Vegas is because they knew that me and the guys that 

worked with me could protect them.  My thing is having 

large size guys, because I know --   

Q. Mr. Plant.  

A. Hm?  

Q. I'd like to stop you from that diverging from 

my direct question.  
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A. Right.  Right, right.  

Q. With regards to the arrest --  

A. M-hm (affirmative). 

Q. -- how long were you in custody for? 

A. I believe, it was either 20 or 22 hours, 

something like that.  

Q. Is there anything else you would like to say to 

the Board that's not related to the citations?  

A. I just, I don't want any defamation on my name.  

I don't want my name being dragged in any kind of mud in 

Las Vegas.  I worked too hard to establish myself in 

this city.  And I feel that I -- because I have a fair 

and logical resolution to this, which I've stated, 

working under my buddy's license until I could obtain my 

own, I think, that is a reasonable resolution to this.   

 And I would like to be able to go into any 

club, any casino without being harassed, without any mud 

being dragged on my name.  Because that's not who I am. 

I'm a stand-up man who takes care of his family.  And I 

don't deserve any mud to be put on my name, never.  

Because I haven't did anything, other than what has been 

stated, to deserve that.  I don't deserve anybody to go 

talk about me.   

 There was the last big client I had in the 

media, he had some situations that were his personal 
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thing.  But I've also heard that all the members of this 

board have related me to him, a rapper named Six Nine.  

And I heard that from several people.  "Man," they said, 

"you had something to do with that?"  How do I have -- I 

don't have anything to do with anybody, a bodyguard's 

personal life.  My thing is, when you're with me, I want 

you to be protected.  What you're doing personally, 

that's what you do.   

 That's like my buddy here, who was my 

protection bodyguard, it's like saying he had something 

to do with my personal life.  No, he didn't.  He's the 

security.  When we provide security, that's what we do, 

we take care of you while you're on our watch.   

 What you do personally is what you do.  We have 

nothing to do with that.  So why would I ever be 

associated with somebody's activity outside of them with 

me when I'm working?  

  MR. REID:  I pass the witness.  

 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

 Q. Okay.  I have a few questions.  

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. Back in 2016 --   

A. M-hm (affirmative).  
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Q. -- you said it was security at Hakkasan that 

told you you needed to get a PILB card?  

A. The guy, the head of security, yes.  

Q. The head of security there?  

A. I don't know his name.  I know he has a -- I 

think, he was a UFC fighter, has like a cauliflower ear. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I remember him telling me that.  

Q. And did any of -- you mentioned, it sounded 

like -- did other clubs' security or personnel -- 

A. Head of security for --   

Q. -- tell you you had to --  

A. The head of security from XS, the head of 

security from Encore, from Club Joe, and Club 1-0 all 

told me that.  

Q. And did they all tell you that at the same 

time?  

A. Different, different times.   

Q. Okay. 

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. When you came into the PILB --   

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. -- and discussed with Ms. Irizarry regarding 

your application for a work card --   

A. M-hm (affirmative).  
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Q. -- what did you think she meant when she said, 

"This is not a license"?  

A. Exactly what she said, "This is not a license."  

I clearly understood that.  But my thing is, if you knew 

that I had to have a license, why wouldn't you tell me 

that?  Why wouldn't you say, "Okay.  Mr. Plant, in 

addition to you getting your PILB card, you know that, 

you know, you need to get a license as well, or you need 

to be working under a license"?  And at that time, I 

would have made provisions to do that. 

 I don't want anything messing up my money.  I 

don't want anything stopping the flow of me taking care 

of my family.  So, obviously, if I went to go get this 

when I told that that's what I needed, I would have at 

that time applied for the application, or I would have 

found somebody whose license I could work for at that 

time.  

Q. So what did you think a license did that a work 

card didn't?  

A. Because all of the head security told me that 

this is what I -- this is all that I needed, I had 

assumed, because that's what they told me, that this is 

what all I needed.  

Q. And did you ask what the difference, if that 

wasn't a license, what the difference was between a 
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license and a work card?  

A. At that time, I did not.  No, I didn't.  

Q. Okay.  Did you attempt to look that information 

up yourself?  

A. I didn't, because like, once again, like I 

said, all of the head securities said all you needed was 

a PILB card.  And I wasn't really alerted to you needed 

a license until around the end of 2018 they said that 

other guys that were doing private security had some 

events that happened.  One happened, one event happened 

at club XS.  Another event happened at club Hakkasan.  

Which they said triggered like a red light for guys 

doing private security.  And so that was the only time 

that I heard that, you know.  I mean a guy from Omnian 

had told me, also, reached out to me and said, "Hey, Big 

Adam Plant, I want to tell you this because, you know, I 

know you."  He said, "Man, that PILB card, that's" -- 

 (At 4:08 p.m., the videoconference connection 

with Las Vegas was last.  There was a period off the 

record to reconnect it  The Reporter indicated where we 

were when we lost the connection.) 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

 Q. Okay.  I can move on to another question.  Or 

do you think you had more answer to that?  

A. Oh, no, I put it in everything.  
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Q. Okay.  When you were arrested in January, who 

was it that arrested you?  

A. So, walking out of Encore tower suite --   

  MR. REID:  Hold on. 

  THE WITNESS:  Oh, okay. 

  MR. REID:  I will advise you not to speak about 

any facts of the case.   

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  MR. REID:  Answer the question that's been 

asked.  

  THE WITNESS:  Okay.  

  MR. REID:  The question was --   

  THE WITNESS:  It was a Metro officer, to the 

best of my knowledge, a Metro officer. 

  MR. REID:  And I apologize to the Board and 

Mr. Plant.  I don't want to sound rude.  I just want to 

just advise him accordingly pursuant to what we have to 

do.  I don't want to -- 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're okay. 

  MR. REID:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, you're fine. 

  MR. REID:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're not even 

close.  

  MR. REID:  Thank you.  
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BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

 Q. You mentioned that you agreed to a payment plan 

with Director Ingram? 

A. M-hm (affirmative).  

Q. But without your card, you were not able to 

pay?  

A. I was not able to pay the -- yeah.  

Q. Did you contact Director Ingram about your 

inability to pay?  

A. No, because at that time, I had decided to seek 

counsel.  

Q. So you did not at any point request a lower 

payment plan or an adjustment? 

A. No, I didn't.  No.  

 MS. BORDELOVE:  I think, that may be the extent 

of my questions that you won't instruct him not to 

answer.  But I'll turn it to you if you have any 

additional questions.  

  THE WITNESS:  I just have.  Might I add 

something else?  

  MR. REID:  I have two questions, but.   

  THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. REID: 

Q. When you applied for the license, or the card 

on January 26th, 2016, were you told that you need to 

get a license to be able to provide services to members 

of the public?  

A. No, not at all.  

Q. My next question is, is pertinent to counsel's  

question regarding the payments.  Did you know that you 

could contact Mr. Ingram and change or amend the current 

payment plan that you had agreed to?  

A. No, because I thought once we agreed to that, 

that's what it would be.  

Q. If you would have known that you could have 

called Mr. Ingram and changed the payment plan and 

discussed, renegotiated, would you have done so?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Did you receive a call from the Board, members 

of the PILB to discuss why you hadn't paid any of the -- 

A. No.  

Q. -- payments?  

  MR. REID:  I have no more questions.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I have one more, though it's 

about your original questions, not one you just did 

here.  
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  MR. REID:  Okay.  

 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

Q. But that would be, to the extent that you 

stated clubs aren't willing to let you in, have any of 

them stated to you that they are not allowed to let you 

in?  

A. Like I'll go back to the Drai's incident.  The 

head of security came out.  Me and my wife were outside.  

As I was approaching to go in, he said, "Adam, come 

here.  I can't let you in."  And I said, "Why can't I 

come in?"  He said, "Man, those guys with the PILB 

board, they're like really hot, man.  I mean you made 

them pissed off.  And whatever it is, man, I just can't 

take the chance, I can't, I can't risk it."  I said, 

"Risk what?  What am I doing?" 

 Like I said before, I've never had an issue in 

any club, in any casino, anywhere in Las Vegas, never, 

until that arrest.  So why was I -- I just wondered why 

was I being denied entry.  And then, on top of that, 

come to find out, it's up to them, the security 

themselves.  So for whatever reason, he just felt that 

he was pressed by the PILB board enough to not let me 

in.  
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Q. Okay.   

A. And I felt that that was discrimination against 

me, because I had not done anything.  And this is where 

the confusion comes in.  I can be, I can want to go to a 

club, casino as a regular patron.  If they say that I'm 

working, then all they have to, oh, he's working, that's 

not right.  How are you going to say I'm working, and 

I'm not?  I there with my wife.  Working with my wife?  

Come on now.  It's not logical.  That's the thing I'm 

saying.  My name has been unfairly dragged through the 

mud.  I've been unfairly targeted.   

 I have a Utah CCW, a Florida CCW, a Nevada CCW.  

I have a Nevada guard card.  I have a passport.  I have 

a visa to Moscow, Russia.  I've been doing this, and 

I've been doing a great job at what I do.   

 I just did not educate myself properly on the 

process of the PILB board.  Which I know now.  So going 

forth or going further, I want to do it proper so I 

don't have this delayed.  And that's all I'm asking.   

Since I have a remedy to this problem, can that remedy 

be administered and we move on and get this matter 

closed?  And can the dirt be not thrown around?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I don't have any further 

questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any questions? 
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  MR. REID:  I have no more questions.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anybody else?  

  MR. REID:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Board 

questions?  We'll start with Gronauer.  

  (There was a minute off the record to relocate 

the microphone in Las Vegas.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Plant. 

  THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I think, you're an 

impressive gentleman.  Okay?  

  THE WITNESS:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  43 years old, where you 

came from, where you're at and all.  I really do.  And I 

believe you're a family man.  You're articulate, 

intelligent and actually charming. 

  THE WITNESS:  Thank you, sir. 

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  But my 

problem comes up with, because you're all that, you 

received the first citation that said you shouldn't be 

doing this.  If you received the first citation, why 

didn't you come to the Board or come to the PILB office 

and talk to them, discuss it, and get your knowledge 

base straight?  

  THE WITNESS:  I did, sir.  After the first 
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citation, I did go down to the office.  And that's when 

the two gentlemen did give me the application for the 

PPO license.  To be honest with you, sir, I just, I 

didn't think that it would come to an arrest.  I just 

didn't put the urgency on it.  I'm going to be totally 

honest with you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  But, still, you 

had the information.  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Then you got the second 

citation. 

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And you get it.  See, 

to me, it just seems like you didn't take it seriously 

enough.  This is a licensing state.  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I have to be licensed.  

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  We all have to be 

license to run everything we run here.  I have three 

different licenses, corporate licenses, all kinds of 

stuff. 

  THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So, and the thing is, 

when you read that NRS, particularly the NRS, because we 
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want you to read them into them citations.  And 

especially the first one, okay, I can see maybe the way 

you felt.  

  THE WITNESS:  Right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  But the second one 

pretty much tells you it's sort of like a little wake-up 

call. 

  THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Again.  And that's the 

part I don't understand, why you didn't take care of 

business at that time.  That's the thing to you, you 

come in here now and saying you have somebody to help 

you out to do this.  I'd be all for it, I really do.  

But it doesn't excuse where we were from the beginning.  

  THE WITNESS:  Right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  At the beginning, I 

take exception to you think that we're targeting you.  

Okay?   

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I really have a bad 

feeling about that word.  Because there's people -- if 

you've been here all day --   

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative).  

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- there's people got 

some big problems.  
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  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And nobody's targeted.   

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's just that we're  

expecting you to go by the law.  And NRS 648 says what 

you're supposed to do.  And that's the biggest thing.  

Like I say, when I tell you, that's the way I feel about 

you, you are intelligent.  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You are a sharp man.  

  THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good family man.  I 

understand that.  But because of that intelligence, it 

creates me more of an angst because of the second 

citation.  And then to go on to a third and fourth and 

to finally get arrested, you get a wake-up call.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record, Board 

counsel. 

  Just briefly, just --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm done. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That wasn't a 

question. 

  MR. DETMER:  And that's where I was coming 

from.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Well, let me 
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understand.  Why didn't you take care of that second 

citation?  

  THE WITNESS:  Because I -- just to be honest 

with you, sir, I just, I didn't think it was that 

serious at that time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Asked and 

answered.  

  THE WITNESS:  But --   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Asked and 

answered.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I do, I have a few 

questions.  You made a statement that you were at a 

club, and someone told you that the PILB board was going 

to start having people do a PPO.  At that time, you 

listened to them the first time when they told you you 

needed to get a guard card. 

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Why didn't you listen to 

then, when they said that you really need a PPO?  

  THE WITNESS:  The main reason, ma'am, is 

because, like I said it before, when I came here and 

worked Mayweather in 2008, obviously, everybody knew I 

worked for him.  They knew that I also had side clients.  

My thing was, if this was such an issue, why wasn't I 
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warned way back then?  That, that was my -- that was my 

thinking, to be honest with you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  You also mentioned 

that you have a CCW.  

  THE WITNESS:  I have three, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Do you use in the 

state of Nevada a concealed weapon while you're doing 

your private bodyguard services?  

  THE WITNESS:  I've never brought a weapon onto 

any property, no.  I've never had to.  I just, but I 

wanted to, I wanted to have the license in case I ever 

had a situation where it was called for.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  THE WITNESS:  But I've never had to use it.  

I've never brought a weapon on anybody's property at 

all.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Did you have an armed 

guard card?  

  THE WITNESS:  I have a guard card, not an armed 

guard card. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So you --  

  THE WITNESS:  And so I -- to answer that 

question, no, I haven't worked with a gun while I was 

working, no.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  I go back to the 
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same question that -- and, I guess, it's asked and 

answered, that you didn't think that you needed to 

follow up after the first letter.  Because, you know, 

$5,000 isn't a little amount of money.   

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  That would have had all of 

my red flags up and would have gone in and taken care of 

it.  

  THE WITNESS:  It did.  But, like I said, ma'am, 

I usually work every day.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  THE WITNESS:  And when you have -- I don't know 

if you all have kids, spouses.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yep.  

  THE WITNESS:  In my line of work, because I 

have to go make sure that, you know, we're getting money 

somehow every day, I just got caught up in the motion of 

not putting the severity on it that I should have.  And 

that's my mistake.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  I'm done.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Plant.  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I agree with 

everything my colleague Mr. Gronauer said.  You're a 

good guy, you seem like a good guy.  But you're thick 
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sometimes.  

  THE WITNESS:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I think, maybe 

your wife would agree with me.  We would not be here if 

you would have taken the first citation seriously.  

  THE WITNESS:  Sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We would not be 

here if you took the second citation seriously.  We 

would not be here if you took the third citation 

seriously.  We would be here if you took the fourth 

citation seriously.  And the fifth, when you got 

arrested, that one is on you, nobody else.  Out of 

2.3 million people that live here, that one was on you. 

  So what I'm throwing out to counsel right now, 

we're done in 38 minutes.  We don't have a choice.   

  And you want to continue to support your 

family.  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And I understand 

that.  I'm a parent of three Gorman graduates, and I was 

president of the board of regents of Gorman.  So I know 

the dedication that you have and your wife has to 

provide that type of education. 

  So what I will throw out to the group here, do 

you guys want to confer?  Because we're done at 5:00.  
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He's in limbo.  I don't know when we'll meet again.  It 

might be three months, might be four months.  I'm saying 

this because we're trying to be fair.  That's probably 

the best word I can come up with. 

  So I throw it to counsel. 

  MR. REID:  We'd like to confer and try and 

discuss it, confer on a settlement.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll give 

you 20 minutes, and then I want a status.  

  MR. DETMER:  If I may ask, does the defense 

counsel have any additional witnesses beyond Mr. Plant?  

  MR. REID:  It was just going to be Mr. -- I 

forget his name.  I apologize.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Whitfield? 

  MR. REID:  If he had a position available, 

whether or not --  

  (The Reporter indicated that it's difficult to 

hear Las Vegas.  There was a minute off the record.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Just 

to sum up, so you know, I've asked counsel if they want 

to get together so they can try to resolve this in the 

next 37 minutes.   

  So we're going to take a 20-minute break.  

We're going to come back.  That'll give us 17 minutes.  

We'll see what happens.  Now, if they get done before 
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that, we might come back before 20 minutes.   

  THE REPORTER:  We'll be here. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You got that up 

there?  

 THE REPORTER:  Yep.  Yes. 

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Good, 

good with that?  All right.   

 I appreciate, seriously, Mr. Plant --  

 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir. 

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  -- for your 

honesty and your forthrightness before the Board.  I 

don't appreciate the decisions you made before we got 

here. 

 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir. 

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

 MR. REID:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.   

 MR. DETMER:  Are we in recess? 

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We are in recess.  

I'm shutting this off. 

* * * * * 

 (A break was taken, 4:23 to 4:36 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Rosalie, are you 

ready to proceed? 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I am. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Reid, are you 

ready to proceed? 

  MR. REID:  Yes.  Before, I believe, we did not 

excuse Mr. Plant.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Before he 

walks all the way over, we don't have any other 

questions.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I've got a few. 

  MR. REID:  Do we need to put him in --  

  MR. DETMER:  Let's get back on the record and 

make sure it's stated for the record.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. DETMER:  If we had any additional questions 

or he could be released. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So we're 

starting up.  Can you hear me? 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're starting 

the hearing.  Can you hear me? 

  MS. KLEMME:  Yes. 

  THE REPORTER:  If you keep talking loud, we can 

hear you. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Okay.  

We're starting here.  And I've been informed by all the 

parties involved that they were not able to resolve 
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this.  So the hearing will continue.   

  Mr. Plant was up here.  There is no other 

questions from the Board for Mr. Plant.  I don't believe 

counsel's got any other questions.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Correct.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So Mr. Plant is 

excused.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.   

  I just wanted to ask Mr. Reid whether or not he 

has additional witnesses he'd like to call for his case 

in chief.  

  MR. REID:  I was going to call Mr. Whitfield, 

who is here.  I can waive that, because I'm happy that 

he does have a potential position.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I'm willing to stipulate to  

that fact. 

  MR. REID:  Okay. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  That he has an employment 

offer.  

  MR. REID:  And if the question would be, do you 

have a job opportunity for Mr. Plant, my client would 

say yes.  But we could stipulate to it.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I'm willing to stipulate to 

that fact.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And, I think, the 
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Board would be fine.  We're very aware that people work 

under other people's licenses on a regular basis.   

  MR. REID:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  He's got a good 

friend to offer that.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I would like to call one.  If 

that's all you have, I have one rebuttal witness, which 

would be Director Ingram.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, I love it 

when Director Ingram's up here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Do you want me to come down there? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, I want you 

down there.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We put 

everybody else down there.   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  If it's good 

enough for your staff, it's good enough for you. 

  MR. DETMER:  Sir, you're raising your right 

hand.  Do you swear, do you swear and affirm to tell the 

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

  MR. INGRAM:  I do. 

/// 

/// 
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K E V I N   I N G R A M, 

having been first duly sworn/affirmed, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

 

DIRECT EXAMINATION ON REBUTTAL 

BY MS. BORDELOVE:   

Q. Have you had any conversations with casino and 

nightclub security regarding Mr. Plant?  

A. Yes.  

Q. Can you describe the nature of those 

conversations?  

A. Absolutely.  I'm part of the coalition, it's 

called the Night Watch.  Gaming Control and Las Vegas 

Metro reached out to me and said they were having a lot 

of problems in the nightclubs with unlicensed activity, 

with sex trafficking, drugs, and wanted to know if I'd 

be interested in joining that coalition.  So I, 

obviously, agreed to that.   

 We meet a couple times, actually probably once 

a quarter with the Night Watch.  I'm also part of the 

Security Peace Association.  And so we meet on a monthly 

basis.  And then I'm also part of the Zone Committee, 

which is all the security, heads of security at all the 

casinos. 

 So with those relationships, the casinos have 
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reached out to us and asked for our assistance in 

addressing unlicensed activity in the casinos.  So we do 

this with every casino.  They specifically asked if 

certain individuals were licensed.  Mr. Plant was one of 

the individuals as well.  And then what they do is, on a 

regular basis, I receive emails from the different 

security directors, and they say these are the 

individuals that were in our nightclubs, they said they 

were working security.  Some of the nightclubs actually 

have them sign in on a sign-in sheet and the reason for 

being there.  And on occasions, Mr. Plant has signed in 

that he's providing security services.  So he actually 

signs in doing that.  

 They then email myself and Investigator 

Saladino to see if they were working for a licensed 

company.  And then we relate back to them either, yes, 

they are working for a licensed company or, no, they 

were not.  And then the casinos make decisions on who 

they're going to let into their nightclubs and casinos. 

 So we don't give them any direction.  We have 

no authority over them.  We just answer the questions 

that they ask.  

Q. Have you ever instructed any casino or 

nightclub security to deny admittance to any person?  

A. Absolutely not.  
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  MS. BORDELOVE:  I think, that maybe answered my 

questions.  

 

CROSS-EXAMINATION ON REBUTTAL 

BY MR. REID:   

Q. With regards to you saying that there was a 

list that people would come in and sign to say that 

they're providing services, do you ever see any of those 

lists?  

A. I have.  

Q. And have you ever seen Mr. Adam Plant's name on 

those?  

A. I don't recall seeing his specific name, no.  

Q. Have you asked to look for any of those lists 

with Mr. Adam Plant's name? 

A. I have not.  

Q. Why did you not ask for a list?  

A. I answer the questions when they provide them 

to me.  And I provide them the answers.  And that's the 

extent of the relationship I have with them.  

Q. Do you have any knowledge as to why some of 

these casino security and casino -- security personnel 

and nightclub security would deny Mr. Plant access to 

their premises?  

A. I wouldn't be privileged to that.  They make 
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their decisions on their own.  

Q. So you would have no idea as to why they would 

have a negative influence regarding Mr. Plant?  

A. Well, they have verified that he's not 

licensed.  So, I guess, in that respect, they don't want 

unlicensed activity in their casinos or nightclubs.  So 

they're making a decision based on information we 

provide them.  

Q. Are you aware of any of -- yourself or any one 

of your team explaining to any of the head of security 

that he had been, Mr. Plant had been arrested?  

A. It wasn't needed.  They contacted us and said, 

"I understand he was arrested."  The word spread on its 

own.  We would not share that information with 

individuals.  

Q. How did they contact you?  

A. They can contact via email.  I get phone calls.  

I attend all those meetings that we're talking with the 

security directors just face-to-face.  

Q. But how did they -- they contacted you, and how 

did they contact you to let you know that, to let you 

know that he had been arrested? 

A. There were about 12 individuals that we had 

been tracking unlicensed activity on as well.  

Mr. Plant's one of about 20 or so people that we've been 
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tracking.  After his arrest, 12 individuals came into 

our office that same week and said, "We want to get 

licensed, and we want to pay our citations."  So they 

told us that the word was out that we were arresting 

people.  

Q. So, but just to confirm, so the Board's aware.  

A. M-hm (affirmative). 

Q. So after Mr. Plant's arrest, 12 people came in 

to obtain a license and to pay for their citations?  

A. Either to apply or pay for their citations, 

yes.  And we had meetings with them as well, sit-down 

meetings, as we did with Mr. Plant, explaining their 

licensing.  

Q. Would you say that that was a good example for 

the public for Mr. Plant to be arrested?   

A. No. 

Q. Sorry.  Not the public.  Not for the public.  

For people applying for licenses, was that a good 

example for Mr. Plant to be arrested so they could apply 

for their licenses and pay for their citations?  

A. I wouldn't say that.  I mean, I think, they saw 

that the PILB was serious about when we write our 

citations, that they need to be paid, and they need to 

follow up with us.  

Q. Would you say he was made an example of?  
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A. Absolutely not.  

Q. How many other people have you arrested?  

A. He's the only one.  He's the only one that has 

been issued more than two unlicensed activity citations.  

Q. Did you ever -- you said 12.  So people that 

have the unlicensed activity citations, are they, are 

your personnel actively looking at their activities?  

A. Absolutely, daily.  

Q. So you wouldn't say that he was made an example 

of, then?  

A. Absolutely not.  

  MR. REID:  Okay.  I have no further questions.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  The Board.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  Do we have 

any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I do.  So after -- so just 

to be clear, Mr. Plant was the only one arrested that 

evening for this type of activity?  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  And then, after 

Mr. Plant came in after, I think, the first or second 

citation, and you gave him the license information so 

that he could obtain his PPO, did he ever follow up with 

you guys, ask any questions, do any type of follow-up on 

obtaining his license?  
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  THE WITNESS:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'm good.  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm good.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Ingram, 

Mr. Reid asked you the question, did the PILB make an 

example of Mr. Plant, and your response was? 

  THE WITNESS:  No.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And do you 

have an ability to do a press release for the PILB?  

  THE WITNESS:  I do.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Was a press 

release done, then, based on his arrest?  

  THE WITNESS:  Absolutely not.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you have the 

ability to speak with the press about matters involving 

the PILB?  

  THE WITNESS:  Absolutely not.  We need a public 

information officer.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Have you spoken 

to the press about the arrest of Mr. Plant?  

  THE WITNESS:  Absolutely not.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You 

mentioned before this was the only time you've arrested 

someone for unlicensed bodyguard executive protection 

work?  
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  THE WITNESS:  Correct.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And in the 

prior, have we, has the PILB issued citations for 

executive protection body work?  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Have we ever had 

to issue a citation more once to an individual?  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  More than twice?  

  THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you have a 

conversation with Metro regarding the arrest or the 

potential for an arrest?  

  THE WITNESS:  Yes. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And why did you 

do that?  

  THE WITNESS:  As part of the Night Watch 

program, they were aware that we were tracking 

individuals that were providing unlicensed activity.  We 

have a criminal statute that the first offense of any 

violation of our chapter is considered, can be 

considered a misdemeanor, and any subsequent violation 

is a gross misdemeanor.  So in speaking to them, they 

said, "Well, you know, how do we get this to stop?" 

  And so the task force at that time was run 
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by -- I've forgotten his name now.  I apologize.  

Anyway, the lieutenant and the captain that were in 

charge of the task force asked if we wanted assistance 

and if we wanted to actually have him arrested for his 

continued violations, and we said yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have 

no -- oh, I do.  And can somebody tell me what the total 

fine is right now on paper?  

  THE WITNESS:  37,500.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Minus.  He made a payment to 

the Controller's Office.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're going to 

need to --  

  THE WITNESS:  Oh, that's right.  I'm sorry.  He 

made a $57 and some change payment to the Controller's 

Office.  The first two citations have been sent to the 

Controller.  So that's $7,500 minus the 57 and change 

that he made.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  But it's what? 

  THE WITNESS:  And then three outstanding.  

Those are collections. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

  THE WITNESS:  The outstanding citations of 

$37,000 is owed to them at this point.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  
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  THE WITNESS:  Just for the record, any 

citations that are collected by the Board are referred 

back by statute to the State General Fund.  The Board 

does not keep any of that money.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That is correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Quick question.  So after 

the initial citation, and had he come in and gotten the  

license, would that have stopped all other activities, 

as far as the Board is concerned, in fines, or, you 

know, would have resolved the issue and not gone to the 

point of arrest?  

  THE WITNESS:  Absolutely.  In fact, when I had 

a conversation with Mr. Plant, I told him, "You got a 

great product.  You got a great name.  You've got people 

that you can hire.  You can corner the market.  Get 

licensed."  And he didn't follow through. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  One last 

question.  To your knowledge, has Mr. Plant started any 

of the licensing process?  

  THE WITNESS:  No.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.   

  I don't know if there's any other.  No other 

questions from the Board.  

  MR. REID:  I have no other questions based upon 
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the questions of the Board.  Oh.  I have no other 

questions as a result of the questions of the Board.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I don't, either.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank 

you, Mr. Ingram.  That made my day having you up there.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mr. Chairman, if I may? 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, you may. 

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record. 

  Just as a procedural matter, we go to closing 

arguments absent -- I'm sorry.  Does counsel have any 

rebuttal witnesses, or re-rebuttal witnesses?  

  MR. REID:  No.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No.  

  MR. DETMER:  So with that, they go to the 

closing by both.  It would be closing Ms. Bordelove, 

closing by Mr. Reid, and then Ms. Bordelove has the 

opportunity to do a final closing.  But then I know that 

is now 4:50.   

  The question is, what would be a good stop time 

to bifurcate?  Do you want your closing argument?  Does 

counsel think they can finish closing argument in 10 

minutes?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I can be very quick with 

closing argument.  I will also note to you they won't 

actually kick you right out at 5:00.   
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  MR. DETMER:  Oh. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, they don't.  Okay. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I've continued with witnesses 

before.  I don't want to do that here today.  I will 

make my statement extremely --   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, it all 

depends on whether we keep the feed. 

 MS. BORDELOVE:  It's true.  We need the feed 

for our court reporter.   

 ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Because I have 

been here before when she shuts off her file, so.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  And I will remind that we 

need -- I don't know that we'll have any, but maybe a 

public comment period before we can end the meeting, 

whatever we do.  

  MR. DETMER:  So, then, does the Board want 

to --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well --  

  MR. DETMER:  -- risk it, or?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, what the 

Board is going to do right now is, does anybody -- this 

is the public comment section, because we got to get it 

done no matter what.  

  MR. DETMER:  Right. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  We just have to say it before 
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adjournment.  It could be now, you know.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Shannon, we're going -- I'm asking for public comment.  

Anyone have anything they want to bring before the 

Board?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  It can't be regarding --   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  It can't be 

regarding this case.  It can be the other 137 things we 

did this morning or something in the future. 

  All right.  We don't have anybody here for 

public comment.  Public comment's now closed. 

  MR. DETMER:  Awesome. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Mary, do you know what the 

telephone number is in that room, in case we lose feed? 

  MS. KLEMME:  Let's see. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Because we could finish up on 

conference call.  

  MS. KLEMME:  I think, it's the -- there's a 

number taped to that phone, I think. 

  MR. INGRAM:  So, Mary, Mary, why don't go out 

and talk to somebody and find that out.  Then, we can 

proceed while you're gone.  

  MS. KLEMME:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So I just want to 
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make sure.  Mr. Reid, are you okay with us trying to 

proceed?  We have no idea where this is going to end or 

if we can get it to end.  

  MR. REID:  I would like to attempt.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I just 

want to make sure you're okay with that.  

  MR. REID:  Thank you.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Obviously, you're 

okay with it, Rosalie, right? 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Let's 

go on. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.  Then, I will try and be 

as brief as possible. 

  I just want to, I guess, revamp maybe a little 

bit of my opening, reframe the issues a bit.  I know 

counsel's made arguments regarding the amount of 

specificity or in the citations themselves.  And I just 

want to remind you here of the statute that we're going 

under, a few statutes.   

  The first would be NRS 648.156, which, again, 

is only -- it allows you to revoke a registration if you 

find that after the date of receiving that registration  

the registered employee committed acts prohibited by the 

chapter, or attempted to.  And it does not require, 
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since we were not in citation appeals here, it doesn't, 

so the citations themselves do not actually have to be a 

part of your basis here.  That's why I went through all 

the social media posts. 

 I also want to point to NRS 648.060, because it 

specifically prohibits not just the engaging in the 

business of private patrol officer, but it includes 

advertising a business of private patrol officer, or any 

of the other licenses under this chapter, irrespective 

of the name or title actually used.  

 So I want to remind you of all the Instagram 

posts and the webpage that we looked at earlier today 

where the respondent was holding himself out to the 

public as a bodyguard, providing executive protective 

services -- which under our chapter are private patrol 

services requiring a license -- advertising those 

services, as well as, you know, we have evidence that at 

least in January our investigators actually witnessed 

him performing those services.   

 So I would state that regardless of the 

citations themselves, that has been proven here to show 

that he violated provisions of the chapter.  And the 

Board has the ability to revoke the registration based 

on that.  

 And the reason that on behalf of staff I am 
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coming forward and asking for that revocation is because 

it's gone on this long.  Had he applied for licensure, 

you know, even as some of you said, had he applied for  

licensure after that first citation when he was given an 

application, we wouldn't be here today.  It wouldn't 

have been brought before you. 

 This was brought before you because, because 

there were five instances where the Board notified him 

that what he was doing was not something that he could 

do with just a work card, and that he needed a full 

license in order to be working for an individual.  I 

would actually say that on six instances, because one of 

those happened at the time he applied for the work card. 

 And because of that, I would ask today that you 

revoke his registration.  He has the ability, after that 

revocation, he could apply again at a later date.  Or he 

could apply for licensure at a later date.  But I would 

ask that the Board take that seriously into 

consideration, that there needs to be some constant 

enforcement of our licensing here.  

 And I'm done with my closing. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Was that a period 

at the end?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  It might not have sounded like 

it, but it was.  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. REID:  As I stated in the opening 

statement, I have two issues here.  It's the legal side, 

which I'm going to, going to argue.  And then it's the 

lazy side that I'm going to argue afterwards.   

  The first I'll state is the citations.  Counsel 

has stated that the NRS 648.150 states that the Board 

may discipline any licensee for any of the following 

causes.  One is to be in violation of the provisions of 

this chapter or of a regulation adopted.  

  MS. KLEMME:  Excuse me.  Can I interrupt?  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, we don't 

have a choice.  

  MS. KLEMME:  Okay.  Can you hear us?  All 

right.  This is Jan Riherd.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MS. JAN RIHERD:  Yes.  I'm the office 

manager --  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Hi, Jan. 

  MS. JAN RIHERD:  Hi.  I'm the office manager of 

the A.G.'s Office.  And we don't have security here 

after 5:00.  So they're going to have to vacate the 

building.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MS. JAN RIHERD:  Sorry about that. 
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  They don't look 

like they're going to steal anything to me. 

  MS. JAN RIHERD:  I understand.  But if they're 

not a member of our office and they haven't through our 

background check, that they can't be in here without 

other employees.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you want to --   

  MR. REID:  Just, just very quickly, just try 

and resolve some issues, so they don't --  

  (The Reported indicated that it's difficult to 

hear Las Vegas.) 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Guys, 

you're going to have to speak up. 

  MR. REID:  I apologize.  This is Stephen Reid. 

  We are requesting for the Board to consider 

both respondent and petitioner to file a written closing 

statement.  The Board does have 45 days to make a 

consideration regarding this decision.  So if we have a 

written statement, then that gives them some time.  If 

we can have maybe one week just to provide that written 

statement, give it to the Board, and for them for their 

consideration.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I just have a 

question.  Do we have 45 days from the submittal or 45 
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days from today?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Well, so there's actually a 

couple things I'll mention.  You still have to 

deliberate in an open meeting.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  So I would be happy to do 

closing briefs.  I would ask that we both get the 

opportunity.  I don't know how we want to orchestrate 

it, but, basically, do a written brief, and then I'll do 

a rebuttal, or something of the sort.   

  You would still need to deliberate in an open 

meeting.  That could be done.  I mean we've done short 

telephonic meetings before.  We could do a special 

meeting that was done that way.  As long as Director 

Ingram is willing to facilitate, you Board members could 

call in -- there would have to be a typical location 

somewhere in the state -- for your deliberation.  And 

you would need to come to a decision at that point.  The 

order can then be issued after it.   

  I don't know if you have any thoughts.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record. 

  It's just a thought.  Would the Board be -- 

would the Board desire to reconvene at a time when the 

transcripts have been printed and they're able to review 

it for those purposes?  
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  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You know, we -- 

all right.  Let me.  Because we're going to have to wrap 

this up.  Okay.  So tell me if I can do this.  I want to 

end the hearing.  And we can talk in terms of logistics 

when we're going to meet next.  Or does that have to be 

part of the record?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  If we're doing closing briefs 

or something like that, that --   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I want to end 

it, so no -- so Mr. Reid's not rushed and we're not 

rushed.   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Okay.   

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  But I want to be 

able to continue a conversation about logistics of the 

next meeting.  Does that have to be on the record?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  No, the logistics of scheduling 

dates does not.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. REID:  So that's fine.   

  MR. INGRAM:  I'll see if I can get some dates 

and get back to you right away.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ladies? 

  MS. KLEMME:  Yes.  

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're going to 

close the hearing. 
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  MS. KLEMME:  Okay. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You guys can go 

home.  Thank you so much.  We'll be in touch. 

  MS. KLEMME:  Thank you. 

  THE REPORTER:  All right.  Bye-bye.  Thank you 

all. 

  ACTING BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Bye-bye. 

* * * * * 

(The meeting adjourned at 5:01 p.m.) 

-oOo- 
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